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OVERSIGHT HEARING ON THE JOB TRAINING
PARTNERSHIP ACT

THURSDAY, MAY 2, 1985

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 10:20 a.m., in room
2261, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Matthew G. Martinez
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Martinez, Hayes, Hawkins,
and Gunderson.

Staff present: Tim Minor, staff director; Eric P. Jensen, deputy
staff director; Paul Cano, legislative assistant; and Genevieve Gal-
breath, chief clerk/staff assistant; Dr. Beth Buehlman, Republican
staff director for education; Mary Gardner, Republican legislative
associate.

Also present: Representative Perkins.
Mr. MARTINEZ. I would like to welcome you all today to the Sub-

nommittee on Employment Opportunities first oversight hearing
on the Job Training Partnership Act. During the coming months,
the subcommittee will focus to a great extent on the progress of
JTPA.

The subcommittee intends to fully evaluate the program and will
utilize the assistance of many individuals and groups in compiling
its research.

As chairman of the subcommittee which has jurisdiction over
JTPA, I am very concerned about the President's budget proposals.
The proposed drastic cuts and rescissions in the Nation's employ-
ment and training programs is less than the best response to the
tremendous need. At present funding levels, JTPA only serves
about 2 to 3 percent of those eligible for program participation.

To further deny America's unemployed the opportunity to ac-
quire employable skills clearly demonstrates the administration's
lack of concern for the basic needs of a large sector of our popula-
tion. While no one disagrees that appropriate measures must be
taken to reduce our Federal deficit, to do so at the expense of pro-
grams that make people contributors rather than dependents is not
in our Nation's best interest.

Our youth, the displaced workers, and other unemployed Ameri-
cans deserve so much more than what the administration has been
willing to provide. As has been said before, the future of our
Nation will only be as successful as its citizens. Undoubtedly, un-

(1)
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employment and underemployment cloud many futures for many
Americans.

Our first witness today is the Honorable Nancy Johnson. Why
don't you start your testimony. Your full text, if you have a pre-
pared text, will be submitted for the record and if you wish to sum-
marize, you may do so.

STATEMENT OF HON. NANCY L. JOHNSON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Mrs. JOHNSON. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. It is a
pleasure to be with you this morning and to have this opportunity
to testify on the Job Training Partnership Act. I commend you for
holding this hearing and for recognizing that when Congress plants
a seed, it must also nurture growth.

The Job Training Partnership Act embodies a new vision of
public/private sector cooperation to meet the training and retrain-
ing needs of our society. While the concept is fundamentally sound
and has tremendous potential, it needs our strong support for ade-
quate funding and our careful attention to making thoughtful and
modest adjustments to its structure if it is to fulfill its promise.

Early JTPA data is quite encouraging. The partnership that Con-
gress envisioncz between business and government at the local
level seems to be working. In fact, one of the most important mes-
sages that I bring to the Congress from my constituents is ti_c plea
that we not make major changes in the program. It has now begun
to function smoothly and all see major changes as endangering
hard-won gains. However, as in all new undertakings, adjustments
can fine tune JTPA and better suit it to its challenge.

There are three issues that emerged from the hearing and dialog
that I held in my district recently with JTPA administrators, par-
ticipants, and other interested people that I believe the Congress
needs to address. One is obstacles to participation; the second is
performance standards; and the third is funding levels.

A thorough evaluation of JTPA's performance must take into
consideration the present obstsc,es to participation by those it was
intended to serve. One major obstacle is the lack of day care subsi-
dy dollars.

In Hartford, CT, 42 percent of the placements are AFDC and
general assistance recipients. This is in part because Hartford has
a significant number of day care slots. In smaller urban areas and
small towns, the lack of funding for day care expenses is prevent-
ing JTPA from serving one of its most important target groups. In
Hartford, this impressive percentage could be increased if day care
subsidy money became available.

I urge you to link reimbursements for day care with training
participants receiving AFDC assistance. The total absence of sti
pends is clearly making it very difficult to recruit the disadvan-
taged with dependent children.

Further, I would urge you to allow day care subsidies to decline
only gradually over the first 6 months of employment to enable
those who have benefited from the training to make the difficult
financial transition from AFDC to independence, and I can't stress
this enough. One of the big reasons why training of AFDC recipi-
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ents has failed is because there has been a failure on the part of
government to recognize the need for transitional support and
thisenabling JTPA to provide transitional, even declining, day
care subsidies will enable recipients who have, in fact, benefitted
from training to survive those first few months of bills that are
often in excess of salary.

Another related problem barring participation by individuals
needing JTPA services are the laws and regulations on income eli-
gibility. These work against several very important groups of
people. One is the dislocated homemaker who badly needs training
and employment and who is clearly a target group of JTPA, some-
one who is supposed to be being served, but whose total assets often
jeopardize their eligibility.

Another is the spouse of the low-income head of household. Often
low-income women who need to work to provide support for the
family cannot get a job without training and yet, because of a hus-
band's income, they are ineligible for training. I just remind you of
all the statistics about how many of these women don't have high
school degrees and don't have any experience and don't have any
marketable skills.

I believe women need to be able to be eligible in their own right
and should not be denied access to training because of a spouse's
employment. Such exclusion is particularly cruel for low- income
families.

A similar problem exists for handicapped youths and those over
55 that are denied eligiblity on the basis of a spouse or family in-
comes and, indeed, some of my program administrators do report
handicapped children who badly need to be tracked into these
training programs, but because of family income issues, they are
not eligible.

Last, a very real problem has developed for welfare recipients in
college basic skills or career training programs. Tuition assistance
grants have the effect of making them ineligible for food stamps or
even welfare, thus making training and employment nearly impos-
sible to obtain.

Unemployment insurance benefits are also preventing participa-
tion by many and I hope you will amend JTPA so that it very
clearly removes the irrational penalties that discourage the unem-
ployed and welfare dependent from gaining the training necessary
for independence and success.

In addition to barriers to participation, a significant problem
that has developed with the JTPA centers around the issue of per-
formance standards. Under current law, performance is judged ac-
cording to the number of positive terminations. This definition is
rigid and narrow and works against the purpose for which JTPA
was developed. It does not allow a program to claim a positive ter-
mination for a client who completes a basic skills program and is
then placed in a training program, or the transferring of someone
from training to an on-the-job program.

If JTPA is to address the problems of the hardcore unemployed,
then there must be the flexibility to meet remedial and readiness
needs before attempting skill development.

Some of the most creative and successful new approaches to
training that JTPA has stimulated in Connecticut are coventures
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through which community colleg a and vocational training pro-
grams team up to use their rem:ices to address the needs of the
long-term unemployed. I urge you to amend JTPA to allow coven-
turing and movement from classroom to workplace training when
appropriate. Under the current system, you sec, one of these pro-
grams has to take a negative termination in order for the person to
move on appropriately to progression of training that they need.

Last, there exists tremendous concern that JTPA funding may be
reduced as the need to address the deficit influences budget and ap-
propriations decisions. Cutbacks at this time would be a breach of
faith with both the clients and the business community, which was
urged to invest heavily in this partnership effort which is only now
beginning to see a productive program emerp from the efforts of
all.

Congress must respect the need for the program to gain adminis-
trative stability at both the State and local levels. In addition, I be-
lieve title III funding for the dislocated worker program should be
increased. In Connecticut, this program is retraining and placing
people very effectively and could serve more clients if funds were
available.

I would also urge you to drop the matching fund requirements as
all who testified at my hearing agreed that this requirement cre-
ates no new training dollars, but merely a lot of administrative
work to shuffle grants to create matches, and indeed, it apparently
does become that kind of creative administrative effort and it is the
opinion of all that it is bringing no new t dollars into the
stream and that, because the program is ny funded and the
client pressure is great, that in-kind contributions will continue to
be utilized wherever possible to free funds for training. Thei afore,
a specific match requirement is unnecessary and burdensome.

The Job Training Partnership Act is one of this Nation's major
investments in human capital investment and in order to deter-
minc whether the investment has been productive, we must meas-
ure the increased employment and earnings of participants. This
means making fairly sophisticated evaluations.

In Connecticut, my constituents are fearful that current funding
will not allow needed evaluations and in this regard, I hope you
will recommend funding for evaluation functionb as well as for
training programs.

JTPA has achieved remarkable results in a relatively short time
by establishing throughout the country a new decisiorunaking proc-
ess involving both the public and the private sectors. It is a pro-
gram that is off to a good start and Congress should be careful not
to make such changes in the :aw that would require this newly es-
tablished program to survive the chop of major reorganization.
However, thoughtful spwific changes can remove obstacles to par-
ticipation, provide realistic performance standards, and assure rea-
sonable funding.

The public/piivate partnership that has been painstakingly es-
tablished is beginning to flourish and deserves our continued sup-
port.

I would be happy, Mr. Chairman, to answer any questions or to
work with your staff in terms of the detail of some of the changes
that need to be made, at least in my opinion, and as they have

8
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emerged from the program administrators, the clients, and the
business people and the nuts and bolts out there that have been
working to get this law in place.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Nancy L. Johnson follows:]

PREPARED STATEMINT OF HON. NANCY L. JOHNSON, A MEKBER OF CONGRESS FROM
Tin STATE OF CONNECTICUT

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for providing this opportunity to on the Job
Training Partnership Act. I commend you for holding this hearing an for recogniz-
ing that when Congress plants a seed it must also nurture growth. The JTPA
embodies a new vision of public-private sector cooperation to meet the training and
retraining needs in our society. While the concept is fundamentally sound and has
tremendous potential it needs cur strong support for adequate funding and our care-
ful attention to making thoughtful and modest adjustments to its structure if it is to
fulfill its promise.

Early JTPA data is quite encouraging. The partnership that Congress envisioned
between business and government at the local level seems to be working. In fact,
one of the most important messages that I bring to the Congress from my constitu-
ents is the plea that we not make major changes in the program. It has now begun
to function smoothly and all see major changes as endangering hard won gains.
However, as in all new under nom, adjustments can fir.; -tune JTPA and better
suit it to its challenge. There are three issues that emerged from the hearing and
dialogue I held in my district recently that I believe the Congress needs to address:
1) Obstacles to participation, 2) Performance Standards, and 3) Funding levels.

OBSTACLES TO PARTICIPATION

A thorough evaluation of JTPA's performance must take into consideration the
present obstacles to participation by those it was inter ded to serve. One major ob-
stacle to participation is the lack of Day Care subsidy dollars. In Hartford, Connecti
cut, 42% of the placements are AFDC or General Assistance recipients. This is in
part because Hartford has a significant number of Day Care slots. In smaller urban
areas and small towns the lack of funding for Day Care expenses is preventing
JTPA from serving one "f its most important target groups. In Hartford this impres-
sive percentage could /As increased if Day Care subsidy money became available. I

ou to link reimoursements for Day Care with training participants receiving
assistance. The total absence of stipends is clearly making it very difficult to

recruit the disadvantaged with dependent children. Further, I would urge you to
allow Day Care subsidy to decline only gradually over the first six months of em-
ployment to allow those who have benefited from training to make the difficult fi-
nancial transition from AFDC to independence.

Another related problem barring participation by individuals needing JTPA serv-
ices are the laws and regulations on income eligibility. These work against several
very important groups of people. One is the dislocated homemaker who badly needs
training and employment but whose total assets often jeopardize their eligibility.
Another is the spouse of the low-income head-of-household. Often low-income
women who need to work to provide support for the family cannot get a job without
training and yet because of a husband's income they are ineligible for training. I
believe women need to be able to be eligible in their own right and should not be
denied access to training because of a spouse's employment. Such exclusion is par-
ticularly cru 1 for low income families. A similar problem exists for handicapped
Youths, and those over 55 that are denied eligibility on the basis of spouse or family
incomes. Lastly, a very real problem has developed for welfare recipients in college
basic skills or career training programs. Tuition assistance grants have the effect of
making them ineligible for foodstamps or even welfare thus making training and
employment nearly impossible to obtain. Unemployment Insurance benefits are also
preventing participation by many and I hope you will amend the JTPA so that it
clearly removes the in ational penalties that discourage the unemployed and wel-
fare dependent women from gaining the training necessary for independence and
success.

PIRFORMANCE STANDARDS

In addition to barriers to participation a significant problem that has developed
with the JTPA centers around th3 issue of performance standards. Under current
law, performance is judged according to the number of "positive terminations". This
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definition is rigid and narrow and works against the purpose for which JTPA was
developed. It does not allow a program to claim a "positive termination" for a client
who competes a basic skills program and is then into a training program or
the transferring of someone from training to an on-the-job program. If JTPA is to
address the problems of the hard-core unemployed then there must be the flexibility
to meet remedial and readiness needs before attempting skill development. Some of
the most creative and succeedul new approaches to training that JTPA has stimu-
lated are co-ventures through which community colleges and vocational training
programs team up to use their resources to address the seeds of the long term un-
employed. I urge y3u to amend ..;';PA to allow co-venturing and movement from
classroom to workplace training when appropriate.

FUNDING

Lastly, there mists tremendous concern that JTPA funding may be reduced as
the need to address the deficit influences budget and appropriations decisions. Cut-
backs at this time would be a breach of faith with both the clients and the business
community which was urged to invest heavily in this partnership effort which is
only now beginning to see a productive program emerge from the efforts of all. Con-
gress must respect the need for the program to gain administrative stability at both
state and local levels. In addition, I believe Title III funding for the Dislocated
Worker Program should be increased. In Connecticut this program is ret and
placing people very effectively and could serve more clients if funds were a le.
I would also urge you to drop the matching fund requirements as all who testified
at my hearing, agreed that this requirement creates no new training dollars but
merely a lot of aftinhUative work to shuffle grants to create matches. Because the
p is minimally funded and the client pressure great in-kind contributions
will continue to be utilised wherever possible to free funds for training. A specific
match requirement is unnecessary and burdeasome.

The JTPA is one of this nation's major investments in human capital develop-
ment and in order to determine whether the investment has been productive, we
must measure the increased employment and earnings of participants. This means
making fairly sophisticated evaluations. In Connecticut, my constituents are fearful
that current funding will not allow needed evaluations and in this regard I hope
you will recommend funding for evaluative functions as well as the training pro-
gram.

The JTPA has achieved remarkable results in a relatively short time by establish-
ing throughout the country a new decision making process involving both the public
and private sectors. JTPA is off to a good start and Congress should be careful not
to make such changes in the law that would require this newly established program
to survive the chop of major reorganization. However, thoughtful, specific changes
can remove obstacles to participation, provide realistic performance standards, and
assure reasonable funding. The private-public partnership that has been painstak-
ingly established is beginning to flourish and clerserves our continued strong sup-
Port-

PAWFICIPANTS IN JTPA Huamo, Brum, CT, Ann. 26, 1985
Dick Picks, CT Department g Labor
Eli Gussen, CT Department of Labor;
Dean Margaret Bauer, Greater New Haven State Technical College;
Brenda Craig, Greater Hartford Community College;
Harvey Kline, Greater Hartford Community College;
Steven Berman, New England Training anal Employment Council, Inc.;
Irvin Kyle, Dean of Community Services, Tunxis Community College;
Peter Palermino, CT Department on Aging;
Carl Mason, Mason and Co., Inc.;
Robert McBain New Britain Chamber of Commerce;
Richard New Britain-Bristol PIC Chairman, Bristol Sa Bank;
Dominic J. Badolato, Executive Director, AFSCME, CT Council 4, AFL -CIO;
George Bruszincld, New Britain- Bristol PIC-Services Director;
Laurie Lopez-McNulty, CT United labor Agency;
:ctor Mitchgl, CT United Labor Agency;
Albert Came, President of Concerned Seniors Association;
Cheryl Sharp, New lobs for Women, Hartford YWCA;
Dorothy Shirley, Nc w Jobs for Women, Hartford, YWCA;
Frank Cole, Travel as Insurance, Data Processing Director;
Francis Rinaldi, Carpenters Union Local 24;
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Nancy English, UAW Job Development and Training;
Bob Lewis, UAW Job Development and Training;
Den Mastrpietro, Ui' "7 Job Development and Training;
Dab Sierra, Paint,- cal 481;
Gregory P. Ste Itne , ,erector, New Britain Department Public Welfare;
Thomas R. Menditto, New Britain Workfare Coordinator.

CITY or New Barr six,
DEPARTMENT or PUBI1C WELFARE,

New Britain, CT, April 18, 1985.
Hon. NANCY L JOHNSON,
Cannon House Office Building Washington, DC

DEAR CONORMISWOMAN JOHNSON: The Job Trainini Partnership Act has not
proven its effectiveness to us at the municipal welfare level. The main goal of this
program is to train persons in order to get them into the workforce. To that end it
does not appear to be successful. The majority of unemployables, especially the
chronically unemployed, are on general assistance. As of this date, I know of only
two individuals on general assistance in New Britain who ha 'e fc,ind employment
as a result of their involvement with J.P.T.A.

J.P.TA. appears to achieve its results by "creaming". They appear to be con-
cerned with only acceptuAl those who have a good chance of success and/or appear
to be readily trainable. The result is that the welfare recipient i3 usually ignored.

J.P.T.A.'s screening and testing process is very lengthy. Deaptie promisee to cor-
rect this problem, nothing has changed.

J.P.T.A. does not mesh with workfare. Since the beginnink, J.P.TA. officials have
insisted that we guarantee that welfare recipients will remain in their training pro-
grams for a period of six months to one year. Since we cannot realistically make
such promises due to t, person's ability to go off and on the rolls at will, they have
accepted lees than a handful of our clients. Also, because of this requirement, it ir
impossible to use J.P.TA. as a worksite.

In summary, it appears to us that J.P.T.A. is not successful in curing unemploy-
ment. Much money has been spent on administrative costa, i.e., new desks, new com-
puters, new chairs, etc., where more of that moner should have been directed to-
wards service delivery,

In my opinion, J.P.T.A. needs to be reviewed. Its goals need to be re-directed to-
wards the chronically unemployed. The means to achieving these goals muse be
scrutinized.

Very Truly Yours,
GREGORY P. STELTNER,

Director,
New Britain Department of Public Welfare.

THOMAS R. Merrorrro,
Workfare Coordinator.

Tin GRIMM MICRIDLN LABOR COUNCIL,
Meriden, CT, April 19, 1935.

Hon. NANCY L JOHNSON,
Congresswoman, New Britain, Cl'.

DEAF CONORZERWOMAN: My name is Albert Casale, President of the greater Meri-
den Labor Council, AFL-CIO. Our organization has sponsored a highly successful
job search skill raining program that has served hundreds )f hard-to-place clients
over the past 8 years, while enjoying a placement rate of 80%.

Thank you for the opportunity to share with you some of my concerns concerning
Job Training Partnership Act funding. Listed below are some reasons why beheve
this program should be refunded.

Firstly, as you know, there is a serious moral conflict involved in prohibitive tarr-
ing for sophisticated weapons that can destroy our earth in preference to fundamen-
tal human rights and needs such as employment.

Secondly, the formula for funding is illusory since a major part of it is premise°
on the unemployment rate. This does not include those who have exhausted their
benefits or discouraged workers who have abandoned their job search. For example,
of the 82 clients served in the last fiscal years, only 20 (24%) were collating unem-
ployment compensation. Moreover, those collecting unemployment compensation in
its earlier stages are ineligible for JTPA programs since they are over income.

11
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Thirdly, the amount of money saved by removing clients from public subsistence
a; v4 placing them into productive employment is incalculable financially, personally
and morally. It fastens pride in oneself and in one's country.

Fourthly, the large number of plant closings and the dislocation of workers are
increasing at an alarming rate. The enclosed data documents the enormity of the
problem in Connecticut.

Finally, leading indicators forebode a cooling economy and an increasing unem-
ployment rate.

are but some of the many reasons why funding under the Job Training
Partnership Act should not only not be reduced but increased. I urge you to give
this matter your serious attention. Thank You.

Sincerely,

Hon. NANCY L. JOHNSON,
U.S. Representative, New Britain, CT

DEAR REPRESENTATIVE JOHNSON: This is in response to your invitation for com-
ments on the Job Training Partnership Act at the hearing on April 22 in Bristol

The expanence of Tunxis Community College with JTPA is based on three propos-
als (1) a Dental Assisting Pre-Clinical Program in which ten of the twelve partici-
pants completed training but only three were able to be placed in dental offices (2) a
Retail Trades Program which was approved for funding but cancelled because only
four JTPA-eligible persons could be recruited for the program (8) a Basic Skills Pro-
posal (reading, writing, math, study skills, career management) for twenty persons,
subnitted for FY1985-86, status for finding as yet undetermined.

Based on the above limited experiences, I offer the following observations:
(1) Collaboration among the many agencies involved in JTPA is a very slow and

laborious prows (business, towu governments, community organizations, PIC's,
state agencies, program operators, Job Services, etc.). It obviously will take time, pa-
tience, and much goodwill for effective working relationships to develop and for the
"tur" syndrome" to mitigate. Some of tht same complaints once directed towards
CETA are sometimes echoed with respect to bureaucratic delays and excessive and
redundanaperwork. We trust that in time the spirit of true partnership will char-
acterize JTPA in practice as well as in concept

(2) Recruitment and placement efforts need better coordination at the State and
SDA level. Increasingly both of these key functions are falling by default on pro-
gram operators, many of which are already overwhelmed by the intricacies of train-
ing a hard-to-train and hard-to-place clientele.

(8) The total absence of stipends makes it very difficult to recruit the disadvan-
taged, particularly those with dependent children. The intens vet raining schedule
of some p makes employment-for-survival virtually impossible. We recom-
mend stipends on a selective basis for hardship cases.

(4) We urge reform of laws mid regulations on income criteria which work against
dislocated homemakers biking advantage of JTPA training.

(5) We urge reform of laws and regulations which prevent persons in college-credit
training

stamprograms
from getting full benefits of public assistance, such as welfare

an food ps.
(6) We urge re-conside -ation of the 15% maximum allowance for administrative

costa. The burden of administering these programs is often far in excess of 15% and
the deficit must be absorbed by program operators.

Tunxis Community College is very appreciative of the opportunity to present
these observations to you.

Sincerely,

ALBERT CASALE.

TUNXIS COMMUNITY Comsat,
Farmington, CT April 22, 1985.

brim F. KYLE, JR.,
Dean of Community Services.

New ENGLAND TRALNLMG AND EMPLOYMENT COUNCIL,
Hartford, CT.

My name is Stephen Berman. I am the executive director of the New England
Training & Employment Council, Inc., headquartered in Hartford. NETEC is a pri-
vate, non-profit corporation formed in 1976 to provide training, technical assistance,
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information and advocacy for cities, counties and states, and now private agencies,
responsible for federally-funded employment and training.

Thank you, Congresswoman Johnson, for providing this opportunity to comment
on the status of the Job Training Partnership Act. I will read a brief prepared state-
ment and then, time permitting, attempt to answer some of the excellent questions
sent with your letter of invitation.

The first results are in from the evaluation of JTPA and the news is quite encour-
aging. The partnership that Congress envisioned between business and government
at the local level seems to be worioing.

From its start, one and a half years ago, performance standards, business involve-
ment and welfare reduction have been the aspect of JTPA emphasized by the White
House, the individual states and the local Service Delivery Areas. The federal gov-
ernment's role has been dangerously reduced and the state's role greatly expended.
Both have lett early choices regarding JTPA priorities and implement/Won
larply to local decisionmakera And that has wise.

The vast majority of SDAs in New England report that the potential for high
placement rates and low costs have been the critical factors in putting together the
initial package of programs and services As a result, the first activities have been
even more weighted towards basic efforts such as classroom and on-the-job training
then the Act requires. A national sample shows 76 percent of funds expended on
these activities compared to the Act's 70 percent requirement.

Results, in terms of placements, cost, program duration and targeting have gone
well beyond expectations. Although not as high as the first nine mont transition
period, the nine Connecticut SDA s get good marks for the first Bi . months of this
program year (July 1, 1984 thru December 31, 1984).

Some results compereci to their own Performance Standards:
Adult ant/fled employment rate: the average SDA standard is 50% while the aver-

age resui. ,,as over F5%.
Average wage at placement: the typical standard was set at $4.70 while actual

achievement averaged $5.16.
The aye rage cost per adult placement ran about $3,400 while the standard was set

at above $300 per placement.
The 17 SDA/PICs in Massachusetts and Maine did even better in most categories.

New England, in general, ranks very high nationwide . . . as it has for as long as I
can reu amber.

Creaming, which I define as giving preference to serving those who require short
term, inexpensive services in order to secure jobs, is reall not the problem some
insist. Virtually all individuals enrolled in JTPA meet the definition of economical-
ly disadvantaged and the various target populations served equal their average in
the overall population.

Also, there is a high correlatim between client populations served and what hap-
pens to them. As example, in one SDA in Connecticut, they served 32% school droo-
outs (above the area average) and results show that over 30% of the total persons
placed in unsubsidized jobs were school dropouts.

JTPA legislation has meant numerous changet_ institutional, programmatic, orga-
nizational and governance when compared to C ETA and earlier training efforts.

It has not, however, been a time when experimentation, demonstration, complex-
ity, or tackling the toughest possible problems seem to offer much reward. Achiev-
ing "bottom line" performance seems to have been a more secure route so far. Early
efforts have concentrated on than most able to benefit from JTPA as opposed to
those most in need. Both are targets of the Law.

It now appePrs, however, that the cream is off the top of the eligible clients pool.
Whether the SLAs can maintain their achievements in private sector involvement
and in placement and cost performance while targeting more effectively on less job
ready individuals is a major issue. The oyster.. has reached that population requir-
ing far more expensive and time consumin' g services. Future results will depend
upon the strength of local economies; levels of JTPA funding; and the potential for
legislative changes.

Another difficult area is the requirement to epend 40% of the Title II A funds on
youth. Many officials have told me that severe restrictions on work experience and
denial or reduction of training stipends is making it very difficult to attract youth
. . . particularly dropouts.

In contrast to the performance with youth, dm outs and other high need individ-
uals, SDAs on average have exceeded their for enrolling welfare recipients.
Welfare clients were the one group that bo private industry councils and local
governments agreed should be served in large numbers, in hopes cf a quick return
in terms of reduced welfare dependency. In Connecticut, the standard average was

13
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42% welfare client placed . . . the average actually placed the first six months of
this program year was nearly 60%.

Overall, private sector influence is strong in New England. They have typically
pushed for a "business-like" orientation, by which the training program brings to-
gether the customer . . . the potential employer . . . and the product . . . the

rs
place-

ment. Private sector members emphaese efficiencyciency and prevention of lowed
wets and their role is primaril the "Marketing" of the JTPA program

This influence will be lost, however, if state governors and state job training co-
ordinating councils do not PICs as the solid infrastructure of JTPA and
eacourage their use as mini-au 'ties capable of overseeing JTPA as well as other
employment and trainin* efforts. Their success will insure the governor's position
and the state's high national rating. It will also make the link to state and local
p,Amomic development more secure and productive.

JTPA is really an investment in human capital, and in order to determine wheth-
er the investment has been productive, we must measure the increased employment
and earnings of participants and the redirection in welfare dependency. This
means some fairly sophisticated evaluation. It might take years before we have all
the facts (and only if OMB reverses its policy). We know Congress can not wait
years, so short-term indicators have been developed for lont-term success.

The JTPA system is right now wrestling with the issue of performance standards.
Congress and DOL chose sesta national standards. Some states are adding new ones
such as youth competencies and follow-up measures. dome questions now being
asked are

How do we income quality of outcomes that will in the Ling run give us evalua-
tion results that show the program did achieve increases in employment and earn-
ings and decreases in welfare alependency?

How do we collect the right data in a timely fashion?
How do we construct a system that takes into account the differences among

areas with regard to economic conditions and client characteristic?
How do we construct a system of rewards and sanctions to provide incentives for

the system to improve services?
What must be watched in the futwee is that new programs will be more expensive

to design, administer and operate and less likely to place large numbers of appli-
cants taw tl'q.4 current approach. Performance standards, therefore, must not be al-
lowed to drive the system unduely.

Finally, permit me to raise some cancerus held by those working in tin, employ-
ment and training fieldboth volunteers arm paid staff:

1. We are all deeply worried that significant funds may be cut from JTPA as
budget and appropriations are settled by Congress. Cutbacks of any size would be
disasterous to an already lean pr./scram and produce a negative rippling effect
throughout the system. The fear of funding cuts applies not only to JTPA but the
Employment Service, the WIN program, Job Corps, and vocational education.

2. Administrative funding stability at both state and local levels is essential. Cost
limitations are too low and the raise and fall of annual appropriations makes an
effective administration impossale. Overhead and fixed costs are necessary to run
any business.

8. Many PICs want to use JIPA funds for upgrading with guaranteed back fill
commitments from employers. The present law and regulations make that impossi-
ble.

4. Title III, the Dislocated Worker program, has become more and more effective
and more vital to the Northeastas increased numbers of plants are closing. The
hew American Unemployment is this ever increasing number of dislocated workers.
Congress must not allow cuts in funds and can make for more reality by dropping
the matching requirements.

5. We have recently learned that th, Department of Tabor expects to severely
reduce the limited amount of training and technical assistance funds now allocated
through national contracts such as the National Alliance of Business, Human Re-
source Development Irstitute, AFL/CIO, the National Governors' Association and
others. This would be penny wise and pound foolish, since states are unable to pro-
vide adequate TA.

6. It is time to experiment with our Unemployment Insurance system and try one
or more efforts at the use of training vouchers, such as the bill introduced by the
Congresswoman from Connecticut. I would also encourage the entrepreneurer
system now utilized in England and France where unemployed, larly eco-
nomically disadvantaged, are permitted to use UI payments and or welfare pay-
ments to start new business of their own.
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7. Once again, I make a plea for pressure on OMB to permit DOL to carry ow the
mandate off Congress for adequate accounting of JTPA results. Sampling will not
work. We need real follow-up of clients and full analysis of results.

8. Congress must not permit DOL to downgrade or elope the Balton regional office
of the Employment and Training Administr.tior w England should not be
second clams citizens to an overpowering prea... slew York and New Jersey.
There is little enough federal support.

Again, I thank you for allowing ale to present my views on the status of JTPA. It
is a bold, new approach to providing human services development through a part-
nership between business and government. Yo it interest in this effort is very en-
couraging. We hope it symbolizes the determination of Congress to continue and
strengthen the federal role in job training.

QUESTIONS FOE CONSIDERATION

1. Are stet:, local, PIC., and community based organizations clearly and appropri-
ately defined?

a. If not, what changes are needed?
State level program administration, local elected officials, PICe, and community

organizations all seem to have a clearly defined role under JTPA. The SJTCC in
Connecticut seems to be searching for its role in the proms.

2. Are intake forms too complicated, too detailed, or too personal?
No. As the State's Administrator we believe the forms are acceptable.
a. If so, what information requested is not needed?
3. Are reporting requirements equal to, less than, or more than those under

CETA?
Reporting requirements are far lees than those under CETA.
a. Should they be altered?
b. If so, how? No. The State Administration requires only those reporting items

mandated by the USDOL and the SJTOC.
4. How is JTPA working with local Departments of Welfare and local school dis-

tricts?
All SDAs have working agreements with local welfare agencies. The effectiveness

of the agreements varies from one SDA to another. See attached.
a. Does JTPA serve workfare clients? If not, why not?
Yes.
b. Has JTPA succeeded in placing long term unemployed and remove them from

welfare? If not, why not?
The client characteristic mix under JTPA in Connecticut is very similar to that

under CETA. Pigs have local school district representation. These bodies are the
final authority in local program design.

5. Who is being served: youth, women, disabled worker, longterm unemployed?
During the first nine months of PY 84 (7/1/84-3/31/85) the Title HA p

statewide has served 4,163 women (56% of total), 966 handicapped (18% of total
4,512 (61% of total) long term unemployed.

6. Who drops out and why?
Dropocts from programs under JTPA do not appear to be a major problem. When

this does occur it is generally because of an individual problem encountered by that
participant

7. Are peop!e eligible to participate not participating? If so, why?
Lack of income while in traimng. This problem is even more prevalent in long

term training programs.
8. Are women and minorities participating in training for nontraditional jobs?
Some SDAs have contracted for p specifically designed to overcome sex

etereotyping. Program mix is a local PIC decision.
9. Does the pressure to place in employment result in significant numbers being

underemployed?
At the present time we do not have follow-up to indicate this is a problem but it

certainly is a possibility given the emphasis on meeting pei ",rmance standards.
10. Is happening? If so, how extensively and why?
Question is unclear
11. Is performance based evaluation working?
We do not believe we have had enough experience in JTPA to determine whether

or not this process is working effectively. We do feel that after we have gone
through the first full 2 year period under JTPA we would be able to more accurate-
ly judge the effectiveness of performance based evaluation. Mostly, yes it works.
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12 Is lack of child care a problem?
This concern has been expressed by some SDAs in Connecticut. Some SDAs pro-

vide child care inwort through locally developed needs based payments systems.
13. How does JTPA address the situation of a client who has no high school diplo-

ma?
There are a variety of program activities available under JTPA for both youth

and adults which address this situation. In particular, there are many exemplary
youth programs which moist dropouts.

14. Is remedial education and I education available?
This is offered in most, if not all, in Connecticut.
15. What proportion of clients need pre-training to overcome other self image

and/or educational deficit problems?
Client assessment information is not collected at the State level. SDAs are under

obligation to service those identified by the PIC as most in need of JTPA programs.
16. Do PIC's have vod data for making choicas?
Good data is availe if the PIC has the resources and the staff to do the 1-e-

search necessary.
a. is labor market analysis available to determine local skill needs?
Yes, it is available and efforts are continuing on a State and local level to improve

upon the data that is necessary to properly carry out this function.
17. Are new and innovative training being stimulated by JTPA?
Many SDA/PICe are using pmformance contracting and competitive bid for

client training and services. Most SDA/PICe are operating one or more exemplary
youth Tryout Employment in the pnvate sector, Vocational Explora-
tion, etc. performance drive under JTPA seems to discourage risk taking and
encourages psvgramming with proven outcomes.

18. Are alternatives to preexisting training programs being considered?
Yes. Many preexisting training programs are not cost efficient by the new ,,TPA

standards. We have seen the emergence of numerous national program operators
that tend to be more economical in terms of cost per job placement and offer sub-
stantial competition to traditional local operators.

19. How does the PIC evaluate the quality of training programs?
This differs in each SDA depending upon the amount of the involvement of each

PIC. Each SDA sets up its own criteria m a plan submitted to and approved by the
JTPA Administrator acting for the Governor. One common measure for evaluation
is the ability to meet national performance standards.

20. How does PIC perform oversight?
Again as in 19 above, the process of oversight differs among SDAs.
PIC Pr am evaluation committees and in some cases PIC staff perform program

ovaMOt
21. Are enough training opportunities available to meet the needs of clients?
No. Funding availability and recent budget reciasiona by the presidential admini-

sitration necessitate prioritizing applicants for service. Such reductions limit client
service and administrative dollars with no reductions in administrative burdens.

22. Who controls your PIC staff?
We are the State JTPA Administrators, therefore this question is not applicable.
22. Has politic. influenced choice or other critical decisions?
I would say to some extent po 'tics has and always will have some influence over

any program that has local and State officials involved. We believe, however, that
for the most part, decisions made on program choices and other critical decisions
have been correct. The political influence in many instances is tempered by the au-
thority of PICT.

24. Is the national wage standard a problem?
We are using the National Model to adjust these standards. However, in some

SDAs this wage still presents a problem. The reason for the problem is that the
Imp data takes all people's wages into account while placements under JTPA are
at the entry level.

25. What follow up do you do after placement?
At the present time we, as the State's Administrator, do not require follow-up. We

do believe that some SDAs are doing follow-up on their own.
26. What are your statistics on retention?
Same as in 26 above.
27. What are JTPA's strengths, succesees, unfulfilled promises?
JTPA is young in terms of evolutionary experience. Without the statistical data it

is difficult to render judgments at this point as to the program's effectiveness. Pre-
liminary experience seems to indicate that training programs under JTPA operate
at less expense per client than CETA. The negative side indicates that far less pe-
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ripheral services are provided to clients primarily due to the cost efficiency motiva-
tion of performance criteria.

Of primary concern from a statewide perspective is the lack of sufficient funds to
fulfill the promises made in the legislation. Facing serious reductions in funding al-
locations for the coming year ao'ne of Connecticut's smaller SDAs may experience
difficulty meeting the need! of this State's unemployed to any significant degree.

Mr. MARTINIEZ. Mrs. Johnson, your testimony is very enlighten-
ing and it also reaffirms what we have heard at other hearings.

At this time, let me take the opportunity to introduce the Honor-
able Gus Hawkins, who is chairman of the full committee, and
Chris Perkins, the Honorable Congressman from Kentucky.

At this particular time, because Mr. Hawkins is on a very tight
schedule, I would like to ask him if he has any questions before he
leaves.

Mr. HAWKINS. Yes, if the Chair will allow me. Thank you very
much.

Mrs. Johnson, I am certainly impressed with your statement.
There are several suggestions, however, I think we should make.

First of all, we are not quite as enthusiastic about the operation
of JTPA as you seem to be on the first page of your statement. I,
unfortunately, do not agree with the assessment as being quite as
optimistic as you suggest. It is possible, and I imagine this is actu-
ally the situation, that it operates a lot better in your particular
area than it does nationwide.

The crafting of the partnership was a very delicate one by the
committee, unfortunately, it has not been accomplished in most in-
stances. I think business is running the JTPA Program. This may
be desirable from the viewpoir t that business has always asked to
run it. Now that they have it, we can assess how well they do with
it. There has been in many areas, and this may not be true in Con-
necticut, an absence of that accountability by local governments to
participate as aggressively in the partnership as we had anticipat-
ed.

However, with respect to other points in your statement, on page
2, you mention& he total absence of stnstipends is clearly making it
very difficult to recruit the disadvan with dependent children.
We certainloyinagree with you. We simp y wanted to point out, since
you are m le g these suggestions to this committee, that the bill,
as introduced, did contain stipends to support the training pro-
grams, particularly for those who would otherwise not be able to
take advantage of the training. So I think that recommendation is
an excellent one. We certainly agree with you. However, we were
forced to eliminate stipends as the basis upon which the President
would sign the bill.

Now, whether or not there is a change in philosophy that would
allow us to make that recommendation again, I am not sure that
that is true. I wanted you to know that thy; absence of stipends was
not due at all to action by this committee or by those of us who
were in the conference committee itself. It was due primarily to
pressUre from the Administration as a means of getting something
signed.

On page 3 of your statement, you make a reference to handi-
capped youths. It is my understanding that the Department of
Labor has issued directives that permit handicapped youths to be
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served as individuals, and not as a family unit. So I think that
within that directive--

Mrs. JOHNSON. That would certainly address the problem.
Mr. HAWKINS. It would address your recommendation which I

agree should be done. The staff of this Subcommittee can check
with the Department of Labor to make sure that, it is being accom-
plished, that the Governors of the various States are well aware of
it and the Governor of your State is among those who are aware of
it.

On the last page, you make reference to JTPA as being off to a
good start. In a sense, you make a plea for additional funding. Un-
fortunately, we don't see that as becoming very realistic. The cur-
rent disposition seems to be to cut back on JTPA. There is a rescis-
sion, requested by the administration, which would reduce the
funding for JTPA even as it currently operates.

We are faced, with the recommendation from the Administration
to reduce the funding for JTPA. At the same time, we are faced
with the recommendation to abolish the Job Corps and WIN and to
allow those groups to compete for funding under JTPA. It is unre-
alistic to expect all of this to be done within the confines of the
administration's policies.

The full Committee on Education and Labor, has recommended
current service funding for JTPA, as well as other programs. If we
can get current service funding, it would at least accomplish some
of the recommendations that you have made. Now, as you well
know, we may not get current service funding; we may get what is
called the freeze, which would be a cut, which would be in com-
plete opposition to what you have stated. I personally would like to
commend you on your statement. I know of your great interest in
this field and I certainly join with you in these very excellent rec-
ommendations and hope that together with the other members of
our committee we can accomplish at least some of these changes.

Mrs. JOHNSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I made it a specific point to address the funding issue. I am not

in agreeTient with the administration's recommendation in regard
to JTPA funding, Job Corps funding, or WIN funding, and I think
particularly at this timeand I agree with you, the program has
gotten off to an uneven start throughout the Nation. I held these
hearings with a very negative attitude myself. I did not expect to
find people at the point in their thinking that they were. They are
much more optimistic than they were 9 months ago, very much
more so than 1 year ago, and in the case of the dislocated workers
program, are actually moving very, very well and effectively, and
so I did want to point out that we could use more money there to
accomplish a very important program and I think it is important
for us in Government to know that and to fight for that. You can
certainly count on me to be an ally in your

Mr. HAWKINS. Well, I think you should be aware that the admin-
istration is seeking_ to cut the dislocated worker program

Mrs. JOHNSON. Yes, I am aware of that.
Mr. HAWKINS [continuing]_ To $100 million. Which again travels

in the opposite direction. JPTA currently provides a 10 percent al-
lowance which would allow the displaced homemaker, for example,
and the others that you referred to in your statement, to partici-
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pate in the programs This would be for individ- -als who are not
economically disadvantaged. So, I think we have already accom-
plished your recommendation. I am not sure, however, how your
State has reacted to this position.

Some States have not taken advantage of it. There have also
been the incidents where some States have State requirements
that, in a sense, make the program even more restrictive. If Con-
necticut is not taking advantage of this 10 percent, either because
of a State requirement or because some of the PIC's are not aware
of the operation of this provision in the law, I would certainly sug-
gest that it be vbrified.

Mrs. JOHNSON. I did mentionuse the word "stipend" because I
am well aware of the history of that debate. I used it in this con-
text, to s t that perhaps stipends for daycare specifically,
linked withAFDC recipient training, might be a measure that the
Congress might find acceptable in the long run. Maybe not this
year, but next year, and that would go a long way toward making,
when linked with the AFDC stipends, making training possible, es-
pecially if there were transitional support.

So I did use it in that context with almost its double implica-
tions.

Mr. HAWKINS. Now you realize that
Mrs. JOHNSON. That is right, and there is a little money for that.

I think it would be good if JTPA more forthrightly addressed, par-
ticularly, the day-care support issue.

Mr. HAWKINS. Thank you.
Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Hawkins. As always, you add to

the enlightenment of all of us on the committee.
Mrs. JOHNSON. Yes, I really appreciate it very much.
Mr. MArririzz. I have a couple of questions. You mentionedand

I have heard it with regard to other thingsthat the determina-
tion of positive termination and how people, when they have re-
ceived training under one programand I think you referred to it
as coventuringdo not get credit for going on to another program
which is the basic goal to begin with.

MTS. JOHNSON. That is right.
Mr. MARTINEZ. Could you elaborate on why it is that they have

that attitude, why that they don't give that credit, and why it is so
important?

Mrs. JOHNSON. I have been kind of unable to locate in the Feder-
al law any precise Federal requirement for this rigid definition of
positive termination. On the other hand, the States feel very
strongly that this is the way they have to implement the
ance rd uireent the Feral law. I think

perform -
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haqpositmive terminatiod could either be counted by

both programs or that the people would be differently counted,
then there are ways to deal with the problem.

Right now, your success is judged by how many positive termina-
tions you are able to come up with, and since each program kind of
applies independently to the PIC, each program independently has
to justify itself and prove its success. Since only employment place-
ment can be counted as a positive termination, that means that
someone has to take a loss if a participant is going to be allowed to
participate in, first, the basic skills development program, and then
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a training program. That is not what we intended. I think we can
clarify that.

Mr. MARTINEZ. I imagine that we might need some kind of clari-
fying language in some way, either through a resolution or some
other method, to encourage what you just suggested because I
happen to agree with you. I think that it is ridiculous not to con-
clude that that person has gone on to other training after develop-
ing basic skills. It is a positive success. I think we ought to do that.

One other thing that we have heard in recent budget delibera-
tions is that JTPA can replace Job Corps and Job Corps training.
Do you agree with that?

Mrs. JOHNSON. Frankly, I think it is too soon to determine that. I
think JTPA has a way to go to really get on its feet. The tone of
my testimony is very optimistic because the problems that I found
can't be addressed by us. They are State implementation problems
and they are being addressedthings are better than they were a
year ago, but the program still has a way to go to get on its feet, to
be an aggressive training instrument for all the groups targeted.

I think only thereafter can we look and see whether or not, for
instance, when funds could be dovetailed into JTPA or not. In some
States, they are doing that and it is working out very wellat least
that is what I understand that Massachusetts is doing.

I think to compel that at this point would be unwise.
Mr. MARTINEZ. One of the criticisms we have heard over a period

of time since this program was implemented is that initially a lot
of local governments felt that the Federal Government should back
off some and allow them to implement their programs and develop
the programs themselves, now they feel there is not enough direc-
tion and standards set by the Department of Labor. Do you feel
that that is good or do you think there are some areas where the
Department of Labor should step in and set some standards and
give some guidance or technical assistance?

Mrs. JOHNSON. I think that was a big problem for a while be-
cause nobody had ever dealt with a Federal program that was as
unprescriptive as this program, but now that they are beginning to
actually make their own decisionsnow, for instance, in the Hart-
ford region, this coventuring is really taken off.

One of our problems actually in Connecticut is getting business
to stay involved because it has been a rather bureaucratic pro-
gram. We are beginning to get over that and in Connecticut, at
least, it really is not run by business. At least, that is not my per-
ception, and the balance between business providers and State and
local governments still has yet to mature, but each sector has at
times had a very strong voice and we are getting some creative and
aggressive new training programs out there and some very solid
opportunities, so I would hate to see major changes that would
cause a major rethinking of these structures that have developed,
because I think that would compromise the progress that has been
made.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you.
Mrs. JOHNSON. Thank you very much.
Mr. MARTINEZ. At this time, Chris, do you have any questions?
Mr. PEIUUNS. I don't really have any questions as such, Mr.

Chairman. I am interested, and I fully concur with the portion of
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your statement that dealt with the need to expand day care facili-
ties and day care care in the transitional period. I think that is one
area that we are not currently addressing that needs to be ad-
dressed because we are hitting and missing a huge segment of
people out there.

I am not really sure that JTPA gces far enough. I suppose I may
have an inclination to think back to the good old CETA days in
some respect, but I think it is a good program and I certainly am
pleased that the gentlelady has come to share her feelings with us
and express interest in this program that we all believe is at least
a step in the right direction.

Thank you very much.
Mrs. JOHNSON. Thank you. Thank you for your
Mr. Mawrnaz. I would like to thank you also, and I do agree

with much of your testimony. I believe that you would be a great
advocate for encouraging the administration to see things in the
same light.

Thank you.
Mrs. JOHNSON. Thank you. I appreciate that.
Mr. MARTINEZ. At this time, we have our first panel of witnesses:

Mr. Richard Fogel and Mr. Bob Cook. Would you come forward,
please.

Mr. Richard Fogel is Director of Human Resources Division, Gen-
eral Accounting Office, in Washington, DC, and Mr. Cook is project
director, Westat, Rockville, MD. At this time, who would like to
start?

Mr. Fog 11.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD FOGEL, DIRECTOR, HUMAN RE-
SOURCES DIVISION, GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE, WASH-
INGTON, DC, ACCOMPANIED BY GASTON GIANNI, GROUP DI-
RECTOR, GENERAL ACCOUNTING OFFICE, HUMAN RESOURCES
DIVISION; AND ROBERT F. COOK, PROJECT DIRECTOR, WESTAT,
ROCKVILLE, MD

Mr. FOGEL Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I would also like to introduce Gaston Gianni, who is the Project

Director in the GAO who directly deals on a day-to-day basis with
JTPA.

If it is acceptable to the subcommittee, I would like to have our
full statement inserted in the record and I will just briefly summa-
rize for you our key points.

Mr. MARTINEZ. With no objection, so ordered.
Mr. FOGEL. On March 4 of this year, we issued a report to the

Congress on initial implementation of title II of the act. For the
most part, it appeared to us that implementation of JTPA had pro-
ceeded smoothly and the act's provisions had been followed.

We noted, however, several areas that may warrant future atten-
tion. First, a frequently mentioned concern initially in the employ-
ment and training community was that certain features of JTPA,
such as its emphasis on performance standards and the limitation
on funds per participant support assistance, may influence service
delivery areas to select those persons needing only limited employ-
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ment and training assistance to succeed in employment, rather
than those needing more extensive assistance.

We did not collect detailed data during this effort that would
allow us to determine whether this practice, in fact, existed, but we
did note that some service delivery areas used assessment methods
and selection procedures that could be used to select those persons
most likely to succeed, while others used procedures that focused
on those most in need of training.

Second, although the act does not require, no means of compar-
ing program effectiveness among the various States has been estab-
lished. States are not required to use uniform methods of setting
performance standards for service delivery areas. As a result these
areas' performance may not be comparable across State bound-
aries.

Also, the Labor Department's nationwide longitudinal study of
former JTPA participants is not designed to allow comparison of
effectiveness among the States. We believe these types of compari-
sons are often useful to the Congress in observing how this pro-
gram is operated and cm. idering possible changes.

Last, we note that JTPA emphasizes the development of an inte-
grated system that coordinates the services of employment, train-
ing, education, and other human service agencies. A substantial
number of JTPA agencies in the States, though, had not entered
any new coordination agreements or arrangements with many such
agencies in the early stages of the program's development.

We also issued a report to Senator Kennedy on April 22 of this
year that presents information about the Employ ruent and Train-
ing Administration's May 1984 reduction in force hr reorganization
and problems that members of the job braining community antici-
pate, including low morale, lost program expertise, and reduced ef-
ficiency. In this regard, these experts expressed concern that the
remaining staff may not have the expertise needed to provide ade-
quate technical assistance.

Another concern expressed was that while the States have been
given primary responsibility for operating JTPA, they had not been
provided adequate guidance in carrying out this responsibility. Re-
cently, we have been asked by the former chairman and former
ranking minority member of this subcommittee to develop informa-
tion on the kind and extent of assistance, other than training,
being provided to JTPA participants and the differences in partici-
pant characteristics between those served by the former CETA Pro-
gram and this program.

We have completed our field work and data analysis and are now
drafting a rerJrt which sve hope to have completed drafting by the
end of May.

We noted some differences in the characteristics of CETA and
JTPA participants. Between fiscal year 1980 and fiscal year 1982,
the percentage of high school graduates in CETA increased from 53
percent to 60 percent and increased to 62 percent under JTPA. Be-
tween fiscal year 1980 and fiscal year 1982, the percentage of in-
school youth in CETA decreased from 18 percent to 12 percent, but
then increased 15 percent under JTPA.

The percentage of school dropouts in CETA between fiscal year
1980 and fiscal year 1982 decreased slightly from 30 percent to 29
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percent, but then dropped significantly to 23 percent under JTPA.
There are more detailed statistics on all of the comparisons at-
tached to our statement.

Title IIA of the act sets a limit of 15 percent on service delivery
areas' total expenditures for administrative costs and a combined
limit of 30 percent for their administrative costs and participant
support assistance. However, only 39 of the 544 3erviue delivery
areas responding to our -uestionnaire requested waivers during the
9-month transition period that was between October 19d8 and June
1984, and only 32 requested waivers for program year 1984 to go
above that limitation. States approved all but two of those.

Over 90 percent of the 544 respondents were providing some as-
sistance to JTPA participants in the form of cash payments and/or
support services during the 9-month transition period. The most
commonly provided were transportation, about 85 percent; child
care, 77 percent; handicap services, 57 percent; and health care, 53
percent. Over 80 percent of the service delivery area respondents
were providing cash assistance to participants.

During the transition period, service delivery areas spent, on the
average, about 7 percent of their IIA funds for participant support
assistance and they advised us that they planned to mcreas1 this
amount to about 8 percent during the current program year.

But in addition, some service delivery areas have sought addi-
tional means for providing participant support assistance. During
both the transition period and program year 1984, 60 percent of the
responding service delivery areas had at least one agreement with
such agencies as the welfare department, rehai &Ration agency, or
community-based organizations to provide support assistance. We
believe the continuing expansion of coordination efforts among the
various agencies involved in JTPA might help ameliorate some of
the problems that the Congresswoman, for example, was address-
ing in terms of providing some of the coordinated assistance that
might help some of these participants.

In response to our questionnaire, about 450 service delivery area
administrators and 80 private industry council representatives
gave us their opinions on the impact of the participant support lim-
itations. They generally believe that the limitations have caused
some program changes and have affected the type of individual
being served under JTPA.

JWA participants are likely to be less economically disadvan-
taged than CETA participants. More than 70 percent of these offi-
cials believe that as a result of the limitations, participants were
more likely to be highly motivated to actually seek employment
than CEM participants because they were not getting contmuing
payments for being in training programs More than half also be-
lieve that the limitations have caused them to make greater use of
resources from other agencies to provide support services to the
participants.

About half felt that training progr are shorter than they
should be. In addition, 58 percent of the administrators indicated
that because of the limitations, they could not offer certain train-
ing programs. However, only 39 percent of the private industry
council representatives believe the limitations affected their ability
to offer certain training programs. About half of the officials re-
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sponding to our questionnaire said that the overall impact of the
limitations has been negative, but a quarter of them said the limi-
tation had a positive impact, so there is really a mixeu view among
the respondents.

I would just like to briefly mention two other issues. We are re-
viewing title III, the dislocated workers program, and under that
act, States have wide latitude in implementing local projects and
little information is now available to the Congress on how that pro-
gram is working. We are trying to collect data to give the Congress
more information on this program, and as you know, current
budget proposals from the administration won significantly
reduce funding for title III.

In justifying this reduction, the administration stated that suffi-
cient unused carryover funds were available in the program from
prior years. Now, we have only completed preliminary work in 10
States and those 10 States receive about 30 percent of the total
funding for this title, but our work shows so far that 92 percent of
the title III funds received through program year 1984 have been
obligated as of March 31, 1985. So that does not tend to support the
contention that there is extensive unused carryover funds, at least
in those States.

I would also like to briefly mention several other efforts we have
underway which we would hope would assist the subcommittee in
i continuing oversight of JTPA. We have undertaken a review of

ith employment competency systems. WI?. plan to look at the
States' use of the 22 percent title RA funds set aside for assistance
to State education agencies, incentive grants and technical assist-
ance to service delivery areas. We will be looking also at the char-
acteristics of those being esrved under JTPA, relati'i to the total
eligible population, and we are planning to do work ill the coordi-
nation area and we would certainly look forward to working very
closely with this subcommittee in these efforts.

That concludes our prepared statement.
[The prepared statement of Richard L. Fogel follows:]

SUMMARY OF GAO TESTIMONY BZIORE THE Houtz SUBOOMMITITZ ON EMPLOYMKNT
OPPORTUNITIIS REGARDING GAO's WORE RELATING TO THE JOB TRAINING PARTNER-
SHIP Acr

The Job Training Partnership Act, the nation's primary federally funded employ-
ment and training program, gives GAO broad oversight responsibilities for review-
ing programs authorized by the act. To da*.i, GAO has issued two reports on JTPA.
One provides baseline data on how title Mit was implemented at the state and local
levels. Fi-r the most part, it appeared that the implementation of JTPA had proceed-
ed smoothly and the act's had been followed. The other report presents
information about a May I reduction-in-force and reorganization within the De-
partment of Labor's Employment and Training Administration. The report also pre-
sents concerns of the job training community about Labor's ability to implement
JTPA.

GAO also has two studies of JTPA underway. The first compares participant char-
acteristics to those under the Comprehensive Employment and Train Act and
analyze. the support am : ^' J provided to participants. The second studies the im-
plementation of t)+_ -. _ .a dislocated workers program.

Information developed to date shows that (1) moat service delivery areas were pro-
viding some type of support assistance (such as child care and transportation) to
participants and doing so within the act's spending limits, (2) few delivery areas re-
quoted waivers to the act's limitations on support assistance, (8) JTPA serves a
higher percentage of high school graduates and students and a lower percentage of
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dropouts and unemployed than did CETA, and (4) in 10 static visited thus far, 92
percent of their title M funds had been obligated.

STATEMENT OF RICHARD L FOGEL, LY:RECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, I am pleased to be here today
to assist in your oversight of the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA). My testimo-
ny focuses on our work involving (1) the initial implementation of the JTPA title
HA program for disadvantaged youth and adults, (2) the participant support lin::
tions under JTPA and the participants being served, and (3) the implementa4ior of
the dislocated workers program under title III. I will also provide some informatior,
on our planned future efforts.

INITIAL IMPLEMENTATION CF JTPA

On March 4, 1985, we issued a retort to the Congress on the initial implementa-
tion of title HA entitled "Job Training Partnership Act: Initial Implementation of

for Disadvantaged Youth and Adults" (GAO/HRD-85-4). This report, based
on data in early 1984, provides descriptive baseline data on the JTPA pro-
gram and how it was being organized and implemented by the states nationwide
and by selected service delivery areas at the local level. For the most part, it ap-
peared that the implementation of JTPA had proceeded smoothly and the act's pro-
visions had been followed. We noted, however, several areas that may warrant
futin e attention.

First, a frequently mentioned concern in the employment and training %immuni-
ty was that certain features of JT714, such ae ;sa emphasis on performance and the
limitation on funds for participant support assistance, may influence service deliv-
ery areas to select, from among eligible applicants, those persons needing only limit-
ed employment and twining assist Ice to succeed in employment rather than these
needing more extensive assistance. We did not collect data during this effort that
would allow us to determine whether this practice existed. However, we noted that
some service delivery areas visited used assessment methods and selection proce-
dures that could be used to select those persons most likely to succeed while others
used procedures that focused on those most in need of training. For example, one
delivery area used basic skills assessment results to select participants in greatest
need of remedial education. Another area used assessment results to select partici-
pants needing only limited employment and training assistance.

Second, although the act does not require it, no means of comparing program ef-
fectiveness among the various states has been established. States are not required to
use a uniform method of setting performance standards for service delivery areas.
As a result, the delivery areas performance may not be comparable across state
boundaries. Also a Department of Leber nationwide longitudinal survey of former
JTPA participants is not designed to allow comparisons of effectiveness among the
states. Thus, valid camparable data may not be available to evaluate the relative
effectiveness of various program approaches.

Lastly, we noted that, although JTPA emphasizes the development of an integrat-
ed system that coordinates the serviced of employment, training, education, and
other human service agencies, a substantial number of state JTPA agencies had not
entered any new coordination agreements or ments with many such agen-
cies. We recognize that our information was gathered in the program and that
such arrangements may evolve over time. If they do not, however, the integrated
delivery system envisioned by the act may not be achieved.

RXDULTION-IN-FORCE AT THE EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

We also issued a report to Senator Kennedy on April 22, 1985, entitled "Concerns
Within the Job Training Community Over Labor's Ability to Implement the Job
Training Partnership Act" (GA0/7MD-85-61). This report presents information
about the Employment and Training Administration's May 1984 reduction-in-force
and reorganization and problems that members of the job training community an-
ticipate, including low morale, lost program expertise, and reduced efficiency. In
this regard, they pointed out ths1t the remaining staff may not have had the exper-
tise needed to provide technical assistance. Another concern expressed was that
while the states have been given primary responsibility for operating JTPA, they
have not been provided adequate guidance in carrying out this responsibility. At the
same time, they are now subject to close scrutiny through audits and evaluations by
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Labor's Office of Inspector General, the Employment and Training Administration,
and our Office.

PARTICIPANT CHARACTERISTICS AND ASSISTANCE PROVIDED

We were asked by the Subcommittee's former Chairman (Mr. Hawkins) and
former Ranking Minority Member (Mr. Jeffords) to develop information on (1) the
kind and extent of assistance (other than training) being provided to JTPA partici-
pants and (2) the differences in participant characteri4ics between those served by
the Comprehensive Employment and Training Act (CL. A) and JTPA.

We have completed our fieldwork and data analysis and are now drafting a
report. In summary, we found that JTPA was serving a higher percentage of high
school graduat4.3 and in-school youth and a lower percentage of dropouts and unem-
ployed than under CETA. Furthermore, few service deliver, areas requested waives
on the assistance limitations set out in the act; moat areas were providing some type
of support assistance to participants (such as transportation and child care) and
doing so within the act's limitations.

Participant characteristics.We compared the characteristics of enrollees in
CETA titles DB and C and JTPA title RA. We were able to compare 148 of the 191
service delivery areas that had kept the same geographical boundaries and thus
were not so likely to have had a chanp in the eligible population.

We noted some differences in the cracteristics of CETA and JTPA participants.
The hugest differences were in the educational status of participants, the percent-
age of youths served, and the percent..ge of unemployed. Mween FY80 and FY82,
the percentage of high school graduates in CETA increased from 53 to 60 percent
and continued to increase to 62 percent under JTPA. Between FY80 and 82, the per-
centage of in-school youth in C'ETA decreased from 18 to 12 percent but then in-
creased to 15 percent under JTPA. The percentage of school dropouts in CETA be-
tween FY80 and 82 decreased s4htly from 30 to 29 percent but they dropped sig-
nificantly to 23 percent under JTPA.

The percentage of youths served under CETA had decreased from 46 to 39 percent
between FY80 and FY82, but stabilized at 40 percent under JTPA. The percentage
of unemployed in CETA had increased from 74 percent in FY80 to 80 percent in
FY82, but dropped to 72 percent under JTPA, near the same level served under
CETA in FY80.

On other characteristics, either CETA and JTPA enrollee& were the same or any
differences were small (a case of 2 percent or less). The chart attached to
statement provides additional cleiaild on our comparisons.

Few waivers requested.Title RA of the act sets a limit of 15 percent on service
delivery areas' total expenditures for administrative costs and a combined limit of
30 percent for their administrative costa and paticipant support assistance. A deliv-
ery area, however, may exceed the overall limitation if the private industry council
requests a waiver for support assistance based on conditions set forth in the act.
Only 39 of the 644 service delivery areas responding to our questionnaire requested
waivers during the 9-month transition period (October 1, 1983, to June 80, 1984), and
only 32 requested waivers for program year 1984 (July 1, 1984, to June 30, 1985).
States approved all but two waiver requests during each program period. These
waivers were not approved because the states determined that the justification for
the requests did not meet the criteria set forth in the act.

Typo and extent of support assistanceOver 90 percent of the 544 questionnaire
respondents were providing some type of insistence to JTPA parbicipante in the
form of cash payments and/or support services during the 9-month transition
period. The services moat commonly provided were transportation (85 percent), child
care (77 percent), handicapped services (57 percent), and health care (53 percent).

Over 80 percent of the service delivery area respondents were providing cash as-
sistance to participants. The size of payments varied greatly among delivery areas
and ranged from $1 to $300 per week; ',..11e median weekly payment was $80.

During the transition period, service delivery areas spent, on an average, about 7
percent of their title IIA funds for participant support assistance. They planned to
increase this amount to 8 percent during the current program year. However, actual
or planned expenditures for support assistance varied substantially among delivery
areas. For example, during the transition period, 35 areas did not spend any of their
title HA funds on such assistance, whereas 75 spent at least 15 percent. In compari-
son, during program year 1984, 42 areas did not plan to spend any title IIA fends
for participant support assistance, whereas 113 planned on spending at least 15 per-
cent.
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Some service delivery areas have sought additonal means for providing partici-
pant support assistance. During both the transition period veer 1984, 60 percent of
the responding service delivery areas had at least one agreement with such agencies
as the welfare department, rehabilitation agency, or community-based organizations
to provide support assistance. In edditon, 25 areas reported receiving additional
funds from such agencies as the state departments of social services, public welfare,
employment and training, health, and education, city and county governments and
private industry. Fifty service delivery areas expected to receive such additional
funds during program year 1984,

Opinions of local "IPA tificials on support assistance limitations.In response to
our questionnaire, about 450 eorvice delivery area administrators and 80 private in-
dustry council representatives gave us their opinions on the impact of the partici-
pant support limitations.

Service delivery area administrators and private industry council reprisentativee
generally believed that the limitations on participant support assistance have
caused some program changes and have affected the type of individual tieing served
under JTPA. About half of these officials indicated that as a result of the limita-
tions, JTPA participants are likely to be less economically disadvantaged than
CETA participants. More than 70 percent of these officials believed that as a result
of the limitations, participants were likely to be more highly motivated than CETA
participants. More than half also believed that the limitations have caused them to
make greater use of resources from other agencies to provide support services to

P
participants.

rnaTrning the impact of the limitations on the service delivery areas' training
programs, about half of the delivery area adminstrators and private industry coun-
cil representatives that, as a re' of the limitations, training pro-
grams are shorter =. they ruel:11 be. In addition, about 58 percent of the r iminis-
trators indicated that because of the limitations, they could not offer certain train-
ing rroograammee . However, only 39 percent of the private industry council representa-
tivespbelieved the limitations affected their ability to offer cerain training programs.
About half of the officials responding to our questionnaire said that the overall
impact of the limitations has been negative, while about a quarter of them said the
limitations have had a positive impact

DISLOCATED WORM PROGRAM

We are also reviewing the title Ill dislocated workers program. Under the act,
states have wide latitude in implementing local projects, and little information is
available on how the program is working. We are collecting data on all title M
projects in order to provide the Congress with information on (1) project administra-
tion, (2) service mix, and (3) participant selection, characteristics, and outcomes.

As you know, cu-rent budget proposals from the administration would significant-
ly reduce funding for title HI In justifying this reduction, the administration stated
that sufficient unused carryover funds were available in the rogram from prior
years. However, preliminary work in 10 states showed that about 92 percent of the
title In funds received through program year 1984 had been obligated as of March
31, 1985. These states received a total of $127 million, or 30 percent of the $427 mil-
lion in title III fund, va leble to all states for fiscal year 1982, transition year 1984,
and program year 1984.

OTIER JTPA STU:: DEI

Mr. Chairman, I would also like to mention several other efforts that we have
underway or that are about to begin regarding JTPAyouth competencies, state-
administered program participants comparod to nonparticipants, and co-
ordination of A with other employme-t-related services.

In the area of performance standards, de have undertaken a review of youth em-
ployment competency systems which can be wed in evaluating youth training pro-
grams. Our objectives are to determine (1) the role of the states in establishing
youth employment competency systems, (2) the extent to which service delivery
areas are developing such systems, (3) the type of competencies being established
and their effect on performance standards, and (4) the availability of data
necessary to set such standards.

We also plan to look at the states' use of the 22-percent title HA funds set t.Ade
for (1) assistance to state education agencies, (2) incentive grants and technical as-
sistance to the service deliver)! areas, (3) training and placement of rider workers,
and (4) state administrative activities. During this work, we also will obtain
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mation on the type of technical assistance states have received, the source of such
assistance, and whether additional assistance is needed.

A third assignment will look at the characteristics of those being served under
JTPA. As mentioned, a concern voiced often in the job training community is that
JTF A may be serving those needing only limited assistance. This assignment will
assess who is being served and who is not being served from the eligible population.

A fourth area in which we are planning work is coordination activities under
JTPA. Our initial work indicated that c4xm.ination may not be cscurring to the
extent envisioned by the legislation. During this assignment we will look at state
and local efforts to coordinate employment and training, education, and related
human services activities and identify ways to improve coordination among pro-
grama that will result in tangible cost savings.

Mr. Chairman, this concludes my prepared statement. We would be pleased to re-
spond to any questions.

COMPAR SON OF SELECTED ENROLLEE CHARACTERISTICS IN 148 SERVICE DELIVERY AREAS UNDER

CETA AND JTPA

CtswEloriabc

Maas pont deal ls

CETA FY

1910
CETA FY

1912
1TPA TY

1914

Ear abmal status:
High school Eradiate 1 53 1 60 62
Student '18 12 15
Dropout 30 1 29 23

Age 16-21: Ruth 46 39 40

EmPliameht: DherlOald 1 74 1 80 72
Was mapient:

Arty Indic assistance. 29 31 33
AFDC. 23 22 23

Other.

Female 1 53 51 51

Nonwhite 49 1 50 48

Single Plant 20 22 22
Renck/wed 10 10 9
Unemployment compensation claimant 1 6 7 9

I Idaho a stabetka4 **oat dale Mow Its Iwo the man that is, loss lbw a 5-porcant probabity Owl the canna a On to
chanct

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you very much, Mr. Fogel.
Mr. Cook.
Mr. Coox. Thank you for inviting me to testify. I will be brief

and only summarize my printed remarks.
Since October 1988, Westat has been carrying out a process study

of the implementation of the Job Training Partnership Act for the
Employment and Training Administration of the Department of
Labor. The observation on which my remarks are based took place
in 20 randomly selected States and 40 service delivery areas within
those States in the summer of 1984 at the end of the transition
year and at the beginning of program year 1984.

The executive summary of the report on that °beet ation listing
the specific States and SDA's, as well as the staff involved, was
submitted with this testimony.

In terms of findings at the State level, we noted the Governors
were directly involved in the early implementation decisions re-
garding JTPA. They are now less frequently involved and rely
more on ;,Heir agency staff and the State Job Training Coordinat-
ing Council to oversee the program.

28



25

At the same time, the State councils are beginning to show less
dependence on administrative staff and to exert more control over
JIM .policy. At the service delivery level, there has been a s'
cant increase in the role of the private industry councils. We deter-
mined that 60 percent of the PIC's had an equal or primary role in
the determination program plan for program year 1984.

Private sector influence on the PIC's is felt in several ways. One
is a result orientation with emphasis on placement and cost. I will
refer back to this later on in terms of targeting and programs; an
emphasis on efficiency and coordination with other programs and
agencies; and third, a marketing of the program to private employ-
ers.

In the long run, this latter marketing effort may be the most im-
portant if it can increase the credibility of the program in the eyes
of private employers.

With regard to targeting in the pp , to examine this issue
and selection issues, we estimated e title IIA eligible population,
using the March 1984 current population survey as a basis. We also
made comparable the fiscal year 1981 CETA characteristics from a
continuous longitudinal manpower survey. We then compared
these to the characteristics of terminees for the transition year
under JTPA froza the job training longitudinal survey. This latter
alsodata management being done by Westat.

The findings from that exercise, which are included in the sum-
mary, JTPA participants, as were CETA participants, are more dis-
advantaged than eligible nonparticipants. Virtually all JTPA par-
ticipants are economically disadvantaged. Relatively little use is
being made of the window for serving the nondisadvantaged.
Ninety-four percent=ely.

Youth comprise 40 -,ercent of JTPA participants, com-
pared to 20 percent of the eligible population Relative to CETA,
that compares and we found no evidence 01 isJection along the
lines of demographic characteristics as between those two sets.
There is, however, a slightly higher proportion of high school grad-
uates and a slightly lower proportion of public assistance recipients
in JTPA.

Further, the mix of participants has been affected by institution-
al factors that relate to intangible characteristics such as motiva-
tion.

First, 87 percent of the SDA's in the sample have centralized
intake systems and only one-fourth are doing any form of outreach.
Second, in many cases, the eligibility verification and assessment
process represents a screening procedure of its own. Third, the
classroom training and on-the-job training have become the largest
parts of the JTPA Program with their related selection procedures.

In terms of service mix during the transition year, 40 percent of
the participants were engaged in classroom training; 22 percent
were on-the-job training which represents an increase; 21 percent
were in job search assistance; only 7 percent were in work experi-
ence; 10 percent in a miscellaneous or other categoq. Nationally,
69 percent of adults and 57 percent of youths entered employment
upon termination at wages of $4.77 and $4.06 respectively, $4.53
averaged across both groups.
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In terms of performEnce and performance standards, essentially
all States adopted the DOL performance measures. A number of
States have added additional performance measures for pay year
1984, about 40 percent of the States. For the sample SDA's that we
examined as a part of this study, 79 percent met the entered-em-
ployment rate standard; 89 percent met the cost-per-entered-em-
ployment standard; 71 percent met the average-wage-at-placement
standard; 80 percent met the welfare-entered employment standard
for adults. Among youth, 73 percent of the SDA's met the entered-
employment standard; 46 percent met the positive-termination
standard; and 74 percent met the cost-per-positive-termination
standard.

What this means is that overall, then, the SDA's did better on
entered employment and cost and less well on wages. They also did
better on their adult measures than their youth measures. This ap-
pears to be at least partly due to a lack of having youth competen-
cies in place.

The use of performance-based contracting is also increasing. It is
being used by more than two-thirds of the SDAs in the sample.

With regard to the title III program for dislocated workers, title
III has continued through the transition year as a centralized State
program. In most States, funds are distributed on a project basis
through an RFP. Only 21/2 percent of the funds were allocated by
formula to the service delivery areas.

The problems of slow build-up that were observed in early 1984
seem to have been corrected. By the end of the transition year, the
sample States had 6 percent of their title III funds reserved for
contingencies, 61/2 percent in projects that have not yet begun to
enroll participants, and a little over 2 percent unobligated.

Half the sample States report slow program eicpenditures, howev-
er. This is due to several things that we were able to observe. One
is parent underreporting of expenditures, both to the State and
beyond; second, the inexperience of some program operators; and
third, the unwillingness of some technically dislocated. workers to
participate in the program, at least early on.

That is a short summary of my remarks. I would be happy to
answer any questions you might have.

[The prepared statement of Robert F. Cook follows:]

PRIKPAILD STATEMENT OF ROBERT F. COOK, SINIOR ECONOMIST, WESTAT,

Since October 1988, Weetat, Inc. has been carrying out a process study of the im-
plementation of the Job Partnership Act for the Employment and Train-
ing Administration of the U.S. ent of Labor. This study covers both the
Title EA program for the economically disadvantaged as well as the Title III pro-
gram for experienced workers dislocated by technological change or world competi-
tion.

Several observations have taken place. The first was of State level implementa-
tion of the program in December 1983 and January 1984 in twenty randomly select-
ed States. A subsequent observation was made in twenty-two Service Delivery Areas
(SDAs) within those States in February and March 1984. Reports covering those ob-
rervations were issued in June 1984.

A second phase of observations, on which this testimony will focta, occurred in
the summer of 1984 at the end of the Transition Year in twenty States and forty
Service Delivery Area, within those States.

The observations on which this research is based were carried out by a network of
Field Associates, mostly university professors and researchers who reside in the
areas selected for study. The Executive Summary to the phase two report, submitted
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with this testimony, lists the Associates as well as the specific States and Service
Delivery Areas included in the study.

RAU "FINDING'S

The first phase of the study fotiod that Governors took an active role in the early
decisions regarding the implementation of JTPA, such as the location of the pro-
gram within the State bureaucracy, appointments to the State Job Training Coordi-
nating Council, and Service Delivery Area designations. As the implementation of
the and early mandatory tasks were completed, direct involve-
men=hme 4r=tdhas become less frequent and they have relied more on their
administrative appointees and the State Job Training Coordinating Council to over-
see theprograin.

The State Councils played a largely advisory role in the early implementation of
JTPA. But, by the lbsOnnin of Program Year 1984, Councils in eight States in the
sample were beginning to Oily policymaking and oversight roles. However, in most
States, the Council remains dependent upon State administrative staff. This is par-

thortorresult of high turnover and poor attendance, particularly among the

nearly half
membStatesers

.
of the Councilsa situtation noted by the Associates in

the ember.
On balance, however, the Councils are beginning to exercise more control over the

direction and ar lent of JTPA, the challenge is to maintain interest among the
Council member., and provide them with enough timely information to allow them
to set policy without overloading them with administrative detail.

IDA ORGANIZATION

There is a good bit of diversity in the orrudzational arrangements at the Service
Delivery Area level. Among the forty Service Delivery Areas in the sample the dis-
tribution of administrative entities is as follows: A State agency in five; a multi-
county agency in five; a county agency 'm six; a city agency in nine; the Private
Industry Council in six; and various other agencies (boards of local elected officials,
community college, war e& organizetions, etc.) in nine.

Effective roles for the administrative entity and the Private Industry Council
(PIC) depend separating administration from policymaking. At the outset of
JTPA the entities, having more experience with employment and
training programs, were at a clear advantage relative to the PIC& By the end of the
transition year, in most Of the SDAs, the PIC. and administrative entities had estab-
lished cooperative working relationships.

The Service Delivery Area subcontractors under JTPA continue to be largely a
subset of the old CET subcontractors. Those who are no longer subcontractors are
those that did not provide training, 'hose that did not have good performance "track
records," and those that were viewed by the PIC members as lobby groups for spe-
cial interests. Also excluded were those who could not or would not operate under a
performance-based contract or meet the 15 percent limit on administrative costs.

PRIVATIORCIOR INVOLVING:NV

Privatesecte, efluence in JTPA at the State level is exercised through the State
Job Training Coordinating Council. Privaiesector influence on the was

strong in States where the role of the Council was judged to be pri-
mary or squeal. Overall, privatesector influence is judged strong in sight States,

Vin six States, and weak in six other States. Future trends in itesector
utitnce appear to be directly tied to the role that the State Ceuncila play in JTPA.

There has been a significant improvement in the role of the Private Industry
Councils sin.* the beginning of the Transition Year. At the time of the earlier ob-
servation, only 27 percent of the PIOa in the sample had achieved a primary role in
JTPA planning. At the beginning of ,Program Year 1984 the PICs emerged as a pri-
mary or dominant actor in twenty roar of the forty SDAs (80 percent). The roles of
the PIC and local elected officials were characterised as equal In seven SDAs. In
only nine SDAs was the role of the PIC thought to be purely

Privattreector influence en PICT is felt in several ways. Tdhveicaate sector has
typically pushed for a "busiziess4ike" °dentition, by which the program brings to-
gether the customer (the potential employer) and the product t of a pro-
gram partici ). Privatesector members also emphasize efficiency and prevention
of cods. "Marketing" the program is another important privatesector
role. W' ;le this latter effort is just beginning, it may Ferment the ultimate effect
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of private-sector influence if it can increase the credibility of the program among
private employers.

TARGETING AND SELecTION

To obtain information on the targeting and selection processes in the program we
estimated the eligible population using the March 1984 Current Populaticn Survey.
An estimated 23 percent of the U.S. population fourteen years old and older (or 42.3
million persons) satisfied the JTPA Title IIA economically disadvantaged eligibility
criteria et some time during 1983. Estimated enrollment in JTPA during the 9-
month transition year was 585,700. Therefore, at an annualized rate, JTPA could
serve slightly lea than 2 percent of the Title HA eligible popdation.

Comparison of the characteristic of the Title le population with the
characteristics of JTPA participants from the Job Training Longitudinal Survey
Quick Turnaround data indicates that males and blacks are relatively

Teseated in the participant population, while whites and older individuals are WePider::
represented. Youths (fourteen to twenty-one years old) are substantially overrepre-
sented in the participant population (89.8 percent) compared to the elle popula-
tion (19.4 percent). Public assistance recipients are almost proportionally represent-
ed in the participant and eligible populations while AFDC recipients are re tiv
overrepresented among participants. At the same time, the proportion of_high
school graduates is higher far .participants than for eligibles. Virtually all JTP
participants are economically disadvantaged and relatively little use is be.g made
of the 10 peizent "window" for serving nondisadventaged individuals.

A comparison was also done between the characteristics of JTPA transitionr
participants and those of fiscal year 1981 CETA pants. Both JTPA and CETA
participants were more disadvantaged than nonparticipants, as measured by
family income and unemployment ewrience. The proortion of long-term unem-
PleYed participants is higher under JTPA than under CETA. However, the p.opor-
tion with no unemployment (not in the labor force) prior to program entry. was sub -
stantially under CETA. The proportion of public assistance redpents was
hitheeyronarbiLhelfroportion of high school graduates lower among CETA participants.

self-celection, the mix of participants has also beer affected by several in-
stitutional factors. First, most SDAs have centralised their intake activities. Only
five SDAs in the sample allowed the actual service providers to handle intake. Fur-
ther, o* one-fourth of the SDAs indicated that they were doing any outreach.
These efforts add to administrative costs, which are limited, but do not contribute to
placements. Second, the eligibility verification and assessment used by the SDAs. in
and of itself represents a screening pace. for intangible characteristics such as
motivation. Third, the service mix may also affect participant selection and screen-
ing. On-the-job and classroom training have become the Wiest parts of the .'TPA
program and, uently, the related selection procedures apply to a large part of
the participant on. The apparent rise in the proportion of participants with
a high school degree is probabbrelated to the increasing importance of on-the-job
and classroom training in the JTPA service mix.

=VICE urn AND PROGRAM OUTCOME

Two-fifths of all new enrollees. during the nine-month transition year entered
classroom training programa. Twenty-one percent of the new enrollees entered job
search and 22 percent were enrolled in on-the-job training (OJT) programs. In re-
sponse to restrictions on subeidized employment, only 7 percent of the participants
were enrolled in work experience.

Increased emphasis on CUT has resulted from WAS need to establish high place-
ment re'es, develop closer ties with private business, and provide partidpents with
support in the face of stipend restrictions. Program data from JTLS and the Process
Study indicate that over 20proent of r'84 enrollees entered OJT This
compares to 9 percent in MA's fled fiscal year, and 11 percent in through

. These proportior ire slightly higher if public service employment and work
experience are excluded rom the CITA aftures.

On-the-job training is shorter under A. Findings from the Job Training Longi-
tudinal Survey indicate the median length of may of 11.8 weeks for terminate from
OJT. Nis data estimate a median length of training that is three weeks less than
median length of stay under CETA in FY 80 as measured by, the Continuous Longi-
tudinal Manpower Survey. Both data sets exclude those with lees than eight days of
Program participation.

A sample of OJT contracts from the process Study revealed a median length of
training contracts of thirteen weeks. More than half of the contracts in the sample

32,
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of OJT contracts from the Process Study had wages below the performance wap of
the SDA. These short-term low-wage contracts helped achievement of high place-
ment rates at low coot per placement. However, they did not help the SDAs meet
performance wage standards.

The sample SDAs are divided in their response to the legislative limits on support
payments. Officials in almost three-quarters of the SDAs feel the stipend limits
weed out those program eligibles who are more interested in collecting a stipend
than learning a skill. These EIDAs usually avoid payment of any type of stipend and
provide needried payments on a limited scale.

The remaining SDAs indicate the support limits are too restrictive and, in some
cases, serve as barriers to enrolling youths and hard-to-serve adults. Four of these
SDAs sought waivers of the 30 percent umit on nontraining costs, while others have
taken steps to of the limits.

YOUTH IMPLIMINTATION muss

JTPA requires that 40 t of expenditures from the Title HA funds not sub-
ject to set-aside be devoted to serving youths under the age of twenty-two. This per-
centage may be adjusted by the States to reflect the youth population of the individ-
ual SDAs. An adjustment was made to the youth expenditure requirement in 73
percent of the SDAs in the sample. The range of the adjusted values that resulted is
from a low of 26 percent to a high of 52 percent. In those cases where an adjustment
was made, two-thirds were adjusted downward from 40 percent In addition, SDAs
may petition the State for a waiver of their youth expenditure requirement howev-
er, only two of the SDAs in the sample requested a waiver. In both cases it was
gran ted.

Virtually all of the Associates reported that the SDAs felt strained by the youth
expenditure requirement. However, two-thirds, (63 percent) felt that they would
meet it.

Tins III PILOGRAMIUNG

The development of the Title III Dislocated Worker Program as a centralized,
State-run program continued through the transition year. Although four States
changed their methods for organizing Title HI resources during the Transition Year,
the major deciaionmaldng roles were reserved for officials in State In most
States, funds were distributed on a project basis. Only 2.5 percent the funds were
allocated by formula to the Service Delivery Areas.

The targeting of the dislocated worker program by the States during the transi-
tion year was as follows. Five States narrowed the targeting in the legislation by
developing criteria that distinguished between workers who were from the
labor market and workers experiencing periodic spells of unemp ent Seven
States did not expand or narrow the legislated targeting, but imp y targeted
through projects selected by the State. Eight States reiterated the Federal targeting
guidelines.

Nineteen of the twenty sample States were subject to a matching requirement
The sources most often used to generate the match continue to be unemployment
insurance benefits paid to program participants; the employer's share of OJT wages;
and various in-kind contributions. Only three States appropriated a match.

The problems of slow build-up observed during winter and spring 1984 seem to
have been corrected. Of the $94 million available to the twenty States for Title III,
only 6 percent was reserved for cont'ngencies and a little over 2 percent was uncom-
mitted as of the end of the Transition Year.

Half of the sample States report slow program expenditure rates. One reason for
the apparent low expenditure appears to be underreporting of expenditures in Title
111. Beyond that, the reasons program operators were unable to spend their alloca-
tion include the inexperience of some service providers in conducting intake and eli-
gibility determination, the unwillingness of dislocattd workers to participate in the
program, and the numbers of new program operators.

PSUOILMANCH MANDARINS

sample States adopted the seven Title HA measures specified by the
During the Transition Year (with one 'on attributable to oversight) all

of labor. All sample States the Secretary's seven measures for
SP784re,gowever, 40 percent of the sample States adopted additional measures. These
additional measures include "significant segments" standards, job retention, net
impact, job placement in new or expanding industries, and expenditure standards.

50-544 0-86-2
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Six of the twenty sample States tly did not use the DOL regression adjust-
ment methodology in establishing standards. These States took the national
standards rather than the model-adjusted standards as a point of departure, and
often made adjustments to these national figures. These States may have done so
because they did not understand the DOL adjustment methodology.

standard d the transition year and many SDAs substantially overperformed on
Almost sample SDAs met their adult cost per entered employment

this measure. However, almost 80 percent of the SDAs failed to meet their adult
wage standard. Performance on the youth measures tended to be somewhat lower
than an corresponding adult measures. Lem than half of sample SDAs met their
positive termination rate standard for youths. This is related to the lack of estali
lishsd
which L." Olt =thrpositive terminations.

"stems and to tranders to summer youth programs,

More than two-thirds of sample SDAs used performance-based contracting. The
use of performance-hired contracting is dearly increasing.

Few standards for Title III were specified during PY84; those that were set were
almost always taken directly from Title HA specifications.

That is a brief summary of findings. I would be pleased to answer any questions
you may have.

3
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The observation of the implementation of the Job

Training Partnership Act (JTPA) on which this report is based

covers twenty randomly selected States, stratified by region and

size au measured by transition year 1434 (TY54) Title IIA and

III allocations. It also covers an observation of forty Service

Delivery Areas (SDAs) within the twenty States. The SDAs were

selected, to the extent possible, to be representative by region

and size as measured by 2T44 Title III allocations. The

stratification is not exactly proportional due to the presence

of single-SDI States in the sample, and the results should not

be taken as proportionally representative of the universe of

SDAs. Table 1-3 in Chapter 1 shows the sample ODRA by region of

the country and size category. It also indicates the States in

the sample.

This observation took place, using a network of Yield

Associates and common reporting forms for the States and SDAs,

from June through August 1944. Therefore, the observation

covers the implementation of the program during the transition

year as well as early plans for program year 1954 (PT$4). This

round of the research also covers State and SDA activities under

Title IIA as well as the dislocated worker programs under Title

III of JTPA.



This report is the outcome of the second phase of a

two-year study of the implementation of JTPA. An earlier round

of research -- which included ar %.bservation in the States in

January 1984 and an observation in SDAs in February and March

1984 -- has been the subject of earlier reports from this

project.

Following are the major findings from this second round

of observations.

State Findings

The earlier research found that Governors took an

active role in the early decisions regarding the implementation

of JTPA, such as the location of the pror,ram within the State

bureaucracy, appointments to the State Job Training Coordinating

Council (SJTCC), and SDA designations. As tht implementation of

the program proceeded and early mandatory tasks were completed,

direct involvelient of the Governors has become less frequent and

they have relied more on their administrative appointees and the

State Council to run the program. In most cases, the

preuominant concerns of Governors have continued to be that the

program (1) not turn into a "bad CETA programs, and (2) serve

politically important groups and be consistent with the

programmatic priorities of the Governor. Consistent with this.

the Governors have, for the most part, retained discretionary
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control over the set-aside funds under Title II% and the

allocat'on of the funds under Title III.

State Councils played a largely advisory role in the

early implementation of JTPA. But, by the beginning of PY$4,

Councils in eight States in the sample were beginning to play

policynaking and oversight roles. Swayer, in Avet States, the

Council remains dependent upon State administrative staff. This

is partially the result of high turnover and poor attendance,

particularly among the pUblic-sector members of the Councils --

a situation noted by the Assce!iates in nearly half the States.

Another reason is that some original private-sector members are

being replaced with lower level executives who then must invest

the tine to learn about the program. When the Councils do

exercise their authority, their recommendations are rarely

overturned by the Governors.

On balance, -he Councils are beginning to exercise more

control aver the direction and content of JTPA; the challenge is

.o maintain interest among the Council umbers and provide then

with enough timely information to allow then to set policy

without overloading them with administrative detail.

The imploynent service (ES) has been sore a service

provider than a major actor in JTPA. During the transition

42



39

year, it was the administrative entity in three rural States.

There ire some relatively minor Otani,. in Employment

Service-JEWS cooperation. These resulted from mergers or ODA.'

use of Wagner-Peyser Section 7(b) funds to buys" cooperation by

supporting local Employment Service staff who otherwise might

have been cut.

The earlier report indicated that the States attempted,

not entirely successfully, to rationalise the boundaries of the

SDPs. During the transition year, seven States altered the

boundaries of areas served by ar cies such as the Employment

Service or economic development districts to conform to SDA

boundaries.

With regard to the use of set-aside funds, most State

activity was concentrated on the 6 percent incentive grants and

the S percent vocational education funds. Few States changed

the older worker or administrative set-aside arrangements.

While fewer than one-fourth of the States used any of the 6

percent money for incentive grants during the transition year,

eighteen of the twenty States in the sample will make incentive

grants in PYS4 based on SDA performance during the transition

year. Further, as the 'Tesult of interest group pressure, States

are placing more emphasis on targeting services to hard-\o-serve

groups and on imposing service requirements that, in essence,

are additional performance requirements.

43



40

Wine of the twenty States changed the arrangements

surrounding the 5 percent vocational educatics set-aside. In

three of the States, the changes increased the involvement of

the RDAs in the administration of these funds.

state -SDA Relations

In the early stages of program implementation during

calendar year 11143, the states seemed to fall into three main

groups in terms of state-SDa relations.

o In the first group, the Governor regarded
MA as an opportunity to reform the entire
employment and training system. In these
cases, the Governor tended to centralise the
job training function, either in his or her
office or in a single cabinet department. At
the same time, that effort usually led to
significant decentralising of authority to the
ins and their Ms.

o In a second group of States, the Governors
were also actively involved in implementing
the ZTPR program, but for somewhat different
reasons. Jere the Governor was less concerned
with building an administrative partnership than
with attaining specific political or policy
goals that required a substantial
centralisation of authozity at the state
level.

o In a tar4 group of States, the Governors
tended not to be actively involved in early
implementation of qTPA. Rare the arrangements
that bad prevailed under CITA and the balance
between State agency and local reponsibilities
remained largely unchanged.

There now appear, to be a Neettling in" of the STYR

program. sons States with centralised operations during the

44
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early transition period are allowing SDKs to have more

discretion. Other States, however, that were less centralised

at the outset, have assumed more responsibility. There was less

diversity among the States in their modes of operation in the

summer of 1,S1 than existed at the beginning of the program.

Some areas of conflict between the States and SDKs

during the transition year have been identified. One, related

to the liability issue, is provision of regulations, guidance,

and definitions. At one extreme, some States have left the SDAs

to themselves and have been slow to respond to questions in

order to avoid assuming liability for any decisions that are

later erroneous. This has fostered SDK associations and other

pressure on the State. At the other extreme, some States have

actively set definitions, issued regulations, and so on. SDKs

in these States complain that the State is taking away their

autonomy.

Another area of conflict is management information

systems. Some States have attempted to establish a system that

tracks sawn participant through the program. The RDAs see this

as burdensome; because data are sometimes entered by the staff

of the subcontractors who are not techically skilled, this

requirement also may lead to problems of inaccuracy. In other

cases, the system is so expensive that, particularly in some

rural areas, only the basics are put in placeenough to keep

the State from getting into trouble, but not enough to give SDA

45
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officials a good understanding of the operation of their

programs. Also, in some States the systemss are voluntary and

not all SDAs participate, either because it is too expensive or

because they believe that their system is better than the

State's.

A final source of problems concerns the separation of

participant and financial data. The Spas feel burdened by the

two systems and the states feel they are not getting the

information that they need, for example, to monitor the 40

percent youth expenditure reguiresent.

ODA Oraanisation and Politics

Organisational arrangements for the grant recipiert and

administrative entities vary widely among the sample SDAs. A

summary of these arrangements is as followss

A State agency is the grant recipient and
administrative entity in five ODA*. Pour of
these SDAs comprise an entire state or a *ajar
portion of one.

o The grant recipient and administrative
entity is .Axse fors of sulticounty agency
in five States. The agency might be a
development agency, a council of governments,
or a cooperative education agency. The
number of counties covered ranges from two
to fifteen and are all rural.

o A county agency is the grant recipient in
seven SDAs and the administrative entity in
six. One is a balance-of-county IDA, two are
counties that include large cities, and two
are multicounty SDAs in which one county takes
the lead.
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o A city agency is the grant recipient
in eight BDAs ant the administrative entity
in nine. Bost of these are previous CETA
prime sponsors. In one, the BDA includes the
county surrcunding the city as well as an
adjacent rural county.

o The Private Industry Council (PIC) is the
grant recipient in seven BDA, and the
administrative entity in siz. These are the only
cases in which the PIC itself administers the
program and operates at least part of it.

o Some agency other than Cose identified above
is the grant recipient in eight ODA. and the
administrative entity in nine. These include
local elected official (LEO) bor.rds, PIC/L20
boards, community colleges, a city/county
employment and training office, a Community
Action Agency, a chamber of commerce, and a
six-county consortium.

The PIC, in the sample BDAa ranged in size from

thirteen to forty-three members with a median size of

twenty-three members. Often the size of the PIC was increased

by including elected officials in multij+ sdictional BDAs.

Effective roles for the administrative entity and the

PIC depend upon separating administration from policymaking. At

the outset of JTPA the administrative entities, having more

experience with employment and training programs, were at a

clear advantage relative to the PICs. This led to some strained

relations when the administrative entity was involved in

policymaking. The experience of the transition year has changed
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this. By the end of the transition year in most of the ODAs,

the PICs and administrative entities had established cooperative

working relationships. The PIC, deal with policy and stay out

of day-to-day adaininistration, and the administrative entities

run the program and leave policy setting to the PICs. Rovever,

in nearly one - quarter of the ODA*, this is a continuing problem

and in at least three ODAs, the staff of the administrative

entit: actually set policy.

On balance, PIC-staff relations were good. In nearly

half of the SDAs in the sample, either the PIC or the PIC in

combination with the local elected officials served as the

administrative entity, or the PIC had its own staff. In other

cases, the staff are employees of the local government or a

aultijurisdictional agency that responds to a council of

governments, or the local elected officials sit as members of

the PIC. It is in these latter Ms that tensions are likely to

arise between the PIC and the staff, where the PIC is demanding

its ova staff or where the local elected official is primary to

the PIC. In jurisdictions with multiple local elected

officials, the primary concern of the officials is "dividing up

the money. In jurisdictions with a single strong local elected

official there may be disagreements with the PIC over, for

example, designating general assistance recipients as a target

group for the program.
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As in the earlier observation on BDA iii,lementation,

the subcontractors under JTPA continua to be large4 a subset of

the old CETA subcontractors. Those who are no longer

subcontractors are those that did not provide training, those

that did not have good performance "track recorded, and those

that were viewed by the PIC members as lobby groups for spacial

interests or who tried to use political pressure to maintain

their subcontractor status. Also excluded were those who could

not or would not operate under a performance-based contract or

meet the IS percent limit on administrative costs. These

factors seem to have eliminated subcontractors for whom there

sight have been a concern over liability for ineligible

participants, so that liability is no longer an issue in

subcontractor selection.

Relations between the Mks and the Employment Service

remain highly variable, although there is a good probability of

long-run improved relations. In sixteen of the forty SDAs, the

relationship waa characterised as positive as evidenced by

coordination, cooperative planning, or services provided by the

Employment Service. Fourteen SDAs had a relationship

characterised as negative, as evidenced by either an absolute

minimum of cooperation or open conflict. In the remaining tan

BDAs, the relationship was mixed, with some areas of cooperation

and others in which conflict occurred. In the area of PIC
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involvement in the review and approve) of the local Enloyment

Service plan, the results were not nixed. In thirty-three of

the forty SDKs, PIC input in') the Employment Service plan was

judged to have been minimal. In may two SDAs was there

extensive involvement in the preparation of the Employment

Service plan, and the involvement in one was acrimonious.

private-Sector Involvement

Private-sector influence in JTPA at the State level is

exercised through the State Job Training Coordinating Council.

The role of the SJICC in JTPA relative to the role of the

Governor continues to vary among the twenty sample States. In

four States the Council was the primary influence on planning

for JTPA. Seven States were found to have a Council whose role

was equal with that of the Governor. In the nine remaining

States, Associates report that the Council vv. purely advisory

to the Governor.

Private-sector influence on the Council was

characterised as strong in States where the role of the Counzil

was judged to be primary or equal. Overall, private-sector

influence is strong in eight States, modest in six States, and

weak in six other States. Future trends in private-sector

influence appear to be directly tied to the role that th State

Councils play in JTPA.
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State emphasis on link between JTPA and economic

development is seemingly more rhetorical than real. In only a

few States could a strong link between economic development

goals and JIM programs be found.

There has been a significant turnaround in the PIC role

since the beginning of TYS4. At the time of the earlier report,

only 27 percent of the PICs in the sample bad achieved a primary

role in JTPA planning. The current findings indicate that the

PIC has emerged as a primary or dominant actor in twenty-four of

the forty ODA' (60 percent). The roles of the PIC and local

electa3 officials were characterized as equal in seven SDAs. In

only nine ODAs was the role of the PIC thought to be purely

advisory. In the twenty-nine PICs where PIC members, previous

experience in CETA could be determined, 41 percent bad been

involved in MA's Title VII program. This experience might be

the key fact ,r in the PICs' emergence in JTPA planning and

program operation.

Only two of the nine PIC. that were purely advisory at

the time of the earlier observation are still in that category.

Among the six PICs that were advisory but moving toward equal

status, only one is still advisory. In ODA. where this positive

movement was not elserved, the primary reason seems to be
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unwillingness of local elected officials or other controlling

authorities to share power.

Private-sector influence in PICs is felt in several

ways. As Congress hoped, the private sector has typically

pushed for a "business-like" orientation, by which the training

program brings together the customer (the potential employer)

and the product (a placement). The previous program was

perceived as emphasising the needs of the participant.

Private-sector members also empl'Asise efficiency and

prevention of disallowed costs. The emphasis on efficiency

seems related to more cooperation and less respect for

bureaucratic rules and "turf." It also leads to sharing

responsibility for the program with local elected officials;

this may reduce political influences, such as the pressure of

certain groups or agencies, and improve contractor selection.

"Marketing" the program is another important

private-sector role. While these efforts are just beginning,

they may represent the ultimate effect of private-sector

influence if they can increase the credibility of the program

among private employers.
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TarattimsasliiialstioLlisaswil

JTPA provides more latitude in setting criteria and

choosing participants than any other Federal training program of

the last tvo decades. It gives the States wide discretion, and

most States pass this discretion on to the SDhs.

P.m estimated 23 percent of the D.S. population fourteen

years old and older (or 42.3 million persons) satisfied the JTPA

Title ZIA economically disadvantaged
eligibility criteria at

some time during 1983. Estimated enrollment in JTPA during the

9-month transition period was 585,700. Therefore, at an

annualised rate, JTPA could serve 1.5S percent of the Title YIA

eligible population. It should be noted, however, that the

e ligible population is the technically eligible population, not

the population in need or those who would apply for

participation in JTPA.

Comparison of the characteristics of the Title IIA

e ligible population, as estimated from the March 1584 Current

Population Survey, with the characteristics of JTPA participants

from the Job Training Longitudinal Survey (JTLS) Quick

Turnaround (QT) data yields the following information. Males

and blacks are relatively overrepresented in the participant

population, while whites and older L'dividuals are

underrepresented. Youths (fourteen to twenty-one years old) are

substantially overrepresented in the participant population
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(34.4 percent) compared to the eligible population (19.4

percent). Public assistance recipients %re almost

proportionally represented in the participant and eligible

populations while AFDC recipients are relatively overrepresented

among participants. At the same time, the proportion of high

school graduates is higher for participants than for eligibles.

A comparison was also done between the characteristics

of JTPA transition year participants and those of fiscal year

1941 CITA participants. Seth JTPA and OITA participants were

sore disadvantaged than eligible nonparticipants, as measured by

family income and unemployment experience. The proportion of

long-term unemployed pnyticipants is higher under JTPA than

under CETI. Mowevor, the proportion with no unemployment (not

in the labor ford) prior to program entry was substantially

higher under CITA. The proportion of public assistance

recipients sas higher and the proportion of high school

graduates lower among CrTA participants.

Sixty -five percent of the States in the simple

augmented the tarcst group provisions stated in the law.

One-fifth added a requirement that the SDAs serve certain

significant segments of the population. On average, the States

specified 2.6 groups, most often AFDC recipients, youths,

minorities, d mits, and general assistance recipients.

Service Delivery Areas were more likely to add

signifioant segments requirements or additional target groups

than were the States. Only three SDAs did no targeting beyond
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the groups specified in the legislation. Eleven SDAs added

significant segments requirements. On average, SDAs targeted

3.5 ',pacific groups, most often AFDC recipients, youths,

handicapped individuals, dropouts, minorities, or older

workers. SDAs target more groups, in part, because any State

targeting is reflected locally, and because SDA officials are

more accessible to interest groups that lobby for inclusion of

particular groups.

The prevalence of targeting en dropouts, older workers,

and the handicapped is of interest alts* it is often more

difficult to get good placeeent rates for these groups. Despite

this, the SDAs are specifIlJg these groups, rather than the

States, even though it is the SDAs that are subject to the

performance standards.

Most Mks have centralised their intake activities.

Only five SDAs in the sample allowed the actual service

providers to handle intake, a practice that was typical under

CETA. The tendency tower: central intake appears to be related

to concern over liability for admitting people who turn out to

be ineligible. Further, only one-fourth of the Mks indicated

that they were doing any outreach. These effort, add to

administrative costs, which are limited, but do not contribute

to placements.

The eligibility verification and assessment used by the

ODA', in and of itself, represents a screening process for
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intangible characteristics such as motivation. Often, an

applicant (typically a walk-in) must assemble and produce a

substantial amount of information to verify eligibility.

Further, the asessmont process may involve several interviews

and testing sessions. This becomes a screening process or

',funnel,' that has its own set of election effects.

The serv.s..ce mix may also affect participant selection

and screening OJT and classroom training have become the

largest parts of the JTPA program anO, consequently, the related

selection procedures apply to a larger part of the participant

population. In typical OJT programs, several participants are

referred to the employer who selects the person to be trained.

Further, providers of classroom training have entry requirements

such as a cwrtain level of reading and math ability, a high

school degree or GED, or a driver, license. The apparent rise

in the proportion of participants with a high school degree is

probably related to the iLcreasing importance of OJT and

classroom training in the JT.A service mix.

Virtually all JTPA participants are economically

disadvantaced and relatively little use is being made of the 10

percent "window" for serving nondisadvantaged individuals.

Beyond this, the Associates were asked to assess the extent to

which RDAs were concentrating on one or the other of three

categories of partici.lant: (1) those ready to enter

unsubsidized jobs at tie time of application to JTPA, (2) those

who would benefit most from the training provided by the
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program, and (3) those most in need of extensive training and

supportive services to become employable.

Half of the SDAs in the sample indicated that they were

concentrating on those most likely to directly benefit f.om the

training and find a job afterward. Six SDAs appeared to be

selecting the most job-ready among the eligible participants.

These jurisdictions relied heavily on OJT as a service strategy

and focused on job placement as a major goal.

In eight SDAs, the Associates reported neentrated

attomft. to serve the most needy in the eligible population.

However, even this is a matter of definition; in some

jurisdictions the program operators indicated that among the

most needy "the most placeable were preferred.**

Minor exceptions occurred. One jurisdiction's strategy

vas to select individuals who were not job ready and make them

employable. Two other RDAs indicated that they planned to

provide training for the target groups that they bad selected

for service. finally, two RDAs indicated Lhat they would

provide service ftt, anyone who walks in the door."

)n interesting, but not Lev, of targeting is to

use diverse entry crit:ria differing toy the type of training

offered and purposely structure the program to serve more than

cos group. Several SDAs clearly recognised the differences
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among the job ready, those who would benefit the most from

training, and the most needy among the eligible population and

tailored different types of training to these groups. In

addition, a number of the 8DAs indicated that while, in general,

they attempted to serve one group or another, they also ran

smaller programs for the most needy in the population.

There were always special programs for the hard to

employ under CETA, so this kind of programming is not new;

however, it appears to be a more conscious strategy under JTPA

due in part to the need to meet the required performance

standards and in part to the greater ability to tailor programs

to local needs and mesh JTPA with other activities.

There are two main strategies for running special

programs. The first may be dem= _ad as a "weighted average',

approach. Part of the programming is designed to provide the

more job-ready participants with short, low-cost service and

place thee in unsubsidised employment. This approach not only

provides needed services to the job-ready but also allows the

8DA to mast the performance standards. It thus allows them to

provide programs for the ',riskier', individuals -- those who

require more intensive .izrvice or have less chance of being

placed -- and still satisfy the entered employment and cost per

placement standards. For example, if 53 percent of participants

who are job-ready are put in OJT, an activity with an average 80

percent placement rate, and 47 percent of the most needy are put
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in a remedial education program with a 28 percent placement

rate, the weighted average placement rate for both program

components is SS percent -- the national placement standard for

adults.

The second approach, which appears to be more

prevalent, provides generally smaller programs for the most

needy in the eligible populatio-. The bulk of the progir,nt is

operated for those most likely 4 benefit from training. If

performance standards are to be met, only a relatively small

amount of resources is left over for an expensive and intensive

program for those in need of training or remedial education.

Often their special programs are targeted, as noted above, to

those with especially severs barriers to employment such as

dropouts, the handicapped, offenders, displaced homemakers, and

older workers.

These programs have the advantage of meeting the

performance standards set by the Federal Department of Labor,

the State, and the PIC and still providing some service to the

most disadvantaged. They may be important, especially where

interest groups for disadvantaged persons are involved in

program decisions. This type of programming is also

advantageous to SDAs because it often is at least partially

supported by 6 percent (for hard to serve groups) or 3 percent

sot-aside money, which does not cone under the performance

standards. Kowever, enrollees are served under Title IIA and

can be included in the enrollee and terminee characteristics

report.

50



56

Service Mix and_Progrtua Outcomes

Complete enrollment and termination data by program

activity for the transition year were available in only nineteen

of the forty SDAs. The remaining twenty-one SDAs reported

either a complete absence of summary program data (seventeen

SDAs), or incomplete data for many categories of service mix

(four SDAs). State requirements that SDAs report termination,

characteestics, and cost data for youths, adults, and welfare

recipients was the major reason that SDAs did not summarise data

by program activity from individual participant files. Many of

the findings in this report related to service mix and program

outcomes for the transition year are reported from the Job

Training Longitudinal Survey (JTLS).

Total JTPA enrollments during the nine-month TYS4

period were 585,700. Two-fifths of all new enrollees during

this period entered classroom training programs. Twenty-one

percent of the new enrollees entered job search and 22 percent

were enrolled In OJT programs. In response to restrictions on

subsidised employment, only 7 percent of the participants were

enrolled in work experience.

The overall entered employment rates for both youth and

adults were well above the national performance standards (57

and 69 percent, respectively). However, adult terminees from

classroom training and youth terminees from work experience did

not meet the overall national standard (47 and 34 percent,

respectively).
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Program operators were unsuccessful in placing adult

participants in jobs with wage levels equal to or greater than

the national wage standard of $4.90. For adult terminees from

programs other than OJT and classroom training, the average

termination wag, fell short of the national standard by at least

twenty cants. Moreover, the average placement wigs for

terminees from OJT was slightly lower than the average wage of

terminees from classroom 'kills training programs.

increased emphasis on 037 has resulted from SOW need

to establish high placement rates, develop closer ties with

private business, and provide participants with support in the

face of stipend restrictions. Program data from JTLS and the

Process Study indicate that over 20 Percent of wY84 enrollees

ertered OJT programs. This CORWIN' to II percent in MA's

first fiscal year, and 11 percent in 1277 through FY79.

The majority of OJT contracts were negotiated with

mall businesses. They were generated through the use of

in -hours job developers or by OJT subcontractors.

A sample of OJT contracts from the process study

reveals a median length of training contracts of thirteen

weeks. JTLS findings estimate a median actual length of stay of
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11.8 weeks for terminus f.oa OJT. Truncated JT1.8 data

(excluding those with less than eight days in the program)

estimates a median act,n1 length of training that is co much as

three weeks less than median length of stay under CETA in FY80

as measured by the Continuous Longitudinal Manpower Survey

(CLMB).

More than half of the contracts in the sample of OJT

contracts from the process Study had wages below the performance

wage of the SD. These short-term low -wage contracts helped

achievement of placement rates at low costs per placement.

Howcver, they did not help the SDAs meet performance wage

standards.

The sample SDAs are divided in their response to the

legislative limits on support payments. Officials in almost

three-quarters of the !IDA' feel the stipend limits weed out

those program eligibles who are more interested in collecting a

stipend than learning a skill. These SDAs usually avoid payment

of any type of stipend and provide need-based payments on a

limited scale.

The. remaining SDAs indicate the support limits are too

restrictive alai, in some cases, serve as barriers to enrolling

youths and bard-to-serve adults. Four of these SDAs have sought

waivers of the 30 percent limit on nontraining costs, while

others have taken steps to offset the limits.
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Youth Implementation. Issues

JTPA requires that 40 percent of expenditures from the

Title Ilk funds not subject to sot-aside be devoted to serving

youths under the age of twenty-two. This percentage may be

adjusted by the States to reflect the youth population of the

individual SDAs. An adjustment vas made to the youth

expenditure requirement in 73 percent of theSDAs in the sample.

The range of the adjusted values that resulted is from a low of

26 percent to a high of 52 percent. In those cases where an

adjustment was made, two-thirds were adjusted downward from 40

percent. In addition, SDA may petition the State for a waiver

of their youth expenditure requirement; however, only two of the

(IDA, in the sample requested a waiver. In both cases it was

granted.

Virtually all of the Associates reported that the RDAs

felt strained by the youth expenditure requirement. A little

less than two- thirds, (63 percent) felt that they would meet it,

however.

The following !actors help explain why an 013A Cid or

did ti.Z. meet the youth expenditure requirement:

o Some ODA (and some States) did not take the
requirement seriously. Two Associates
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indicated that their SDAs did not meet the
requirement because they didn't try, believing
that there would be no penalty.

o Several SDAs had problems with subcontractors
in cases where performance-based contracting
Jail used. In some cases, subcontractors would
no' undertake a performance-based contract to
serve youths. In others, subcontractors
could not recruit enough youths to meet the
requirement.

o Special recruiting or administrative procedures
for youths helped SDAs meet the youth requirement.

o Ninety percent of the SDAs that established
large programs specifically for youths met the
requirement while 88 percent of those that
had little or no special youth programming
did not. Some SDAS did not establish special
youth programs because of a conflict with other
SDA priorities (such as emphasis on OJT) or the
limits on expenditures for work experience
and supportive services.

Almost 80 percent of the States in the sample

anticipated problems with meeting all the youth performance

meaures, particularly the positive termination rate and cost

per 3ositive termination. Several of the state rep..*ts cited

the lack of established youth competencies as the main r.,son

for their State's failure to meet either the positive

terminat2on standard or the cost per positive termination

standard for youths.
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Title III Programming

The development of Title III as a centralized,

State-run prog..am continued through the transition year.

Although four States changed their methods for organizing Title

III resources during TYO4, the major decisinnmaking roles were

reserved for officials in State agencies.

The allocation arrangements for the transiticn year

were as follows:

o Funds were distributed on a RFP/project
basis in five States.

o Specific geographic areas or plants were
targeted and funds were allocated on a
RFP/project basis in six States.

o Funds were distributed to State agencies
and private operators for the purpose of
olerating a Statewide program an seven States.

o Predetermined allocations were distributed
to units of local government on a project
basis in one State.

o Seventy-five percent of the Title III
allocation waa formula funded to the SDAs
and 25 percent was distributed on a RFP
basis in one State.
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The targeting of the dislocated worker program by the

States during the transition year was as follows:

o Five States narrowed the targeting in the
legislation by developing criteria that
distinguished between workers who were
displaced from the labor market and workers
experiencing periodic spells of unemployment.

o Seven States did not expand or narrow the
legislated targeting, but implicitly targeted
through projects selected by the State.

o Bight States did not develop a strategy for
serving priority groups of dislocated workers,
choosing instead to reiterate Federal targeting
guidelines.

Nineteen of the twenty sample states were subject to a

matching requirement. The sources most often used to generate

the match continue to be unemployment insurance benefits paid to

program participants; the employer's share of OJT wages; and

various in-kind contributions. only throe States provided any

real match.

The problems of slow build-up observed during winter

and spring 1984 have been corrected. Of the $94 million

available to the twenty States for Title III:

2.5 percent has been allocated by formula directly
to selected SDAs:

16.7 percent is earmarked for projects within SDAs
funded through a State PPP;

6.5 percent has been committed to projects that had not
begun to enroll participants as of August 1984:
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55.8 percent has been committed to projects that had
begun enrolling participants;

10.4 percent was committed to projects that have
completed operations:

5.9 percent is beirg reserved for contingency funding
by the States: and

only 2.3 percent had not yet been committed.

A number of States eliminated their build-up problems

by distributing program funds to existing employment and

training agencies, such us local Employment Service offices, and

by refunding Title III projects organized in 9Y83. Other States

indicated that early build-up problems were merely a function of

the newness of the program.

Half of the sample States report slow program

expenditure rats . One reason for the apparent low expenditure

appears to be underreporting of expenditures in Title III.

Beyond that, the reasons program operators were unable to spend

their allocation include the lack of experience of some service

providers in conducting intake and eligibility determination,

the unwillingness of dislocated workers to participate in the

program, and the numbers of new program operators.

Title III Lervice strategies are varied. Some

operators focus on employment development activities such as job

search. Other providers are developing programs designed to

retrain Title III participants, such as an and occupational

Skills training.
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The number of SDAs receiving Title III funding in TY84

remains small. Fourteen of the forty SDAs operate a combined

total of twenty-three projects. Sixteen of these projects have

projected enrollments of fewer than 200 participants. The level

of communication and coordination remains low between the

sDA-administered JTPA programs and the Title III programs

operated by private, StAte, and local agencies outside of the

SDA delivery system. SDAs ttat operate both Title IIA and Title

III programs typically treat the dislocated worker program as a

supplement to their better-funded Title IIA programs.

Performance Standards

During the transition year (with one exception

attributable to oversight) all sample States adopted all of the

seven Title IIA performance measures specified by the Secretary

of Labor. A small number (three States) experimented with

additional measures not included in the secretary's list. Only

one of these States retained the additional measures in PY84.

All sample States adopted the secretary's seven

measures for PY84. However, 40 percent of the sample States

adopts...! additional measures. These additional measures include
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"significant segments" standards, job retention, net impact, job

placement in new or expanding industries, and expenditure

standards.

Six of the twenty sample States apparently did not use

the Department cf Labor regression adjustment methodology in

establishing PY84 standards. These States took the national

standards rather than the model-adjusted standards as a point of

departure, and often made adjustments to these national

figures. These States may have done so because they

inadequately understood the Department of Labor adjustment

methodology, rather than because this methodology was

inadequate.

Most States devel:ped or are in the process of

developing a summary Title IIA "performance index" or some other

rules, such as those specifying that the SDA must meet a certain

number of standards in order to qualify for incentive grants.

Some States decided to weight incentive awards by the size of an

SDA's Title IIA allocations. However, most apparently do not

plan to weight 6 percent incentive awards SDA size.

During the transition year the Jverwhelming majority of

sample SDAs (90 percent) did not add to or modify the Title IIA
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standards specified by the State. The small number of SDAs

reporting modifications tended to set numerical values stricter

than the standards received from the States.

Almost 90 percent of sample SDAs met their adult cost

per entered employment standard during the transition year; many

SDAs substantially overperformed on this measure. However,

almost 30 percent of the SDAs failed to meet their adult wage

standard. Performrn...e on the youth measures tended to be

somewhat lower than on corresponding adult measures. Less than

half of sample BDAs met their positive termination rate standard

for youths. This is related to the lack of established youth

competency systems and to transfers to summer youth programs,

which did not qualify as positive terminations.

More than two-thirds of sample SDAs used performance-

based contracting. Performance-based contracting is clearly

increasing.

Few standards for Title III were specified during PY84;

those that were set were almost always taken directly from Title

IIA specifications. only four of the twenty states had not

implemented any performance standards for Title III by the

summer of 196.. In two States, standards had not vet been

established, while in the other two, the standards established

had not been implemented. Sixteen States established PY84

entered employment rate standards for Title III. Most of these

set standards at or only slightly above the 55 percent entered

employment rate set for Title I/A.
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Before I start asking any questions, I would like
to take an opportunity to introdrce our member who has just
joined us, Charlie Hayes from Illinois. Thank you for joining us.

From the study that you have made, can you give me, in more
layman terms, your evaluation of the program overall and any
areas and States that you feel need direction or assistance?

Mr. Coox. Overall? To summarize some of what I said, the place-
ment rate in this program is currently running slightly under
double what it was under the last years of CETA. As I said, we
haven't been able to find any real difference in the characteristics
distributions between the two groups. We do find some selection
processes operating in the kinds of programs being run and the
way that people are being brought into them.

The private-sector involvement seems to be active. It seems to be
promoting some coordination, and as I mentioned, I think fairly
importantly, that it is actively selling the program to private em-
ployers and the product of that program, as they refer to it, which
is the placement. That is something that I think CETA never had.

In terms of areas of interest, the comment was made about the
title DI funding and what is obligated and what is not obligated. I
think that is an area that stands investigation. In terms of youth
issues, we figure that about 20 percent of the eligible population is
youth. It is currently running about 40 percent of enrollments.
Most of the Stn's indicate that youth enrollments are a problem.
They are having -lifficulty with the youth expt-iditure require-
ment. Sixty-three percent of the SDA's that we di :t with felt that
they would meet it so that might be another area of concern.

In terms of the stipends and that particular issue, about three-
quarters of the SDA's in our sample indicated that was not a prob-
lem and, furthermore, they felt that stipends attracted people who
were interested in the cash and not in the training. The other one-
fourth felt that it was a very serious problem and some of them
had applied for waivers from the State of the 30-percent limit. The
others were looking to other sources of support to make up that
deficit.

In terms of the other statement that was made in terms of
AFDC, I really don't find any difference in proportion of AFDC re-
cipients between CETA and JTPA.

Mr. MARTINEZ Mr. Fogel, I would like to ask you the same ques-
tions.

Mr. FOGEL. I think we would generally agree. We didn't find any-
thing when we looked at the initial implementation that gave us
great concern. There was a lot of mixed response. I think one of
the things, though, that does concern us some is the question of
standards, performance standards. We happen to believe the per-
formance standards are a good idea. We do think they need to be
looked at some. We are somewhat concerned that you just can't
;lain. a success if someone gets a job for 1 day and that is why the
longitudinal effort that the Labor has under wayis going to try to
get under wayis so important in looking at the extent to which
this program is operating effectively.

I think another thing we would like to see more encouragement
in is the coordination between JTPA and the other State and local
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agencies. Now, I don't find it surprising that we haven't gotten off
in this program perhaps to the most positive start in that regard.

GAO, over the last 21/2 years, has done some very extensive stud-
ies of how all the block grants that were implemented as a result
of the 1981 Omnibus Budget and Reconciliation Act were being im-
plemented across the country. Generally, what we found is that in
those types of programs, mainly in health block grants where there
was a good existing State and local infrastructure for dealing with
these programs, the transition to a block grant was much easier.

In JTPA, there has been a change. You now have State agencies
that are going tothat are hating to take more responsibility for
di these programs They didn't have, let's say, comparable
the

recting
y didn't have organizations at the State level that were compa-

rable to the health organizations, iv, we would expect that there
would be some initial startup problems. But R think the coordina-
tion issue is an important one to make sure that we get the link-
ages.

I don't know if Mr. Gianni has any other specific observations
there.

Mr. GIANNI. Basically the coordination issue got off to a slow
start, as Mr. Fogel said, and as the States work toward this effort,
we anticipate that more accomplishments will be working. We
think that because of the limitations of the types of cash assistance
and the amount of money under JTPA will force, of necessity, the
various employment and training community members to move
toward working with one another. We think that the limitation on
funds is going to push for a better coordination.

Mr. MARTINEZ. One of the things that you said, is that there is a
need for performance standards, and I feel there should be some
standards. However, one of the criticisms that I have heard is that
sometimes the people providing the training service, are very care-
ful in who they select for the program, making sure that that
person has the greatest probability of successful training and place-
ment.

In that regardyou mention that in the JTPA those that were
more needy were not being served; that a person with less need
was the person that was being served.

Wculdn't that have something to do with it? My question is: Are
we really truly serving those with the greatest need, which is what
the program was originally designed to do?

Mr. FOGEL. I think our questionnaire results showed that it was
mixed. In some cases, some groups did believe that they were serv-
ing more people that were ready, but I think our findings are some-
what consistent with Westat's in terms of the types of people being
served. We didn't see a big difference between CETA and JTPA,
except in the statistic looking at the dropout rate.

I mean, there is no doubt that JTPA was only servingduring
the program year 1984-23 percent of the people they were serving
that we looked at had dropped out, as compared to around 30 per-
cent in CKM. But I would agree with you that there may indeed
be some tendency en the part of local service providers to empha-
size more those people who have a chance to succeed, but if you
look at the proportion of AFDC people being served, the unem-
ployed, youth and so forth, there is not that much difference.

72



69

I believe, though, that it is important to look over the next sever-
al years at exactly how that provision is working and the effect
that it is having on the way that services are being provided. I
don't think we have enough evidence at this point to support any
change in the incentive program or in the way these standards are
being used.

Mr. MARTINEZ. At this time, let me welcome the Honorable Steve
Gunderson from Wisconsin and ask if he has any statement he'd
like to make.

Mr. GUNDERSON. No opening statement, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. MARTINEZ. All right.
Let me then at this time ask the Honorable Mr. Perkins, do you

have any questions?
Mr. PERKINS. I just have a couple, actually.
We talk about some of the people, and I suppose I am going to

followup somewhat along what the chairman was saying. I know a
lot of people used to be served by CETA that are not being served
by the program that we are talking about today. It seems like to
me these are a lot of peopleI know them personally. I am not
talking numbers; I know who they are and could point them out to
youand it disturbs me because no longerin my area, we don't
have jobs. Jobs just are not there. I am dealing with 20, 30. 40 per-
cent unemployment rates sometimes in individual counties.

It is nice to train people for things. It is nice when they can have
a placement at the expiration of their time period. We don't have
anything or anywhere to put them. They are basically lopped off.
There is no hope of them getting back on and you can't retrain
them in another part or for another position or another job.

This class of peoplethey want to do something; they can be
trained to do something, but there is still nothing for them to do.
We are talking about a government jobs bill, which I am all for,
but irrespective of that, I see a certain class and a certain very
poor class of peoplemaybe this ;s the group that I am seeing
that is being left out by the JTPA Program.

I wonder what are your feelings as to what we are going to do
with this group? Do you have any ideas in your provisions? Are we
going to leave them out there?

Mr. FOGEL. Why don't we let Westat take that? [Laughter.]
Mr. CooK. Contractors will do anything you pay them to.
First, perhaps we should be speaking about economic develop-

ment in Kentucky, rather than a training program. You are really
talking about the demand side of the market and the need for jobs,
or alternately, as you point out, some form of public employment.

In terms of the training and the issue of selection, it is not ob-
servable in any significant way in any characteristicthat is, that
one can readily identify.

Mr. PERKINS. I have been told by some of my people down there,
who are involved with this program, that they look to find the best
and the brigInost and those that have the best chance of succeed-
ing and they push those. Then, because of the scarcity of the jobs, a
lot of times, they tell me, the others get left out.

Mr. COOK. Yes, sir. We estimated that, given the size of the eligi-
ble population as we calculated it, which is the technically eligible
populationnot everyone who would walk inand the number of
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people served in JTPA during the transition year, which was
585,700, that that number was slightly under 2 percent of the eligi-
ble population. So, first, program operators, as you point out, are
having to make choices in terms of who will be served. They are
doing it within a fairly large eligible population.

Surprisingly, they are not doing it in terms of male/female, old/
young so much, but if you have two people and one slot and one
person has a higher probability in your mind of becoming em-
ployed, having filled that slot for the period of time that you can
fund it, you make exactly the same decision that I assume I would
make under the circumstances.

Mr. FOGEL. That is the way we read the law, too. Undoubtedly,
the focus of this program is more on trying to train people and
then plats them in jobs. GAO is not in the position of coming up
with straight policy recommendations, but I guess that my feeling
would be that to deal with the type of problem you are describing,
Congressman, you might want to take a look at some other alterna-
tives other than JTPA because the way I read this statute being
structured, it is more focused onand I agree it is different some-
what than the earlier statutebut it is more focused on trying to
concentrate on people who have a possibility of, through training
and development, to get emplayment. If there are jobs in an area,
it makes it pretty difficult for a program to be judged a success,
which undoubtedly causes a problem in that area of how you would
use the funds.

Mr. PERKINS. It seems to me that what you are saying is that you
are going to exclude those peopleit is a more rigid class that you
are trying to serve. It is not the hard core people, that is one thing
about CETA that I kind of liked. You could get peoplethey might
not necessarily ha` e all the greatest potential in the world and
sometimes it is kind of hard to tell at that level who does have po-
tential and who doesn't, and they would get onthey wool' have
an c pportunityit seemed to offer them that opportunity.

This thingwhile I think it is good; I really do, in the way it di-
rects toward trying to get people jobs in private ihdustryI am for
all that. It seems to me that by the very process of that, we are
excluding a portion of our population and that population is again
falling through the cracks with nowhere to go. I guess we have the
Job Corps as one other option when you get down to that level, but
outside of that, I look around the corner and I see my neighbor. Of
course, he oses his Federal jobs program; I make no bones about it.
He w3rked outhard-working man, wants a job; doesn't have one,
now he is left out. Didn't have anything to do.

Mr. MARTINEZ. The gentleman's time is up, but I would certainly
concur that one of the problems with this program is that we are
sometimes ignoring the truly needy that perhaps CETA did not,
and I don't know for sure that the intent of JTPA was to exclude
these people. Certainly we want to try to serve as many needy
people as we can, especially dislocated workers, youth, those people
who are identified under I A.

Mr. GIANNI. Mr. Chairman, I would just like to add a couple of
comments. I think what has happened is the transition between
CETA and JTPA. Perhaps some of the individuals that were being
serviced before were being serviced under the Public Service Em-
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ployent Program. When we made our comparison of statistics be-
tween title IIA of JTPA and CETA, we took a comparable type of a
program, similar type of funding levels of both programs, so when
you compare similar types of programs and similar types of fund-
ing levels, the same number of people in absolute numbers are
being served and the general characteristics of those individuals
seem to be right on line, with the exception of high school drop-
outs, and I

Mr. PERKINS. It seems to me you are talking about apples and
oranges, though, aren't you?

Mr. GIANNI. I am not sure I understand, sir. From a standpoint
ofthe high school dropouts now are being served in our sample at
a much lower percentage, which is an indication that some of the
service delivery areas are moving toward still an eligible popula-
tion. They are eligible; they are economically disadvantaged, but
perhaps they are easier to serve.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Easier to serve. Thank you.
Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I apologize for

not being here for your oral presentation, but I have reviewed it
and would like to focus a little bit and address this to either of
youfrom your different perspectives can you respond to the con-
cern of where we go. As I talk to my local people back in Wisconsin
and as I understand in most of your local service delivery areas,
the big, big complaint is concern about State overregulation, over-
paperwork, et cetera. I am not personally ready, and I don't think
this committee or this Congress is ready to take over the old Feder-
al role in hopes of making States less reffulatory and less burden-
some, but what ought the Federal role be in this regard?

Is there a legitimate Federal role such as suggested guidelines, or
is it the kind of thing that at this point should be left alone? How
do you respond to that whole concern from those local SDA's?

Mr. FOGEL. I would like to answer that, again from the context of
not only the work GAO has done in JTPA, but in looking at all the
other block grants that have been implemented sine 1981. The
anxieties or concerns that the local SDA's have in this program is
no different than the anxieties and concerns that we found that ex-
isted in all the other block grant programs.

There has definitely been a reduction of Federal regulations and
guidance to the States in this program, as in the other block
grants. However, in no program have we seen that the rules, regu-
lations, or procedures, financial, contracting, and otherwise that
States have been changed in terms of their relationship with the
subunits. And that isn't just for JTPA; it is for he other block
grant programs too, so there has been simplificatio.. crom the Fed-
eral to the State level, but not from the State to the local level.

Our view would be that we let the programs work for sever&
more years before we do too much in terms of considering possible
additional Federal involvement in all but one area, and this does
have us concerned ai, d we addressed it in our L.tatement. We think
it is going to be very difficult for the Congress to get information
that is comparable across States as to what is going on in these
programs, given the way the administration has decided to collect
data or, in fact, not collect data is a better phrase.
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The Labor Department certainly, when this act was passed, had
some proposals to collect some data across the States so they could
get some information. That proposal was not approved by the
White House. HHS had similar proposals in the block grants that
it administered. They were not approved by the White House.

The Congress, in reautlwrizing some of the health blocks last
year, was more specific in directing the administration regardu
data collection stuff that was comparable and we certainly t
that something the subcommittee may want to take a look at. So
that would be the only area that we believe ought to be addressed
fairly soon.

Mr. COOK. I would like to comment on that, sort of outside of the
report as I go out and talk to people in the States at SDA's. Some
States attempted to centralize the program; other States early on
allowed considerable decentralization of the program through the
SDA's and the decisionmaking that goes with that.

What we found at the end of the transition year was a narrowing
of that range. Some States that had been fairly proscriptive early
on began to ease up in response to pressure from the SDA's. Other
States that had decentralized their early operations discovered that
they needed to have some sort of responsibility over program ooer-
ations, some information and a way of offsetting liability and so
they began to put in more reporting requirements, et cetera.

Wisconsin, by the way, is one of the States in the sample. I didn't
say which category, of course. [Laughter.]

Mr. GUNDERSON. You don't have to.
Mr. COOK. The other thing, as I go around and talk to those

people, they consistently-a-as soon as they find out where I live
say, would you please go back and tell those people that we need
some sort of consistent reporting and would they please approve
some sort of management information system that might be con-
sistent across SDA's and across States.

The other has to do with the area of what I might call guidelines.
I did not say regulations, but you talk to th se people and they say,
"Well, we are not getting any information on what exactly is a
unit-based contract for purposes of full costing to training?" I indi-
cated earlier that they are using more of it. Concerns about the
amount of administrative money have dropped, while the increase
in the we of performance-based contracting has risen.

You say, "Well, it is up to the State to determine," and they re-
spond, "Yes," but we also know the only area in ETA that has an
increase in funding and positions.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you. I would just, in closing Mr. Chair-
man, like to suggest that if either of you could provide us with
some guidance and some suggestions in terms of this information
gathering guidelines, I think it would be very helpful to us.

Mr. FOGEL. We would be pleased to.
Mr. MARTINEZ. The gentleman's time is up.
Mr. Hayes.
Mr. Etym. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Let me first apologize for my own tardiness. I had another com-

mitment I couldn't escape from and was late getting here.
I have a couple of questions I want to raise with the panel, but I

want to make some prefacing remarks before I raise the questions
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so I can get the proper setting and you will understand it, I want
you to understand the district I represent. My district is about 90
percent black. I could say minority, but I want to be specific about
it; they are black. About 16 to 18 percent totally unemployed.
Roughly 50 to 60 percent of our youth are unemployed.

CETA, when it was in effect, was a program that was very help-
ful. JTPA is a program that, I think, can be beneficial if utilized
right and if funded right. I don't know to what extent you people
who have the responsibility for administering the program, head-
ing it up, would have to get funds for it. I don t want to get you out
of your position pushing in that direction, but I want you to know
this is one inadequacy that I think is going to be hurt more by cur-
rent proposals that are being made by the administration, Mr.
Chairman, as it affects particularly the city of Chicago, totally,
where I come from.

Currently, as we have been told, next year Federal moneys
coming into the city will be some $300 million less than what they
were for this year, so the future doesn't look too bright.

My specific question to this, which sort of piggybacks the direc-
ton you were going, Congressman Perkins, you state that some
'3DA's select those persons most likely to succeed, while others use
procedures to focus on those most in need of training. In the sites
that you surveyed, what practice would you say was more widely
utilized?

Mr. GIANNI. The site3 that we selected were limited. We had 15
service delivery areas that we actually looked at early in the oper-
ation, so we can't talk from the standpoint of specific as to what is
happening now. It was mixed, Congressman, as to whether they
were using a full rangetrying to select from a full range of eligi-
ble participants, as opposed to concentrating at the upper end.

What we did observe, though, e.ncl we thought was very interest-
ing is the fact that some service delivery areas had developed tech-
niques that would allow them to select from the full range of eligi-
ble participants. I think data development, perhaps, by other re-
searchers would indicate a little bit more informative than the
data that we developed, and I perhaps should turn that over to
Bob.

Mr. FOGEL. I guess the bottom line was there was no overwhelm-
ing trend one way or the other. It was very mixed in the SDA's
that we looked at.

Mr. HAYES. There is a growing feeling, and you may just respond
to this briefly, particularly among Hispanics and blacks, that "sere
is going to be vast number of people who are going to be ma-
nently unemployed or just completely misfits in our society in the
future. Sometimes I think the programs that we espouse or finance
are conscious of this and move in that direction. That is the reason
I raised the question.

Yes, sir.
Mr. Coox. Mr. Hayes, in the 40 service delivery areas that we

looked at, we asked our associates in essence to characterize the
targeting of those jurisdictions based on conversations with admin-
istrators, the characteristics data that they were producing and
kinds of programs. Half of them indicated that they were essential-

y7



74

ly targeting toward those most likely to benefit from training in
JTPA and find a job subsequently.

Another six were targeting toward the group that you were
speaking of, I assumeI am sorry, eight, as the most needy, but
within this group, often you would fmd other comments that
among that group the most placeable wolild be selected. Another
sixand I note, only sixwere targeting pretty much exclusively
only on the most job-ready people in the eligible population.

Beyond that, tnere are a couple things that came out of the
study that I would point out. One is that as you move from the
Federal targeting in au law to the targeting put in place by the
State, you find more targeting specific groups. When you get to the
level of the service delivery area, you find even more targeting of
specific groups, often hard-to-serve groups.

What that tells me is that as you get to the service delivery area,
you are responding to more pressures from specific interest groups
within the area and-- -

Mr. HAYES. I call it patronage; you say what you want.
Mr. Coos. We also found some attempts to have professional pro-

grams for particular hard-to-serve groups in addition to regular
programs.

Mr. MAwrnisz. The gentleman's time is up. Evidently there is a
vote.

I want to thank Mr. Gianni, Mr. Fogel, and Mr. Cook for their
testimony and thank them for enlightening us some more.

Mr. Foos'. Thank you.
Mr. COOK. Thank you.
Mr. MARTIN z. At this time, I think what we probably ought to

do, since we have finished with the first panel, is recess until we
have made that vote. Recess for 15 minutes.

[Recess]
Mr. MARTINEZ. Our second panel of witnesses will consist of Mr.

Gary Walker, of Grinker-Walker Associates; and Mr. Patrick
Moore, president of the National Job Training Partnership. I am
going to allow Mr. Walker, because he is under a time constraint,
to proceed and then we will question you immediately upon com-
pletion of your testimony, and then allow you to leave.

STATEMENT OF GARY WALKER, PARTNER, GRINKER-WALKER
ASSOCIATES, NEW YORK CITY, NY; AND PATRICK MOORE,
PRESIDENT, NATIONAL JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP, INC., SAN
DIEGO, CA

Mr. WALKER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you for the
opportunity to testify.

My testimony is based on the interim findings of a 2-year study
supported by the Ford Foundation, the Rockefeller Foundation, the
Charles Stewart-Mott Foundation, and the National Commission
for Employment Policy. This study is focused on three areas which
are basic to the JTPA legislation.

The first one is that the legislation significantly alters the insti-
tutional relationships and roles in implementing employment and
training. The Federal role declines; the State role increases; the
local reapensibilities are shared between the local government and
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the PIC. This study examines the workings and the irpact of
JTPA's changed vision of governmental relations and volailtarism
in carrying out major Federal legislation.

The second basic focus of the study is to look at whether coordi-
nation amongst public agencies, which is highly stressed in the
JTPA legislation, actually increases. That has long been a goal of
Federal legislation that is usually unrealized and we wanted to see
if it was something that could be learned from JTPA.

The third and most important focus of the study is to examine
who is served and the services actually received under JTPA. This
is critical to understanding how the implementetion of JTPA bal-
ances several of the not easily compatible elements in the legisla-
tion and funding. For example, the level of money afforded to
JTPA is basically adequate to serve 1 out of every 20 or 25 eligi-
bles, as Mr. Cook noted.

Second, JTPA has much stiffer performance standards than
CETA ever did.

Third, there is reduced program flexibility under JTPA. There is
no stipend, limited work experience, reduced administrative
moneys. On the other hand, there is a mandate under the legisla-
tion to serve those most in need. There is a requirement that 40
percent of the money be spent on youth and that an equitable pro-
portion of the money be spent on dropouts and welfare recipients.

So understanding this aspect, how those aspects of JTPA are bal-
anced, will provide a sense of JTPA's role in dealing with key
social problems.

Just to tell you overall first, our first two studies have basically
concluded that you have a very mixed bag after a year and a half.
There are some clear successes in JTPA and some notable short-
falls. Let me take first the institutional relationships and roles
which have worked basically as the legislation planned, but have
also generated, I think, several imrortant issues and problems.

First, m planned, the Federal role ;3 vastly decreased in all re-
spect,. In our interviews with States acid SDA's, the Federal role
was largely described as invisible. If you look at the different as-
pects of that role, namely the amount of substantive direction that
the Federal Government provides, the £.-nount of technical assist-
ance it provides in terms of what has wurited in the past and what
hasn't, and in terms of the administrative guidance and over-
sightif you divide up the Federal role that way, what we found is
there is little complaint amongst States or SDA's about lack of
direct substantive direction from the Department of Labor. Most of
them felt that they did rot need more substantive direction.

There was, however, increased complaint about lack of technical
assistance in terms of what worked in the past and what didn't
work. Most States and SDA's felt that over the last 10 years, there
had been substantial and considerable amounts of money spent on
learning what works in employment and training programs and
that JTPA largely assumes that none of this learning is -orth-
while.

The largest amount of complaint from the as in terms of
administrative guidance and oversight from tne I ederal Govern-
ment. It was felt that, in terms of audit guideiineE, in ass of a
national reporting system, as was mentioned by GI ) aiid Westat,
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that the Federal role could be greatly increased and it would both
improve the performance and the functioning of the overall JTPA
system.

Now, if ycu go into the State role, I think these things tie in well
together. The States did increase their role considerably as planned
by the legislation, but mostly in administrative areas, administra-
tive and reporting. In fact, over two-thirds of the SDA's in our
sample reported that administrative and reporting burdens were
greater under JTPA than they were under CETA. When we went
and talked to the States as to why this was the case, most of them
responded that they had spent cor.siderably more time and money
in putting up these administrative guidelines and reporting sys-
tems than anticipated because the Federal role had been so invisi-
ble in those areas they felt they had to make up for that.

So, in some ways, the lack of a Federal role in the administrative
and reporting area, at least according to the 35 States in our study,
has led to a greatly increased State role, which at the local level
has been felt as a more administratively burdensome program than
was previously the case under CETA.

The local responsibilities have been shared, largely between the
PIC's and local governments, as the other people reported previous-
ly. We found that part of the program working relatively well over
the first year. There have been several' basic issues which have
arisen. One is: Can a program like JTPA keep a voluntary group,
namely the Private Industry Council, interested and involved over
a long period of time? These people are volunteering; they are
spending considerable amounts of time and we have seen, under-
neath what appears to be a good working relationship, a consider-
able drop-off in membership at a number of the PIC's and changes
in leadership.

The second issue: Is the program becoming imbalanced toward
fulfilling the interests of the local employers, namely the private
businessmeu on the PIC's? In our sample SDA's, we found that PIC
members played by far the largest policy role in governing JTPA,
compared to a very modest role for local government in most cases.

The secoild issue we looked at was who served and what services
were they provided. With the minimum of substantive oversight di-
rection that I mentioned coming from the Federal Government and
from the State level in terms of who to serve and the kind of serv-
ices you might have expectedindeed, we expected to finda wide
variety of programming when we went out to the SDA's. In fact,
we found that the JTPA programs across the Nation were largely
similar in structure and content and in who they served.

We found this to be the case, I think, in the main because four-
fifths. or 80 percent of the SDA's that we talked to said that their
focus in putting together the JTPA program had been on putting
together a program that would achieve very high placement rates
and very low costs. About a fourth of the SDA's, on the other hand,
said that the legislation's focus on targeting, namely its emphasis
on most in need, on spending 40 percent of the money for youth
and on dropouts played an important part. In other words, only a
quarter said those aspects: of the legislation played an important
part in putting together their program, whereas 80 percent felt
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that high placement rates and low costs did play an important
part.

What that led to was, of course, then, a very low use of support
services in the program. Approximately 15 percent was allowed.
Our sites, on average, used between 8 and 9 percent. There was a
very minor emphasis on exemplary programming. The legislation
lists approximately a page and a half of exemplary youth pro-
grams. Less than half our sites tried any exemplary programming
at all, and the programs turned out, I think, to be much shorter
than even the SDA s had expected.

The average training program was 11 weeks for adults; 12.2
weeks for youth, and the expectations had been around twice that.
As I said earlier, what that meant was that the SDA's in our
sample, at least two-thirds of them did not achieve the 40 percent
expenditure for youth that was laid out in the legislation and two-
thirds of them did not achieve the goals tow ' putting dropouts in
their program that they had set forth.

The one area of targe:ing where they d; eed, and succeeded
beyond expectations, was in bringing wt. - recipients. In our
analysis, that was largely because it wa, the one group that both
PIC's and local government could agree was important to bring in
the program and welfare recipients did bring with them income
plus support services from the welfare and WIN agencies that they
were dealing with.

Eighty percent of the 57 SDA's in our sample said that it was not
important 3n their mind to go after those most in need; that JTPA
was simply not a program appropriate for that; did not provide the
amount of money or the services nor the incentives, and they basi-
cally ignored that part of the legislation.

In short, what we found was a streamlined, high-performance
program largely aimed at eligibles ready to work in the basic skills.
In other words, it was aimed at one particular element of that low-
income population which is eligible for JTPA.

Regarding coordination, the story is to date short, I think, of leg-
islative expectations, though coordination is a difficult thing to pull
off amongst public agencies, and n ..iybe over time we will see more
of it. What we found was that the only agency across the SDA's
where coordination worked was local welfare and WIN agencies. As
I said, that is because I think the resources of JTPA and welfare
and WIN fit well together. We found that coordination with the
employment service was not significantly different than it had
been under CETA; that coordination with local education depart-
ments was actually decreased under JTPA compared to what it had
been under CETA.

In economic development, there was much interest and effort in
increasing coordination there, but not really much success so far.
To us, the basic story on the coordination element was really how
much pressure came down from the States. If there was consider-
able pressure, there seemed to be more coordination, yet less than
a third of the States in our sample really exhibited that kind of
pressure, so consequently, it was not a high priority on the part of
local SDA's.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Gary Walker follows:]
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PRL'ARED STATEMENT OF GARY WALKER, GRINKEti, WALKER & ASSOCIATES

Chairman Martinez and subcommittee members, thank you for the opportui.Ity to
testify regarding the status of the Job Training Partnership Act Grinker, Walker &
Associates of New York, New York, m co- inction with MDC, Inc. of North Carori-
na, is being supported by the Charles Swart Mott Foundation, the Rockefeller
Foundation, the Ford Foundation and the National Commission for Employment
Policy in carrying out a national assessment of the implementation of Title II-A,
Training Services for the Disadvantaged, of the Job Training Partnership Act
(JTPA). We have already published two reports covering JTPA's early operation;
the first report covered the initial plans and operational startup of JTPA; the
second covered JTPA's first official ope -ating period, from October 1, 1983 through
June 30, 1984. This testimony is based on the findings contained in those reports
We are now preparing to make another round of field visits and telephone survey
calls to the 57 service delivery areas (SDAs) and 35 States involved in the study, and
will publish in October of this year a report covering JTPA implementation through
June 30, 1985

The study is focused on three major issues. One is to describe and assess the
actual JTPA program that is implementedthe types of training and other services
that are offered, and the characteristics of those individuals who participate in
JTPA. Understanding JTPA as it actually operates is critical to assessing its role in
federal social policy, and its usefulness in dealing with serious social problems.

The roles and relationships of public, private and nonprofit institutions in JTPA
constitute another study focus. -"_TA calls for significant changes in federal, state
and local government roles from prior employment and training legislation. The leg-
islation increases substantially the role of the private, for-profit sector. How these
changes work mr y be instructive for both employment and training efforts, and
other national poli 7 initiatives.

The third major rapic is the extent to which state and local Policy makers coordi-
nate JTPA with the policies and activities of other public institutions with an inter-
est in employnent aid training, such as welfare and economic development agen-
cies, and the public scnool system. Improving coordination among public agencies is
a major objective of the ..7PA legislation. JTPA's a' hievement in this area should
provide insight into the worn:ngs, benefits and limits of this often-expressed but
usually elusive goal.

JTPA became law in October 1982 One year was provided to prepare for oper-
ational startup in October 1983. States and local jurisdictions in the study sample
spent that year primarily on defining jurisdictional boundaries, building of JTPA
administrative capacity and defining public and private roles under JTPA. Program
and service delivery were generally back-burner issues a the task of building the
JTPA framework. Thus in 40% of the sample SDAs there were no JTPA programs
operating as of October 1; those SDAs where there were programs m operation had
basically extended smaller versions of their 1983 CETA programs.

The first nine-month operating period of JTPAfrom October 1, 1983 through
June 30, 1984is described in the legislation as a transitional period. It was set up
as a period for the JTPA system to implement the numerous changes that the Act
mandates, each local SDA and state JTPA office knowing that it could review and
adjust for deficiencies in that transitional period before the first full-year operating
period began on July 1, 1984when all the Act's timetables, performance standards,
mandates and penalties would commence in full force and effect.

The federal government (its role significantly reduced from CETA) and the states
(their roles greatly expanded) left the early choices regarding JTPA program prior-
ities and implementation largely to local decision-makers. The federal government
played a minimal role in both administrative and substantive decislon-malung, so
minimal that many States and local JTPA offices felt there was no federal presenco
in JTPA. States had expected more federal guidance than was forthcoming, and did
not anticipate the extent to which they were on their own to fashion solutions to
the various issues which amt.!. fhe states placed their emphasis on establishing ad-
ministrative, fiscal and information reporting systems and procedures, and did not
with few exceptionsutilize t i any significant degree the leverage the Act gave
them through its various setae des (in particular the three, six, eight and Wagner-
Peyser ten percent setasides) t) influence local decisions on who Title II-A should
serve, or the kinds of services it should offer.

Given the very modest influence on local JTPA program decision-making by the
federal and state governments, and the transitional nature of the initial operating
period as established by the Act, a substantial diversity of program strategies and
performance might be expected among local SDAs. In fact, however, the pattern of
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local policy priorities, services, participants and performance was more one of simi-
larity than diversity during tbr initial nine month operating period.

These similarities came largely as a result of the criteria utilized by the sample
SDAS in constructing their initial JTPA programs. 80 percent of the SDAs said that
the potential for high placement rates and low custs was the critical factor in put-
ting together the initial package of JTPA training programs and services Only a
quarter of the SDAs judged that the special needs of eligible individuals for literacy,
work experience or other support services, or the JTPA legislation's mandate to
serve youth and dropouts, were important factors in selectirtg training activities and
service deliverers.

As a result, the initial configuration of JTPA activities at the average SDA was
even more weighted toward basic training activities like classroom and on-the-job
training than the Act required (76 percent of sample site funds were expended on
these activities compared to the Act's 70 percent requ.rement). the SDAs expended
a very modest level of funds on support services 'eke literacy training, day care and
transportation: nine percent compared to the 15 percent allowance in the Act. They
offered very few of the numerous innovative and exemplary programs recommended
in the Act (lees than two percent of training funds were expended on these pro-
grams); and gave little attention to designing or funding programs targeted at
groups with special problems or suvert service needs, such as teenage parents and
school dropouts.

The results of the first nine reenths of operation reflected these priorities. Place-
ment rates, for example, were on average higher than anticipated or as set forth in
federal standards: 70 percent versus a 58 percent standard for adults, and 64 per-
cent for youth versus a federal standard of 41 percent. Costs were lower than antici-
pated; for adults, cost per placement was $3,324, versus the federal standard of
$5,900; for youth, cost per positive termination was $3,145, compared to the federal
standard of $4,500. Though the official placement rates were based only one day
on the job, they were widely viewed within the JTF... system as 6` ace of JTPA'...
success.

Other aspects of initial performance were not so encouraging. JTPA's targeting
requirements were, with one exception, not satisfied. Officials at 80 percent of the
SDAs said they made no concerted effort to define or serve those "most in need"
and "able to benefit from" JTPA one of the act's targeting requirementsand did
not believe that the legislation's reduced programmatic flexibility, compared to
CETA, and its low level of funding, were conductive to dealing with those eligibles
who most needed assistance in eacuring jobs. Mt. at private industry councils (PICs),
in partiular their business members, saw JTPA primarily as a vehicle to connect
economically disadventaged individuals with immediate labor market needs in the
most efficient manner, t.t as a tool to bring high-need and high-risk individuals
into the workforce. Local governments were typically more concened than the PICs'
business members about JTPA's restricted usefulness for those individuals they
judged to be at greater risk, and ultimately more costly to the public purse, but
agreed that the JTPA approach was store likely to lead to high placement rates,
lov, meta, and an involved private sector.

Tne lack of commitment and effort to the targeting provisions of the Act resulted
in, according to three-fourths of the SDAS, substantial screening by service deli-
verers to enroll only those eligibles who were most job ready. The extensive screen-
ing, plus the modest level of support and remediation services, and the unexpectedly
bnef duration of JTPA training-11 weeks for adults and 12.2 weeks for youth
coupled with high placement rates, did cause concern among some state and local
JTPL officials that many participants would have gotten jobs without the benefit of
JTPA.

The Act's requirement that 40 percent of an SDA's JTPA funds be spent on youth
was also unmet in the majority of SDAs. In fact *cost SDAs' youth spending fell
seriously short of the legislative mandate: lees ea, a a third of the SDAs spent even
90 percent of their youth allocation. Those that did typically had large in-school pro-
grams offering job readiness and placement services to high school seniors who did
not intend to pursue post-high school education. Forty-three percent of the youth
who part'cipated in JTPA had high school diplomas or higher education; 31 percent
wen in school; and 26 percent were dropouts. Many SDA officials felt the Act's
severe restrictions on work experience and denial of training stipends made it very
difficult to attract youth, particularly dropouts.

The Act's mandate that an "equitable" share of JTPA funds be spent on eligibles
who had not completed high icnool, whatever their age, also went unmet in two-
thirds of the SDAs. Most SDAs made no special attempts to attract dropouts, or to
design or fund programs that would meet that group's deficiencies in the job
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market Only 60 percent of the c.tes offered remedial education services, and even
those were modestly funded (six percent of training expenditures) and relatively
brief (on average, 18 weeks)

The SDA response to these tarzeti:ig shortfalls during the transition period was,
as reflected in their plans for the operational year beginning July 1, 1984, primarily
a management strategy most decided to set clearer goals for service deliverers re-
garding youth and dropouts, and to monitor contractor activity more closely. The
typical reaction did not include altering program content, structure or service deli-
verers. The sample SLAB, with very few exceptions, indicated no intention to define
or target mare resources on those most in need." As indicated earlier, they did not
judge the statute's provisions or level of funding suitable or adequate to construct a
program for such individuals.

In contrast to their performance with youth, dropouts, and high nred individuals,
the sites on average exceeded their goals for enrolling welfare recipients. Welfare
recipients were the one group that both PICs and local governments agreed should
be served in large numbf rs, in hopes of a quick return in terms of reduced welfare
dependency and costs. 'I he SDAs for the most part developed good linkages with
local welfare and WIN offices, ensuring a steady flow of enplicants. In addition, wel-
fare recipients had a source of income and support services while they ...,Pre in
JTPA. The above factors may offer some guidance as to the ingredients necessary to
insure successful targeting under JTPA.

The SDAs were for the most part successful in implementing the Act's mandate
that local JTPA governance be carried out jointly by local government and a private
industry council (PIC) dominated by local business representatives. Except for a few
locations, usually very large, old and non-expanding urban areas, or sparsely-popu-
lated rural areas, the PICs were active in JTPA policymaking. When SDA directors
were asked what was the most positive aspect of JTPA compared to CETA, the
aspect most frequently mentioned (by 34 percent of the sample sites) was increased
p- .ate sector involvement.

The greatest interest of the PICs- -in particular their business members--was in
insuring that the JTPA program operated at low cost and with high lacement
rates. They were usually against putting resources into support services, ei:2 were
not infr ested in designing programs for particular groups.

There was little evidence in the first operational period that +hose SDAs with
more active Ms were more successful in involving the larger lo al business com-
munity in JTPA. Only two of the 25 field sites said that PIC involvement led to
more primary labor market jobs for JTPA graduates than the existed under CETA.
The average wage of JTPA graduates offered some support for this view: at $4.61
per hour, it met neither the federal standard of $4.90, nor local program expecta-
tions.

It was unclear whether the high level of PIC interest and involvemer.t would con-
tinue. There were substantial changes in PIC membership at half the sample sites,
and changes in PIC leadership at one third of the sites, during the transition period.
PIC members at many of the sites expressed concern over the increasing number of
state administrative and reporting requirements, and at the amount of time they
were spendig on JTPA. They were, however, very pleased at the early placement
and cost results.

Fulffilme at of the statute's requirements of SDA coordination with other public
agencies interested m employment and training was uneven Coordination with
agencies which brought quick and concrete results, such as welfare and WIN, were
generally successful. There continued to be great interest in coordination with local
economic development efforts, but most SDAs saw this as a long-term process, ...nd
did not expect quick results. There was in fact little evidence of such results during
the transition period.

Coordination with the Employment Service showed a modest increase over that
which existed under CETA, primarily in terms of establishing joint service bound-
aries, or colocating offices. Few sites achieved substantive or programmatic coordi-
nation beyond that which had previously existed.

Coordination with the public school system increased during the transitional
period over what was set forth in the initial plans, primarily to increase the number
of youth participating in JTPA. However, almost half of the SLAB still had no link-
ages with the public school system at the end of the t. ansition period. Coordination
with other public agenciesrehabilitotion, vocational education and otherswas
scattered across the sites and usually aodest in scope

Local JTPA coordination with other public agencies was more evident where
there was strong st& pressure, or active state-ievel coordination among public
agencies. However, lea_ Ian a third of the states exhibited those characteristics. All
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the states established coord:nation requirements fo their SDAs, but these could
usually be met by local written statements of intc.st to coordinate. Several states
noted that they did not nave the staff rceources to monitor the development and
implementation of coordination agi eements among local agencies at all the SDAs.
There was little evidence, in terms of policies or activities, that the degree of coordi-
nation, at either the state or local levels, would change substantially during the
first full program year.

An area of concern which developed during the transitional p?r.od was the rela-
tionship between states and SDAs. A majority of the sample SDAi said that state
administrative and reporting requirements were more time-consuming than federal
requirements had been under MA. The state response generally was that their
requirements were necessary to provide useful analysis of SDA operations and per-
formance and to prepare properly for federal audits; state officials did not feel they
had been adequately informed as to the standards federal auditors would use. The
stares with few exceptions judged that in the area of operational and performance
reporting a more substantial federal role would have been useful, in order to ensure
uniform national data for comparison and analysis.

Whether further operating experience will improve local/state relationships, and
perhaps in the process increase the federal role, will be important issues for follow-
up.

JTPA's initial operatirf period produced a mixture of accomplishments and short-
falls. As noted earlier, wnat is notable is the similarity across the sample SDAs
program structure, content and performance. These basic similarities generally per-
sist across geographic, demographic, economic and local leadership differehats.

The similarities appear to be a result of several factors. The great majority of
SDAs said that am had not had a positive reputation in their coumunities.
Whether that reputation was deserved or not, SDA leaders were determined that
JTPA would have a positive image. One part of CETA's image that was heavily pub-
licized was that it was "too costly, and ineffective," to quote one national magazine.
Thus the SDAs focus on cost and placement measures was in part a response to this
aspect of the CETA image.

A second factor, connected to the first, was that media, political and professional
discussion of JTPA, particularly that emanating from Washington, D.C., tended to
focus on only a few of the numerous mandates and changes the Act contained: pri-
vate sector involvement, performance standards, and potential to reduce welfare
rolls through JTPA. It was in these areas that the SDAs performed well.

A third factor was the level of JTPA funding. Many SDAs judged that the level of
JTPA fundingwhich could p, z...7ide training services to less thre five percent of
individuals eligible for JTPAwas too small to afford much room for innovative,
exemplary or multicomponent programs aimed at high-need groups. Those programs
cod more to develop, to operate, and usually, even when RuccteNful, report reistively
high cost per placement. Funditf such programs at any substantial level would sig-
nificantly reduce the total number of participants for which JTPA could provide
*miring. Officials in many jurisdictions were concerned that any actioni, which re-
duced the total number of participant+) would promote the judgment that JTPA was
insignificant, and perhaps not worth keeping, if further cuts in federal spending
were contemplated.

These explanations do not undercut or minimize the significance of JTPA's early
successes; neither, however, do they erase the importance of the other mandates and
goals of the Act which were not satisfied during the first operational period. The
adequacy of the SDA response to these shortfalls, the ability to maintain early suc-
cesses, and the role of the federal and state governments in ensuring that all of
JTFA's provisions are given serious attention and efforts, are critical issues that
will be examined for the next report.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you.
Mr. Gui.derson, you just joined us, and I have stated, becati:e of

Mr. Walker's time schedule, that we would take his testimony and
question him before we got into the testimony of Mr. Mc.)re.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I am sorry; I thought you meant Mr. Walker ,m
the floor. I understand we are expecting another vote in 10 to 15
minutes, so we may want to try to hurry this up.

Mr. MARTINEZ OK, we will go into the questioning now.
I get an infereri.e from what you first said that you understand

that the mandate of the legislation to serve the most needy and
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that even though this has been a very efficient program for these
that it has served, those most in need were ignored.

Would you elaborate on that?
Mr. WALKER. Yee. Our reading, both of the legislation and our

discussions with most local operators, is that the legislation is not
consistent on what it expects of them. It does talk about most in
need; it does talk about serving dropouts and 40-percent youth. On
the ether hand, for most of the ocal eperatore that we talked to,
their perspective was basically what they heard emanating from
Washington was the importance of high placement rates, low costs,
and bringing in welfare recipients. They did not hear that those
provisions of the legislation focusing on most in need and youth
and dropouts were that important. Therefore, they focused on what
they heard was irripertani., the high placement rates, low cost, and
they achieved that. Se they really focused on those aspects of legis-
lation they felt they got the most reward for carrying out.

Mr. MARTINEZ. ,,et me ask you one more re-' quick question.
How does the short period of training really pr ..ie long-term job
potential? In my thinking, jobs that you can tr. it people for very
quickly are jobs that have a low amount of skill connected with
them. Therefore, there really is no guarantee of long-term employ-
ment.

Mr. WALKER. I don't thirk any cf these programs, no matter how
long or how short, can gaarantee long-term employment, but cer-
tainly what we heard in the field was that JTPA functioned best as
a very efficient employment exchange at the local level in filling
those jobs that were immediately available. That also meant that it
iunctions best for people who may be unemployed, who may be low
income, who may have some support service needs, but who are ba-
sically work-ready; who do have basic literacy skills and with a 10-
or 11- or 12-week course, can be polished up and ready to put into
that available job. That is really where this program functions at
its peak.

It would deal. of course, with those people who have greater
needs or longer-term needs. It just simply can't bring them in.

Mr. MARVNEZ. So without a revision of the program itself and
directing it toward those other neople, those most in need will con-
tinue to be unserved.

Mr. WALKER. I think not. Certainly between our first time in the
field and our second time, we saw a drastic decrease of interest on
the part of local operators on even claiming the rhetoric that they
were dealing with those most in need. In fact, what we heard the
last time out was that dealing with those much harder-to-serve
groups could not be done in a program that was so focused on
having the private sector involved because that group would not
maintain their interest. They would need much more money in
support services; would need reduced pressure on performance, cer-
tainly, and more flexibility and focus on creative and innovative
programming that a program Eire JTPA just doesn't lead you . at.u-
rally to deal with those kinds of people and their problems.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Gunderson.
Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you. I am just going to be. very brief be-

cause of your time problem and out time problem. Just one clarifi-
cation, end that is in page 6 of your testimony, you say, "Though
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the official placement rates were based on only 1 day on the job,
they are widely viewed within the system as evidence of success."
Is this a standard across all service delivery areas that placement
rates are based on only 1 day on the job?

Mr. WALKER. Yes. When we were outthere may have been one
or two exceptions, Congressman, but certainly for the vast majori-
ty, it was 1. day on the job, and that was no different than CETA,
so it was that JTPA was doing anything different here. These
placement rates under CETA; placement rates under JTPA are
largely 1-day-on-the-job figures.

Mr. GUNDERSGN. I am going to ask you to respond, either later or
in written testimony to the whole question of liability. This area
has been one of major concern raised by our local personnel, par-
ticularly the PIC councils. If either of you would submit in written
testimony or later in remarks something on this issue of liability
and what ought to be done at the Federal level to deal with that
concern, it would be most helpful.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you.
Mr. Hayes.
Mr. HAYES. Time will not permit my questionneither mine nor

the witness' time will permit it. I would like for you to respond
maybe in writing if you can.

One of the things that JTPA sought to create was a true partner-
ship between PIC and the local elected officials with increased re-
sponsibility for States and role for the Federal Government. Do you
think that we have a true partnership?

Mr. WALKER. I would just like to answer that briefly, Mr. Hayes.
From one angle, I think there is no question that we do. You have
businessmen and volunteers sitting spending their time working
with local government on this program. In another sense, I think
we have to be realistic and recognize the limitations of a program
which takes the interest of the local public sector, which is often
towards dealing with tough social problems, and people are paid to
deal with them and a volunteer group is spending their own time,
who want to see quick successes, who really aren't in it, I think, for
a long, arduous, tortured kind of path which sometimes social pro-
gramming can be. That is just a realistic limitation of this partner-
ship.

Mr. HAYES. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Moore, I sincerely apologize. We will take an-

other 10-minute break and be back to take your testimony.
[Recess.]
Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Moore, once again, excuse us for the delay.

Why don't you proceed.
Mr. MOORE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
My comment° today are offered both as president of the San

Diego Private Industry Council, as well as president of the Nation-
al Job Training Partnership, which is an organization representing
service delivery areas, industry councils, and States involved with
the administration of the Job Training Partnership Act.

The perspective I would like to share with you is principally that
of an SDA and PIC director working day to day with the imple-
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mentation of this program, perhaps a more operational and prat,-
matic view than you might get from surveys and research reports.

I will just summarize some of the key points that I would like to
share with you from my testimony.

Overall, JTPA is working remarkably well for a program still in
its infancy. This does not mean that there are no areas of concern
because there certainly are, but overall, PIC's are appointed and
active. The private sector is more involved in Federal job training
programs than ever before in our history. Programs are operating
effectively. The eligible population is being served and the public
credibility of job training programs is high.

I would like to turn for a moment to some areas that do require
consideration. One of JTPA's most welcome and critical improve-
ments over CETA was the establishment of what I would call sta-
bility structures, a 2-year plan, a program year that, in essence, al-
lowed advanced funding, and a variety of other measures.

Theee are critical to establish a stability in program continuity
for JTPA that CETA was never afforded, but an area that was
overlooked was the volatility of sub-State funding allocations.
JTPA provides a 90 percent hold-harmless in annual funding allot-
ments to States, but there is no such provision in JTPA for sub-
State allocations to service delivery areas and PIC's.

One-third of the local SDA's allocation is awarded based on the
numbers of persons in areas of substantial unemployment, but if
that area's unemployment rate drops just below that threshold
level of 6.5 percent, it can lose 100 percent of the funding attributa-
ble to that formula element, even though the number of unem-
ployed is virtually the same in absolute numbers. This type of
funding is found in two-thirds of the formula providing moneys to
local areas.

The resulting effects are volatile funding shifts that can cause
the dismantling of entire program structures in 1 year, only r-
haps to have to be rebuilt at additional cost and delays in a subse-
quent year. Staff layoffs, termination of contracts, loss of training
facilities, interrupted commitments to employers. The list of oper-
ational impacts goes on and on. All this happens annually in the
middle of what is an approved 2-year plan.

In 1984, many SDA's experienced 30 to 50 percent funding reduc-
tions over the prior year. JTPA was intended to limit these roller -
coaster impacts on funding. Results are destabilizing and dis:up-
tive. As detrimental as the situation is for title HA, it is absolutely
devastating for the title IIB Summer Youth Employment Program.

States lack an effective means to solve this problem under the
current law. The Department of Labor has offered no adequate so-
lution. Congress needs to include in JTPA provisions extending the
90 percent hold-harmless that currently exists among States to
extend that t.., within State allocations amongst SDA's and PIC's.

A good deal el commentary in discussion today has also centered
on the question of national performance standards included in
JTPA.

I have included in my testimony a variety of information that de-
scribes a bit for you the experience of San Diego as an illustration
under the performance standards. In general, San Diego experi-
enced attainment of all seven performance standards and did so
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with no less service to hardest served mroups and no lessening of
the use of community-based organizations to deliver services. As a
result of that performance, San Diego has allocated $900,000 by the
State of California as an incentive for that performance.

Let me assure you that has become a strong incentive to contin-
ued performance and has raised the performance expectations level
in San Diego. That will allow us to serve 500 persons who other-
wise would not have been served in JTPA.

One of the key catalysts that sparked that performance was
simply the existence of clear, spe.'c'c, known public performance
standards that serve to elevate a consciousness about performance
and to define targets for performance. Performance standards have
had the overall effect of elevating the performance attainment of
the delivery system.

With regard to concerns often expressed that performance stand-
ards will invariably drive local SDA's and PIC's to select clients
most able to succeed, let me say that it is clearly possible for a
training agency to increase its likelihood of successful performance
by "creaming. But that is not an inevitable development.

For example, in San Diego, each training contract includes tar-
gets not only for performance outcomes, but numerical targets for
services to hard-to-serve groups, handicapped, limited English-
speaking, ex offender, refugees, ethnic minorities, public assistance
recipients and so forth. A contractor does not successfully perform
by achieving program outcomes if doing so is at the expense of
serving the target groups to which it is also contractually bound.

The point is that the definition of performance needs to also in-
clude considerations as to who was served. It is within the capacity
under JTPA at the Federal, State and local levels to ensure that
this is the case, to ensure that performance is also performance
with integrity.

Now, I do not wish my comments to be taken that all is roses in
the performance garden. There exists fundamental problems with
performance standard models that the .. abor Department has de-
veloped. Factors built into the model are able to explain only one-
half of all the performance variations that would occur. There are
questions to be raised with regard to the data base which the De-
partment of Labor is using for the calculation of performance
standards.

The most significant problem is he reliance upon placement
rather than long.er term measures foi assessing performance. With
the passage of JTPA, Congress stated section 106 that the basic
measure of performance would be increases in employment and
long-term earnings and reductions in welfare dependency. The cur-
rent national performance standards do not include those meas-
ures.

Maintaining public confidence and implementing congressional
intent requires significant improvement in the primitive system
that is now being utilized to measure performance. There exists
much work to be done to perfect the way in which the model is im-
plemented and the measures that are utilized.

The Department of Labor's cautious approach needs to be modi-
fied to evidence a greater commitment to impleme sting postpro-
grarn performance measures and improving the model's predictive
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validity. Each State, left to its own devices, will spawn a wide
range of systems of varying quality and limited consistency. The
national integrity of JTPA should not be left to the hopeful expec-
tation that the struggles with this issue separately in the 50 States
will simultaneously and coincidentally converge to an appropriate
system.

I would like for a inoment to talk about the area of youth serv-
ices and the concern that exists that SDA's in many cases are not
meeting the 40-percent expenditure requirement on youth. The
impact of restrictions on work experience are more significant in
JTPA than restrictions on needs-based stipend payments. In order
to encourage youth to participate in a turning program, it is often
essential that something immediate, tangible, specific and of value
be offered.

Being severely limited in the ability to pay stipends, and with
severe restrictions on work experience, the requirement to expend
40 percent of all moneys on youth, which, because of the unit cost
of youth programs, may mean 50 to 60 percent of all persons
served, is a demanding task.

On-the-job training programs are often also limited in their abili-
ty to serve youth due to State laws prohibiting youth working in
many occupations under the age of 18 or 19. The combination of
limited program strategies, along with a 40 percent expenditure re-
quirement, is a primary reason why SDA's have had difficulty
meeting new service levels.

The real issue is to examine whether or not we have built into
JTPA adequate strategies, adequate program strategies to serve
youth at the level to which we expect youth to be served in this
program. The issue of liability was raised a moment ago, and cer-
tainly questions surrounding financial liability for minor violations
of procedural rules and regulations preoccuupied much of the man-
agement energy of the CETA system in its final years.

It would be a mistake of great consequence to return to the point
where the dominant performance objective of the service delivery
area was minimization of exposure to financial liability, but JTPA
is now approaching, in tnis next year, the period in which the
result of initial audits conducted under JTPA will first be seen.

States, in the face of limited Federal guidance, are pursuing a
protective and defensive approach. What is an allowable cost in
one State may be a disallowed cost in another. There are no nation -
a! audit standards for allowable costs under JTPA. There can be 50
separate interpretations in 50 separate States.

The Labor Department's position that Governors can proceed
with great flexibility and that the Federal Government will not
later question such interpretations is believed by no one at the
State and local level, and with good cause. The Department of
Labor has done a service to the delivery system Lnder JTPA by not
hamstringing the system with needless regulation. But there are
key areas in which greater guidance is needed and one of the most
important of these is audits and liability.

One of JTPA's most controversial features was its elimination of
stipends for all practical purposes. It should be obvious that absent
any means of income support, it if virtually impossible for an indi-
vidual to participate for any extended duration in a skills training
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activity. However, it is also true the question of income support is
not synonymous with stipends.

A major response b-, SDA's to lack of stipends was to attempt to
structure alternative programs better able to serve participants
with limited in-program income. This included part-time jobs. It in-
cludes the use of on-the-job training, combined with classroom
training. It includes the intensifying of instruction to shorten the
length of time a person may need to acquire certain job skills.

But all these adjustments together cannot address the problem
completely. If our policy objective is to have a system accessible to
all persons who are eligible, then somethi-g more needs to be done.
To simply suggest that motivation by itself is sufficient to sustain
an individual in P. longer term turning program is at best naive
and at worst, smacks of "let them eat cake."

Now, one potential solution is to establish a more flexible system
that is currently in effect, one that provides increased flexibility to
the local area I am not suggesting a return to stipends. Simple
income transfers fail to reinforce incentives for participant per-
formance, but the flexibility to establish, for example, earned-in-
centive payments, where a participant can earn an amount for
achievement of training objectives, attendance levels, competencies
attained, can provide a source of earned income during the pro-
gram associated with achievement.

This is just one example. If, in fact, what we care about is the
total cost of a person to be served, we should be concerned less
aboutat the national levelabout defining the rules and restric-
tions on stipends and support of services.

Finally, with regard to displaced workers, I would like to offer
some observations concerning the underexpenditure of title III
moneys. Title B1 funds do n' Av by formula to the local level.
Twenty-five percent are retained by the Department of Labor. At
the State level, the remaining 75 percent is often distributed
through requiring local applications for moneys.

The mechanism of a local application is time consuming. Waiting
to apply for funds until a plant is already closed impedes the abili-
ty to put together a program. Particularly critical of displaced
workers is that if you cannot put that program together by the
time the plant zlosed, the longer it takes to get the moneys, the
less likely you are going to be abie to involve the persons in the
program.

Finally, Mr. Chairman, the last thought I would leave with you
is the urging in the strongest of terms to preserve the local flexibil-
ity. A key to maintaining business, elected official and community
support is to keep their roles meaningful and JTPA will succeed
based on the strength of those local partnerships and flexibility is
the key to allowing those partnerships to emerge.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Patrick W. Moore follows:)

PREPARED STATEMENT Or PATRICK W. MOORE, PRESIDENT, SAN DIEGO PRIVATE
INDUSTRY COUNCIL AND PRESIDENT, NATIONAL JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP, INC

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee, am Patrick W. Moore, Presi-
dent and Managing Office: of the San Diego Private Industry Council. In that ca-
pacity I serve as chief staff to the San Diego PIC, as well as Executive Director of
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the San Diego Regional Employment and Training Consortium, the administrative
entity for JTPA in the city an . county of San Diego,

I also have the pnvilege cf serving as President of the National Job Training
Partnership, Inc. The National Job Training Partnership is the only national orga-
nization representing all of the various local and state "partners" that operate
under the National Job Training Partnership Act.

Let me express my appreciation for the invitation to address your Committee at
its initial hearing on JTPA oversight.

The testimony you will receive today from other witnessesprincipals involved
with the General Accounting Office, the Grink r-Walker and the Westat studies
will provide you a comprehensive overview of to nds that can be observed in JTPA.
I would like to share with you my perspectives a.: an SDA and PIC Director, work-
ing day-to-day with the implementation and management of this perhaps
a more operational and pragmatic perspective than surveys anrgreZarnich reports
might convey. While the comment I offer are purely my own, they do reflect obser-
vations gleaned not only from San Diego's experience, but also from knowledge of,
and interaction with, many of my peers.

Si, that you may better understand the context for my own comments, the San
Diego Service Delivery Area (SDA) includes both the city and the county of San
Diego. and represents a population just in excess of two (2) million. The San Diego
SDA reflects a blend of urban and rural communities, with an vxonomy character-
ized by a diverse combination of tourism, defense related industries, agriculture, the
Navy, and rapidly expanding high tech, electronics and bio-tech industries.

The annual unemployment rate for San Diego for the past calendar year was
6.2%. Although unemployment has been declining in San Diego, significant struc-
tural shifts in the local economy have resulted in major plant closures in the tuna
(fishing and canning), and ship building and repair industries. Indeed, over 10,000
workers have become unemployed from various local plant closures and mass lay-
offs over the oast twenty four months. Although San Diego's overall unemployment
remains below the national average, more than 50,000 San Diegans are today unem-
ployedand they represent those with the most severe barriers to employment. Mi-
nonty and youth unemployment continue at unacceptably high levels.

Drawing from San Diego's own perspecthe as well as from a knowledge of other
SDA and PIC experiences, I would like to focus my comments today on several key
issues: sub-state funding allocations, performance standards, services to youth,
audits and liabilities, participant income support, and displaced workers.

My perspective on these issues is not only shaped from experience with JTPA. I
served as a prime sponsor director of nearly ten years during CETA, first in a rural
area of Oregon and subsequently in Southern California, and have had the opportu-
nity over the past fifteen years to direct training programs under the Manpower
Development and Training Act (MDTA) and the Economic Opportunity Act (BOA)
prior to CETA; as well as to work at the State and Federal levels.

OVERVIEW

JTPA is working It is working remarkably well for a program still in its infancy.
This does not mean there are no :Teas of concern, because then' are. But overall,
PICs are appointed and ac...ve; the private sector is more involved in federal job
training progra.as than ever before in our history, programs are operating effective-
ly; the eligible population is being served; and the public credibility of job training
programs, both with the business and general communities is high. This success is
not only dim to the structure and design of the JTI'A legislation, but is also in good
measure due to the ability of JTPA to capitalize on the institutional knowledge and
capacities that had been developed from over a decade of CETA experience.

VUB-STATE FUNDING ALLOCATIONS

One of JTPA's most welcome and critical improvements over CETA W99 the estab-
lishment of "stability structures"a two-year plan; a staggered program year that,
in erect, provides forward funding; safeguards against frequent, last minute regula-
tory or performance standard changes; requirements for prompt allocation of funds,
three year expenditure authority for obligated funds These features, in tandem
with the Federal commitment to allow a period of legisIstwe stability and not
"tinker" prematurely with the program, continued to be vital to JTPA's health and
programmatic matt.. ity But an area overlooked is the volatility of sub-state funding
allocations

JTPA provides a 90% hold harmless in annual funding allotments to states. Re-
gardless of funding formula shifts, a state is assured that funding in any year will
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be no less than 90% of whet it reel ived in the prior year A similar stabilizing fea-
tun, was present in CETA throughout its history. But there is no provision in JTPA
regarding sub-state allocations to local Service Delivery Areas.

One third ('Is) of a local SDA's allocation is awarded based upon the number of
unemployed persons in areas of substantial unemployment (6.5%) or higher). But if
its unemployment rate drops just below 6.5 percent, it can lose 100% of the funding
that is attributable to this formula elementeven though the number of unem-
ployed is virtually the same in absolute numbers. This type of "funding cliff' is also
present in the formula element (with a weight of one third) that allocates funds

on "excess unemployment" (above 4.5%). Thus, two thirds (%) of the local
funding mechanism is subject to this dynamic.

The resulting effecte are volatile funding shifts in local areas that can cause the
dismantling of entire program tructures in one year, only to perhaps be reinstated
at added cost and operating delays in a subsequent year. Staff layoffs; termination
of contracts; low of training fatilities; interrupted commitments to employers; scaled
down participant recruitment activities; storage, sale or transfer of training equip-
mentthe list of operational impacts goes on and on. A slight iise in employment
above the 6.5% threshhold in the subsequent year requires reinstatement of these
contractions. And all of this happens annually, in the middle of the approved two
year plan.

In 1984, many SDAs everienced funding reductions of 30% to 50% from the prior
year JTPA was intended to limit these "roller coaster' funding fluctuations which
are not only costly and interruptive to program continuity, but which also damage
business and local community amfidence in the program.

Such volatile shifts dramatically and disproportionately affect resources for rela-
tive small changes in the level of local unemployment. The results are destabilizing
and disruptive. With a gradual lowering of national unemployment, the number of
areas that hover close to these funding precipices increase, and system wide effects
magnify. M detrimental as this situation is for Title II-A, it is devabtating with
regard to the Title II-B summer youth employment program.

Stake lack effective means to solve this problem under the current law. The De-
partment of Labor has offered no adaquate solution. The Congress needs to include
within JTPA, provisions extending the 90% hold harmless provisions currently in
effect among states, to within-state allocations to SDAs for Title II-A and II-B.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

A good deal of commentary and concern have surfaced regarding JTPA's inclu-
sion, for the first time, of national performance standards. Skeptics cite the poten-
tial for detrimental impact on participant selection (i.e., those most in need may not
be served), and advocates cite the positive effect that accountability measure have
had on program performance.

I would like to illustrate some points with regard to this debate by citing Califor-
nia's and San Diego's specific experience.

The State of California, along with the majority of states, uses the performance
standards model that has been developed by the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL).
That model takes the seven (7) national performance standards identified by the
Secretary and prescribes a means by which these national standards are adjusted
for each SDA, based upon a range of characteristics, including service to various
target groups, local unemployment rates, and other relevant elements.

California moved quickly and aggressively to implement the use of performance
incentive funds. Approximately 80% of California s "6%" performance incentive
monies are allocated among Service Delivery Areas. SDAs meeting five out of their
seven performance standards, and not falling short of any of those mimed by more
than 15%, are eligible to receive a share of performance incentive monies, based on
the number of standards met; the degree to which standards were exceeded; and the
size of the Service Delivery Area.

San Diego's experience with regard to performance 1,tanclards under this sys..-,em
for the nme months' transition period of October 1, 1983 through June 3C, 19o4 was
as follows:

Pertneva artery
Performs-ice

Actual

Entered employment rate (adult)

Welfare entered errolornent rate
55 percent

38 paccrs.

93

78 percent

64 percent



90

Performance Wen;
Perfonnance

Standard Actual

Menge wage $4 46 $4 61
Cost per ..atered employment $4.595 $2,835
Entbed employment rate (youth) 47 per. cot 75 percent
Positive terrnmabon rate 73 percent 81 percent
Cost per rosrtne lemmata' $3,022 $2,947

Not only did perfcrniance during the first program year of JTPA exceed the
standards set by the model, but it also exceeded in all categories the experience of
San Diego during the last year of CETA:

Cntena Last Year CETA 'IPA

Entered imployment rate (adult) . 60 percent 78 percent
Welfare entered employment rate 52 percent 64 percent
Average wage $4 43 $4 61
Cost per entered employment $3,675 $2,835
Entered employment rate (youth) 49 percent 75 percent
Posrtne terminattco rate . 68 percent 81 percent
Cost pe' positive !notion. $3,239 $2,947

This level of improved performance was not obtau.ed at the sacrifice of any signif-
icant change in the persons being served.

Penxet

Lastarr 'IPA

Female 46 50
Public assistance recipient 34 34
Handicapped 9 8
Unemployed 15 weeks or more (adults) 67
Black 22 23
Hispanic 25 23
Asian/Pacific Islander 12 13
School dropout 26 22
Single head of househotd with dependents 19 20
Unemployment insurance claimant 12 11
Age 21 and under 35 34
Age 55 and over 6 7

Increased performance wab ''too not obtained from any significt..it shift in the
type of organizations from which training services were purchased

TRAINING CONTRACTS BY TYPE OF AGENCY

Percent
Type

Last year
OtIA

'TPA

Community based organizations 48 45
Public education 21 22
Private education 1 1 10
Private employers 8 9
Local governments 9 9
Other private, nonprofit (for example, labor, chambers of commerce, and so forth) 2 5
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As you can see from the data, San Diego experi, nced successful attainment of all
seven performance standards; exceeded performance during the prior year of CETA;
did so with no significant change in service to hard-to-serve population groups, did
not lessen its use of community organizations to deliver training; expenenced no
change in SDA boundaries from the previous prime sponsor; and did not change ad-
ministrative entities from CETA to JTPA

As a result of this performance and California's approach to implementing a
strong performance incentives system, San Diego received a performance incentive
award of $885,507. And let me assure 3 su that that has become a strong incentive
for continued performance in the current year, and has elevated performance expec-
tations to a new level in San Diego.

What was the cause for increased performance? In part, it was an improved eco-
nomic climate that saw average unemployment in San Diego drop two percentage
points. But the improvements in performance more than exceeded the expectations
that accompany this change. And, the performance standards model incorporates
the factor of local unemployment in its setting of the performance standards to be
reached. The catalyst that sparked performance included-

The establishment by the PIC of an Evaluation Committee that scrutinized per-
formance;

Termination by the PIC or half a dozen contracts Oat -sere not performing, clear-
ly signaling to the local delivery system the seriousness of the PIC's intent; and

The simple existence of clear, specific, known and public performance b:,.-Indards
that served to elevate awareness and define targets.

This is not to suggest that organizations delivering job training services are not
concerned about accomplishment without the "stick" of performance standards.

We in San Diego believe that we have an effective, c4ncemed, competent set of
service delivery organizations. However, the existzr_ of performance standards has
raised the consciousness of SDAs, PICe, and training providers. Performance stand-
ards combined with the extensive use of fixed unit price performance contracts (the
only method of contracting used in San Diego) has had an overall effect of elevating
the performance attainment of the delivery system.

But what of fie concerns often expressed that performance standards and use of
fixed unit price contracting will invariably drive local SDAs and PICA to select cli-
ents most able to succeed? And doesn't this seemingly inevitable tradeoff suggest
that a system focused on performance outcomesa "performance driven" system
will perversely affect service to population groups for whom job training programs
were intended in the first place?

It is clearly possible for a training agency to increase its likelihood of successful
performance by "creaming" the mcnt successful persons from among the population
to he served. But this is not an inevitable development. In San Diego, each training
contract includes not only targets for performance outcomes, but it also contains nu-
merical targets for the percentage of persons to be Berns' from various hard-to-serve
population groups. A contractor does not successfully perform by achieving higher
program outcomes, if doing so is at the expense of the target groups to which it is
also contractually bound. Successful performance is to include considerations of
both who is served, as well as what outcomes are produced. When the option of
achieving higher performance outcomes through neglect of service to key population
groups is removed, then increased performance has to be obtained through program
efficiencies and improved effectiveness in operation.

My point in dwelling on San Diego's experience is simply to convey a specific il-
lustration of the desirablP impact that performance standards have had, and to
demonstrete that often expressed fears regarding undesirable effects on services to
hard-to-serve groups are not an inherent tradeo. that should cause us to doubt the
wisdom or value of a "performance driven" system.

I do not wish my comments to be taken that "all is roses" in the performance
garden. There exists fundamental problems with the performance standard model
that the Labor Department has developed and which is being utilized by the majori-
ty of states. The model attempt to factor in elements such as service to hard-to-serve
groups, local unemployment rates, program duration, and other features to validly
predict an expected of performance. However, factors built into the model are
able to explain or predict lees than one-half of all of the variations in performance.
This means that more than half of the factors which contribute to performance vari-
ance cannot be considered within the confines of the model. Further, there are ques-
tions to be raised with regard to the data base that is now ',eing utilized by the
Department of Labor for the performance model as we enter the next program year.

The most significant problem with the current performance standards system is
the reliance upon placement rather than longer tone measures for assessing per-
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formance With the passage of JTPA, Congress stated in Section 106 that the basic
measure of performance for ^-lult training programs under Title II are to be in-
creases in employment ay.,, earnings and reductions in welfare dependency The cur-
rent national performai.:..e standards do not include these measures. The Office of
Management and Budget's denial of the U.S. Department of Labor's requests to es-
tablish post program data collection categories makes the implementation of any
such standards virtually impossible.

The existence of performance standards has increased the credibility of JTPA
with the business and the general community. They are an asset in building public
confidence in JTPA expenditures. It distinguishes JTPA as virtually the only pro-
gram in the social services arena with such visible and specific measures of perform-
ance It would be a mistake of monumental proportions to remove from JTPA the
desirable features of a "performance driven" system. At the same time, maintaining
this confidence and implementing congressional intent requires significant improve-
ment in the primitive system now being utilized. There exists much work to be done
to perfect the way in which the current national performance standards model is
constructed and the measures used. While some efforts are underway at the Depart-
ment of Labor to examine the current model, the disposition of the Department of
Labor is to make relatively few changes, leaving well enough along, leaving adjust-
ments to be made at the State level. The Department's cautious approach should be
modified and a greater commitment made to implementing post program perform-
ance meraures and improving the current model's predictive validity.

FA& state left to its own devices will spawn a wide range of systems of varying
q iity and limited consistency. This is an area in which great ar Feesral leadership
is required. The national integrity of JTPA should not be left to a hopeful expecta-
tion that the struggles with this issue separately in the fift, states will simulta-
neously and coincidentally converge to an appropriate system. We must not lose the
opportunity we have in JTPA to build public confidence through demonstrations of
accountability and performance. The need to perfect better systeuis a-id measures
must proceed rapidly and with urgency.

SERVICES TO YOUTH

I would like to turn to the area of youth services. There exits concern that most
SDAs are not meeting the 4 "o expenditure requirement for services to youth As
you art aware, JTPA retit;'_e that 40% of JTPA expenditures be on services to
youth Unlike provisions ..nat existed under CETA that tracked services to y th as
a percent of persons served, JTPA measures youth services in terms of expe.n 44-
tures. The true effect of this standard iu to effectively require that 50-60 percent of
all persons served be youth. This is due to the oftentimes lower unit cost for youth
programs. Whee'..er or not you view this effect as desirable, I would like to raise two
observations regarding the meeting of this requirement.

The impact of restrictions on work experience are more significant in JTPA than
restrictions on needs-based payments. As difficult as it may be to expect adults to
enter a training program for a future benefit of employment and higher wages, it is
a more difficult proposition to expect youth to associate with such deferred rewards.
In order to encourage youth to participate in a training program, it is often essen-
tial that something immediate, tangible, specific and of value be offered. Severely
limited now in the ability to pay stipends, and with severe restrictions on work ex-
perience, the requirement to spend 40% of all monies on youth (which may mean
services to 50-60% of all persons enrolled) poses a demanding task. On-the-job train-
ing programs are also often limited in their ability to serve youth due to state laws
prohibiting youth under age of 18 or 19 from working in a variety of oo:upations.
While Section 205 of JTPA describes a variety of exemplary programs available for
youth, these are limited in many cases to in-school youth.

JTPA limits many of the services strategies that are appropriate for serving
youth, particularly younger youth and youth who are out of school. The combina-
tion of limited program strategies, along with a requirement that (effectively) 50-
60% of all persons served by youth, is the primary reason why SDAs have in nieny
cases fallen short of meeting required youth service levels. This shortfall doe3 not
reflect a lack of priority or absence of concern for serving youth. Services to oung
persons are at or near the top of the priority list for virtually every local communi-
ty; and they are not at the top of that list simply because JTPA establishes a target;
it is because youth experience the highest rates of unemployment and con munities
are genuinely concerned about the future of their young people.

If we are to effectively serve youth with quality programs, and if ;',ITA is to roach
its youth expenditure targets, some adjustments must be made. This issue needs to
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be examined not simply from the standpoint of whether or not we have adequately
provided PIC's and service delivery areas the tools to effectively serve youthboth
at the level the Congress has intended and to the level to which local areas aspire

A Second issue regarding the 40% requirement concens the cost of data collection.
Administative funds are severely restricted in JTPA The administrative cost and
complexity of tacking expenditures for youth is considerably greater than tracking
persons. It is a relatively easy matter to count the number of persons aged 21 and
under as a percent of total enrollments. However, in training programs which may
serve persons both over and under the thremoid age of 21, it is terribly complex to
track each individual cost associated separately with each individual participant
The Department of Labor's position has bee' gnat the pro-rating of program costs
proportionately to persons aged 21 and uncle' does not meet the requirements of the
Act Unless the pro-rating of common program costs is sanctioned by JTPA and the
Labor Department, tracking this requirement will absorb undue amounts of limited
administrative funds and expose SDAs to potential questioned costs

AUDITS AND LIABILITIES

Questions surrounding aduits and liabilities, as I believe this Committee is well
aware, preoccupied much of the management energy and the concerns of the CETA
system during its final years. This focus arose due to the degree of financial expo-
sure that local governments and training operators experienced for what were often
minor violations of procedural rules and regulations.

It would be a mistake of great consequence to return to the point where the domi-
nant performance objective of Service Delivery Area administrative entities is the
minimization of exposure to financial liability. When management energy is preoc-
cupied with such exposure, and when the key definition of local progazn success be-
comes the avoidance of financial liability, we have lost much of what JTPA aspires
to.

JTPA is now approaching in this next year the period in which the results of ini-
tial audits conducted under JTPA will be seen. JTPA is at the threshold of a similar
prcoccuptaion with audit and liability issues and concerns as existed under Crw'A
States, in efforts to protect their financial resources, and in the face of
Fedeal guidance as to what are allowable expenditures, are pursuing a protective
and defensive approach. What is an allowable cost in one state may be a di lowed
cost in another. There are no national audit standards for allowable costs under
JTPA There can be 50 separate interpretations in 50 separate states. The passage
in 1984 of the Single Aduit Act has left auditors throughout the system with ques-
tions as to its application to JTPA. The Labor Department's position that governors
can proceed with great flexibility and the Federal government will not later ques-
tion such interpretations, is believed by virtualy no one at the atate and local
leveland with good cause.

The Department of Labor has done a great service to the JTPA delivery system
by not hamstringing the system with the needeless, overbearing, cumbersome and
petty regulations that characterized CETA; but there are key areas in which greater
basic guidance is neededone of the most important of these is that of audits and
liability.

PARTICIPANT INCOME SUPPORT

One of JTPA's most controversial features Is its virtual elimination of stipends,
and the debate as to its positive and negative effects on program delivery. I would
like to address this issue fm a moment fro a an operational perspective.

It should be obvious that absent any means of income support, it is virtually im-
possible for an individual to participate for any extended duration in skills training
activity. However, it is also true that the question of income support is not synony-
mous with stipends.

Many Service Delivery Amu, such as San Diego, pay no stipends whatsoever, but
rather provide a limited range of supportive services. An initial program adjustment
to the elimination of stipends was, most immediately and most often, to engage in
more extensive outreach efforts, attempting to find persons who could survive in
training without income support provided by the program This was contributed in
part to the high levels of service to public assistance recipients and also shows up in
services to unemployment insurance recipients. This response required the least
amount of programmatic change.

However, in many cases, that recruitment effort has either been insufficient to
locate the number of persons sought, or once having readied the most readily avail-
able persons, the basic dilemma resurfaces.
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A second response is to seek alternative means of income support to participants.
This may take the form of securing part-time jobs matched to part-time training;
increased utilization of combined on-the-job training and classroom training; train-
ing conducted at off hour times; and intensifying instruction in order to shorten the
calendar length of training.

These adiustments are generally desirable and can enable service to a number of
persons But they carnot address the problem completely If our policy objective is
to have a system accessible to all persons eligible (and some will suggest that this
may not be our objective), then something more needs to be done To simply suggest
that motivation by itself is sufficient to sustain an individual in a longer term train-
ing program is at best naive.

One potential solution lies in establishhig a more flexible system than is currently
in effectone that provides increased discretion to the local Service Delivery Area
and the local PIC.

I am not suggesting a return to stipends as we traditionally have known them
Simple income transfers fail to reinforce incentives attached to participant perform-
ance. But the flexibility to establish participant "earned incentive payments",
where a participant can earn an amount for achievement of training objectives (e.g.,
attendance levels, competencies attained, learning tasks or levels satisfactorily com-
pleted, etc.) can provide a source of in program earned income that is associated
with the achievement of training objectives. Associated with training competencies,
such costa should be chargeable as a training cost. It in unclear now as to whether
such systems are allowable under JTPA and how they are counted. This is only one
example of what may be a variety of alternative approaches.

If, in fact, what we care about is the total cost per person to be served, then we
should be concerned less at the national level about defining rules on stipends, or
limitations on support services (or even administration coats), and provide increased
flexibility to local areas to mount what is an appropriate local pr,sram design,
withi,1 the cost performance standards which have been established.

DISPLACED WORMERS

I would like to offer some observations regarding the underexpenditure of Title III
Displaced Workers Funds.

Title III funds do not flow by formula to the local level. Twenty-five percent of
Title III funds are held at the Federal level. At the state level, the remaining seven-
ty-five percent is distributed through a variety of approaches. These range from
state operated programs to application processes in which locals may apply for
funds as plant closures or mass layoffs occur.

The mechanism of local application for funds is time consuming. Waiting to apply
for funds when a plant closure is imminent obviously impedes the ability to quickly
mount programs. Commitments have to be hedged as there is not certainty of fund-
ing. Particularly critical with regard to displaced workers is the importance of in-
volving the workers to be laid off as soon as is possible in a placement or retraining
effort. Pre-intervention activities, which are critical to effective displaced worker
programs, are impeded when there are no funds available to support such activities.
The longer the time delay for funds to arrive after closure or layoff, the fewer work-
ers who will likely be involved in training.

There Rho° lies some difficulty in the definition of displaced worker. Many states
have viewed displaced workers primarily as persons unemployed from major plant
closures or mass layoffs of sigificant size. While long term unemployed persons are
eligible under Title a the tendency to focus principally on plant closures has
handicapped the ability of many rural areas to be as fully active in Title III as
might be the case. Often in smaller rural communities there is no single, major
plant closure, but rather the erosion of a particular industrywhich may be charac-
terized by small businessover time.

The requirement for matching funds is also sometimes a difficult proposition at
the local level. Difficulty often lies in quickly being able to ensemble commitments
for matching funds sufficient to support program applications.

A better understanding as m the Congressional intent with regard to service to
long term unemployed persona through Title III, coupled with a more direct flow of
some portion of Title III funds to local areas with significant numbers of displaced
workers, and some relief from the level of matching funds currently required, would
speed the implementation of this program.
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SUMMARY

The last thoughts I wish to leave with you as you proceed through JTPA over-
sight is the urging, in the strongest of terms, to preserve and expand upon local
flexibility and discretion. A key to maintaining business, local elected official, and
community support is to keep their roles meaningful and not to erode local decision
making authority. JTPA is and will succeed based on the strength of the local part-
nerships. Those partnerships are to be encouraged and allowed to flourish. The key
to this continued development will be the degree of flexibility provided at the local
level to assemble the most effective program.

Thank you again for the invitation to testify

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Moore, thank you for your testimony It is
very enlightening and I think that I would like to have some fur-
ther conversation with you.

You are in San Imago, right-
Mr. MooRE. Yes.
Mr. MARTINEZ [continuin ]. So you are not too far from my dis-

trict in Los Angeles. Of all ,,f the things you have suggestedyou
hit on one thing that is of, I think, vital interest to us and that is
performance with integrity. You almost laid out a specific criteria
for program performance. I would like to get a little elaboration on
that in written communication with us and I will probably talk to
ycii further on the phone.

AL this time, because we are going to be having a series of votes
on the floor, I would like to conclude this hearing, and I would like
to request unanimous consent fcr two adaitional JTPA studies to
be included in the hearing record. The first is the GAO study con-
ducted at the request if Senator Kennedy, which was referred to us
earlier; and the second is the study conducted at the University of
Chicago.

[The GAO study for Senator Edward M. Kennedy follows:]
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UNITED STATES GENERALAr.COUNT1NG OFFICE

WASHINGTON. O.C. zDs4a

Aor1 22, :985
MIJAN 0111:11101XCCS

B-218744

The Honorable Edward M. Kennedy
Ranking minority Member
Committee on Labor and
Human Resources

United States Senate

Dear Senator Kennedy:

Subject: Concerns Within the Job Training Community
Over Labor's Ability to implement the Job
Training partnership Act (GAO/HRD-85-61)

As your office requested, we are providing you with
information on the Department of Labor's role in implementing
the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) and the potential impact
reduction-in-f :ce (RIF) and reorganization had on its ability

to carry out that role. Because of the relative newness of the
JTPA program and the evolving nature of Labor's and the states'
roles in administering it, we concentrated our efforts on ob-
taining the views of members of tne job training community' as
to the potential impact of these actions. These views were
their 7erception of Labor's ability to implement the act, and as
a consequence, could not be independently verified by our staff.

We identified some concerns within that community over
Labor's ability to adequately Implement JTPA. Specifically,
these concerns relate to (1) the potentially adverse impact of a
May 1984 RIF and reorganization within the Employment and Train-
ing Administration (ETA) on staff morale, program expertise, and
efficiency of program implementation and (2) the lack of JTPA
program guidance to the states.

1This term is used throughout this report to collectively
describe representatives of employment and training organiza-
tions, including Labor's Employment and Training Administra-
tion, Office of Inspector General, and regional offices; the
states; and public interest groups.
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The results of our work are summarized below, and enclo-
sures I through VI provide information on ETA staffing levels
for selected periods between fiscal years 1980 and 1985; a sum-
mary of ETA personnel actions associated with the May 25, 1984,
RIF; and organizational charts of each ETA administrative office
before and after the reorganization.

BACKGROUND

On October 1, 1983, JTPA :Public Law 97-300) replaced the
Comprehensive Employment and Training Act of 1978 (CETA) as the
nation's primary federally funded employment and training pro-
gram. Similar to its predecessor, JTPA provides remedial educa-
tion, training, and employment assistance to unskilled and eco-
nomically disadvantaged individuals primarily through a locally
based program delivery system. 3nlike CETA, however, JTPA
reduces the Department of Labor's involvement in the program by
shifting many administrative and oversight functions to the
states. ETA, which is responsible for administering JTPA at the
federal level, has interpreted its role to be one of providing
broad policy guidance and oversight and has implemented federal
regulations that give the states broad authority to interpret
most provisions of the law. Consistent with these reduced re-
sponsibilities, in February 1984 ETA notified its employees of
plans to reduce the number of its personnel. It also decided to
reorganize its national office concurrent with the staff
reduction.

OBJECTIVESt SCOPE, ANL METHODOLOGY

The objectives of our audit efforts were to develop infor-
mation concerning how ETA was carrying out its responsibility
for the JTPA program and to assess the rantial impact a RIF
and reorganization may have nad on ETA's anility to carry out
those responsioilities. In addition, we obtained the laws of
members of the :ob training community as to he potential prob-
lems associated pith these actions.

Our work was conducted at Laoor's headquarters in Washing-
ton, D.C., where we spoke with officials from ETA and the Office
of Inspector General (DIG) and reviewed available documents. We
also reviewed the JTPA legislation, including the legislative
history and Labor regulations and field memorandums, to obtain a
better understanding of Labor's responsibilities under the act.
In addition, we developed detailed information on ETA staffing
levels before and after the May 1984 RIF. We also spoke with
ETA regional officials in Atlanta, Dallas, Denver, and Philadel-
phia and with state JTPA officials in Colorado, Georgia, Penn-
sylvania, Texas, and 7irginia. Tne four ETA reg.onal ?orations
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and four of the five states were selected because each of the
La.ror regional offices and the state JTPA offices were conveni-
ently located within or near the same cities. The fifth state,
Virginia, was selected because of its proximity to Washington,
D.C.

We also net with officials from four national organiza-
tions- -the National Alliance of Business, the National Associa-
tion of Counties, the National Conference of State Legislatures,
and the National Governors' Association--and obtained their
views on the impact of ETA's RIF and reorganization.

Our work was conducted initially during the period April
through October 1984 and later updated, for the most part,
during February and March 1985. It was performed in accordance
with generally accepted government audit standards.

ETA RIF AND REORGANIZATION

Labor has been in a posture of reducing its staffing levels
within ETA since the end of fiscal year 1981, at which time the
staff level was 3,326--1,302 in the national office and 2,024 in
the regional offices. For the most part, these reductions can
be attributed to the administration's 1981 push to reduce the
size of federal operations, the phasing down of the former CETA
program, and the reduced federal role under JTPA. In March
1983, the Assistant Secretary for ETA testified before the
committee on Labor, Health and Human Services, and Education,
House Committee on Appropriations, that. an Internal management
study had shown that about 2,000 individuals '.are needed to
carry out the agency's responsibilities. ETA requested 2,009
positions for fiscal year 1984. During fiscal year 1984, how-
ever, ETA proposed further staff reductions, through a RIF, to a
level of 1,824 positions. ETA budget submissions far fiscal
years 1985 and 1986 Included further staff reductions. For
fiscal year 1985, ETA requested $111.1 million to support 1,764
positions and for fiscal year 1986, $105.3 million to support
1,416 positions- -848 for the national office and 568 for the
regional offices. (See encs. 1, II, and III.)

ETA's RIF, effective May 23, 1984, was aimel at reducing
its congressionally established staffing level from an author-
ized staffing level of 2,009 to 1,824, a reduction of 185 posi-
tions. ETA also reorganized its office concurrent with
the RIF in order to minimize disruption of operations and attain
stability as soon as possible. The national office reorganiza-
tion was based on informal discussions and negotiations between
the Assistant Secretary and heads of ETA's administrative of-
fices. ETA had previously reorganized its regional offices on

11 2
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October 23, 1983, based on tne recommendations of a formal task
force consisting of five ETA staff mercers. The primary puroose
of this reorganization was to reflect tne change in regional
responsioilities from grants management t.3 program monitoring.

RIF

Although ETA's May 1984 staff reduction was to reduce staff
to a level of 1,824 positions, other personnel actions asso-
ciated with tne RIF reduced ETA's s-affing level to 1,720 as of
June 23, 1984. This represented a reduction of 104 positions
below its proposed level and 289 positions below tne level of
2,009 authorized by the Congress. In total, 727 personnel ac-
tions (485 at headquarters and 242 at regional offices), includ-
ing retirements, separations, downgrades, and transfers, were
associated with the RIF. (See enc. :7.)

Of the 121 retirements associated with the May 1984 RIF,
61 were early retirements authorized by the Office of Personnel
Management. These retirements helped to lessen the adverse
impact of the RIF; for example, 51 employees facing potential
separation were retained, 44 facing demotion were not demote:,
and 3 facing geographic transfers were not transferred. None-
theless, 100 employees ultimately were separated, and 218 were
demoted. Of tnose separated, 52 were offered downgrades posi-
tions but declined. Of those downgraded, 63 positions were
downgraded by three or more grade levels The following table
provides additional details on the results of staff downgrades.

11)3
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Table 1

Number of Staff Affected by Downgrades
on May 25, 1984--ETA National ana Regional Offices

GS level
before RIF

Number of staff reduced bv:
1-2 grade
levels

3 grade
levels

4-5 grade
levels

over 5
Irade levels Total

15 10 1 3 1 15

14 21 3 1 1 26

13 47 - 11 7 65

12 13 6 7 6 32

11 5 - 9 2 16

9 2 - 2 4

8 2 2 4

7 14 - - 14

6 29 1 - - 29

5 4 - - - 4

4 3 - - 3

149 13 33 17 2I2aS =MI MINN =IN !MIMI

arotal does not accee with the 218 downgrades referred t- above
and shown in enclosure IV because six employees altimatel!
decl'ned to accept downgraded positions. ETA did not have
Information un how to best reclassify these personnel actions.

ETA national and regional
office reorganization

ETA reorganized its national administrative offices by
consolidating its former 71-unit structare into 52 formal organ-
izational units. Reflecting an emphasis on program accounta-
bility, the change included the creation of a new administrative
office--the Office of Program and Fiscal Integrity--by combining
the previous Special Counselor Staff with the audit and closeout
functions transferred from the Office of Financial Control and

1 4
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Management Systems. As a result, ETA now has six (formerly
five) administrative offices all reporting to the Assistant Sec-
retary through the Deputy Assistant Secretary. (See enc. V.)
The Office of Associate Assistant Secretary fcr Employment and
Training was eliminated with the creation of the Deputy Assist-
ant Secretary position.

In addition, the Office of Strategic Planning and Policy
Development, which has responsibilities for research, evalua-
tion, and pilot and demonstration activities on employment-
related issues, was reduced from four offices and six divisions
to three divisions. This change reflects reduced funding for
pilot and demonstration activities, reduced policy formulation
responsibilities, and increased state responsibilities under
JTPA. The office's research activities are generally directed
toward developing new measures aml methodologies, such as per-
formance standards and measures fcr use in future employment-
related evaluations; its evaluation efforts are primarily
directed toward assessing the operations, results, and effect-
iveness of the JTPA program. On the other hand, pilot and dem-
onstration projects are directed toward serving special groups,
such as the handicapped, displaced homemakers, minority youth,
and individuals with limited English-speaking ability.

The shift in emphasis is demonstrated by the reduction in
the amount of funds going for pilot and demonstration projects.
In fiscal year 1983 over 550 million went for such projects. In
contrast, for program year 1985 ETA plans to fund pilot and
demonstration projects at about $4.8 million. For program year
1986. ETA requested no funds for pilot and demonstration proj-
ects and will use most of the research and evaluation funds for
evaluation. The following table shows the funding available for
research, evaluation, and pilot and demonstration projects for
1983 through 1986.

1115
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Table 2

Funds Available for Pilot and Demonstration (P&D)
and Research and Evaluation (R&E) Programs

FY 1983 through PY 1986

P&D R&E Total

FY 1983 $50,656,000 $14,288,000 564,944,000

TYa 1984 15,973,000 9,142,000 25,115,000

PYb 1984 21,180,000 12,190,000 33,370,000

PY 1985 20,698,000c 12,190,000 32,888,000

PY 1986d 15,190,000 15,190,000

Note: Above information is based on budget authority for
years indicated.

aThe transition year (TY) refers to the first 9 months of the
JTPA program -- October 1, 1983, to Jun( 30, 1984.

bJTPA operates on a program year (PY) cycle starting on July 1
and ending on June 30 of the following year.

cP&D funds for PY 1985 could be reduced to $4,823,000 contingent
on congressional action on a proposed Labor rescission of
$8,569,000 and a reduction of $7,306,000. These reductions
represent Labor's response to a congressional requirement for
limitations on consulting services.

d Budget Request for PY 1986.

In addition, several other ETA programs and functions, including
the National Occupational Information Coordinating Committee,
the Bureau of Labor Statistics, and tne Disabled Veterans Out-
reach Program, were transferred elsewhere in Labor.

ETA's October 1983 regional office reorganization resulted
in four administrative units reporting directly to the regional
administrator; previously five units reported t) the regional
administrator. (See enc. VI.) The new structure includes the
office of

--Administrative and Management Services,

JUG
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Job Training Pro^rams (formerly the Office of Comprehen-
sive Employmero d Training Act Operations and CETA
Support),

The United States Employment Service (formerly the Office
of Job Service), and

--Unemployment insurance.

As part of the reorganization, the mission and function
statements for the first three organizations above were revised
to reflect their reduced role under JTPA and the shift of many
administrative and oversight functions to the states. Unemploy-
ment insurance was not affected by JTPA, and its responsibili-
ties remained the same. Regional offices for the Job C,..rps and
the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training were not included in
the reorganization because they have separate regional ETA
operations.

JOB TRAINING COMMUNITY
CONCERNS WITS ETA RI?

Representatives of the job training community have ex-
pressed concern that certain problems may surface as a result of
the May 1984 RIF. Their comments reflect the opinion that the
staff reductions have created a situation where ETA now faces a
number of potential problems in carrying out its JTPA responsi-
bilities, including

low staff morale,

lost program expertise among ETA staff, and

--lost program efficiency and program delays.

Low morale

Concerns about low morale among the ETA staff were ex-
pressed by both the officials of public interest groups and by
senior ETA officials at headquarters and in the regions. One
ETA official said that employees think ETA has no long-term
commitment to them, so they have no commitment to ETA. Staff
fears of another RIF were noted by three ETA officials.

In later interviews with various officials, we were told
that morale in ETA has been shattered because of the continuing
fear of RiFs and downgrades. Two officials in national organ-
izations stated that ETA employees appeared to be more worried
about keeping their jobs than they were about doing them. The

1 7
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head of one ETA office stated that the fear of another RIF has
been increased by a recent proposal in Labor's fiscal year 1986
budget request to eliminate the Job Corps and to reduce staff in
3 of the 10 regional offices.

Lost expertise,

Concerns about reduced levels of expertise among the ETA
staff were expressed by officials of three national organiza-
tions and three states we visited as well as the heads of two
ETA administrative offices. An official of one national organ-
ization said that ETA no longer has staff capable of giving
technical assistance or information on such issues as what con-
stitutes a valid cost under the act and how such costs should be
allocated. The official said that ETA may not have expertise or
staff nec,asary to develop the technical and complex performance
standards required by the act. A state official said that while
the ETA staff remaining after the RIF are well-meaning, they are
not yet knowledgeable in their new roles.

The head of one ETA administrative office said that many
staff remaining after the RIF did not have the technical back-
grounds needed to meet the requirements of their new positions,
a number of young staff members with strong technical back-
grounds left ETA, and the reduction eliminated some of ETA's
best amplayees. Many of those remaining are nearing retirement
age and may not have the desire to learn new skills.

In order to gain some perspective on the effect of the RIF
on staffing size and makeup, we compared the staffing records
available for two points in time--December 31, 1983, ana Septem-
ber 30, 1984 for the two ETA offices responsible for review,
evaluation, and research and development activities and for job
training programs. The size of the professional staff at the
evaluation office had been significantly reduced--from 70 to 46
persons--during this period, and 19 of the 46 staff members
remaining after the RIF were new to that office, while 27 had
previously worked there. Fourteen of the 46 remaining profes-
sional staff members were eligible for retirement within 5
years, including 7 of the 27 staff members previously employed
in that office.

At the job training programs office, the professional staff
size had been reduced from 156 to 126. Of these, 2/ were new to
that office, and 99 were previously with that office. Of the
126 professional staff members remaining after the RIF, 56 were
eligible for retirement within 5 years, including 44 of the 99
previously with that office.
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The following table summarizes

Staff as of
Dec. 31, 1983

this

Table 3

information:

of Sept. 30, 1984Staff as
New office
employees

Former office
employees Total

Office of
Strategic
Planning
and Policy
Development 70 19 27 46

Eligible
to retire
within 5 years 7 7 14

Office of Job
Training
Programs 156 27 99 126

Eligible
to retire
within years 12 44 56

Program inefficiency and delay

Concerns about program efficiency and timeliness were
expressed by officials of the four national organizations, one
ETA administrative office, and three regional offices. The head
of one ET!. administrative office said that the reorganization
and later reassignment of staff members had aifected staff per-
formance. However, while he pointed out that mmediately after
the RIP about 80 percent of the staff in one office were in
positions for which they had no training or experience, the
long-term impact was not as severe as anticipated. We were
recently informed by this official that after providing the
staff with internal and external training and expanding staff
expertise by hiring additional personnel, the staff was now
functioning at a s-tisfactory level. In recent follow-ups with
officials from four national organizations, we were told that
they are still encountering difficulties and delays in obtaining
reports, information, and answers from ETA.

The effects of the RIF on regional operations were largely
unknown from the perspective of regional officials because they
were unclear about their future role. One regional official
believed hi= reduced staff would be sufficient if ETA's over-
sight role is limited, 2s currently designed, to determining
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whether states have appropriate JTPA systems and processes in
place.

CONCERNS WITH ETA'S UNITE*:
POLICY GUIDANCE

Representatives of the job training community have ex-
pressed concern that although the states have been given primary
responsibility for program administration, they have received
only limited policy guidance from ETA. At 'he same time, state
programs are subject to close scrutiny through audits and evalu-
at!.ons by Labor's OIG, ETA, and our Office.

in addition to the act and the regulations implementing
JTPA, ETA has provided some limited guidance to the states
through policy letters published in the Federal Register. For
example, in March 1984, ETA provided the states guidance on
implementing summer you6h programs. ETA has also issued moni-
toring guides which it developed to assist i.s field staff in
overseeing how the states are carrying out their responsibili-
ties. These guides address specific areas, including eligi-
bility, allocation of costs between training and administration,
cash and financial manag4ment, performance standards, and due
process. ETA had planned to develop an audit monitoring guide
but decided that such a guide could lead to a back door approach
to regulating how the states operate the program. Instead,
Labor is relying on the OIG, which must determine th, adequacy
of etch state's audit coverage. In this regard, we noted that
the OIG plans to use the Office of Management and Budget's Janu-
ary 11, 1S`85, revision to Cil.cular A-102, Attachment P, Compli-
ance Sunleeent, which includes the major compliance features
for JTPA. Tee Supplement generelly follows the requirement
specified in the act.

The job training officials we contacted indicated that a
major concern among state JTPA officials is with audits and the
liability associated with any questioned costs. They are con-
cerned that tk, program policies they established may be later
questioned oc challenged during the audit and evaluation
process. They felt that this could result in policies being
formulated or revised based on the results of audits and eval-
uations. This situation could result in program costs being
questioned or disallowed, with the states being held accountable
for the costs incurred. They also pointed to the lack of ETA
guidance and direction to the states in these areas and the need
for such assistance.

Furthermore, job training officials have indicated that
scme states' concerns over the lack of guidance and potential
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liabilities have made them very cautious about trying innovative
or creative lob training techniques as envisioned :In the act;
these concerns may inhibit the coordinat ,f services between
employment, training, and educationa- er,,LoIMS which JTPA en-
courages. For example, ETA has not provided guidance for re-
cording and documenting the sharing of funds or in-kind services
between JTPA programs and state and local social service pro-
grams providing similar or related ac.ivities. In the absence
of such guidance, there is concern among state and local Job
training officials that the propriety of such transactions, or
the associated documentation, may be questioned during the audit
process.

As requested by your office, we did not obtain written
comments from the Department of Labor. However, a draft of the
report was submitted to Labor officials for review and oral
comment and we have incorporated their views where appropriate.

We are sending copies of this report to the House Committee
on Education and Labor, the House and Senate Committees on Ap-
propriations, and other interested parties, including Congress-
man F,ank R. Wolf.

Enclosures - 6

Sincerely yours,

Richard L. Fogel
Director
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ENCLOSURE I ENCLOSURE

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

STAFF POSITIONS kT END OF YEAR

National Regional
office offices Total

End of fiscal year 1980 1,206 2,146 3,352

End of fiscal year 1981 1,302 2,024 3,,26

End of fiscal year 1982 1,015 1,424 2,439

End of fiscal year 1983 955 1,274 2,229

End of fiscal year 1984 1,105 888 1,993

End of fiscal year 1985 (estimated) 994 801 1,795

Budget request for fiscal year 1986 848 568a 1,416

aThe staff level reduction in fiscal year 1986 is, for the most
part, due to the administration's proposals to eliminate the
Job Corps, not seek funding for the Work Incentive Program, and
consolidate regional operations.
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ENCLOSURE II ENCLOSURE II

ETA NATIONAL OFFICE STAFF LEVELS

Assistant Secretary for
Employment and Training

Office of Financial Control
and Management Systems

Actual
9/30/83

Actual
9/1/84

Actual
2/28/85

17

306

13

202

15

206

Office of Program and
Fiscal Integrity 92 84

Office of Job Training
Programs 203 153 153

Office of Strategic Planning
and Policy Development 100 58 62

Office of Regional Management 22 20 21

Office of Employment Security 307 213 222

Total 955 751 763
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ENCLOSURE III ENCLOSURE III

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

STAFF LEVELS - REGIONAL OFFICES

Region

OCTOBER 31t 1983, TO FEBRUARY 28, 1985

Actual
2/28,85

Actual
10/31/83

Actual
7/27/84

Actual
9/1,84

I 88 77 80 70

II 143 95 97 46

III 143 113 118 116

IV 178 141 143 141

V 221 146 132 151

VI 118 93 93 100

VII 79 65 64 65

VIII 68 68 62 71

IX 131 92 83 102

X 76 57 58 60

Total 1,245 947 930 972
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ENaJOSURE IV ENCLOSURE Iv

E2VLOY4ENT AND TRAINEC ADKNISITATICN

SUMARY OF RIF ACTICNS

Servlcing
ormanent Retirements

MAY 25, 1984

Downgrades Reassignmentsb

RIF
separations

Separations
due to

declinationsa

National Office 53 0 21 182 229

Region I 4 0 0 0 0

Region II 16 15 4 3 16

Region III 6 1 0 1 14

Region Iv 1 2 7 4 8

Region V 25 21 11 1 6

Region VI 2 0 2 5 5

Region VII 4 2 1 4 3

Region VIII 0 0 0 0 0

Region IX 9 3 2 11 1

Region X 1 4 4 7 6

Total 121 48 52 218 288
111111111. OEM 31.1=

aIndividuals who left ETA after being offered downgrades.

*individuals who were reassigned to other organizations.
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ENCLOSURE V ENCLOSURE V

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

ASSISTANT SECRETARY
FOR

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING

DEPUTY ASSISTANT SECRETARY

OFFICE OF FINANCIAL
CONTROL AND

MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

OFFICE OF PROGRAM
AND FISCAL
INTECRITY

OFFICE OF STRATEGIC
PLANNING AND

POLICY DEVELOPMENT

OFFICE OF JOS
TRAINING PROGRAMS

OFFICE OF REGIONAL
MANAGEMENT

OFFICE OF

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY

SOURCE: Employment and Training Administration.
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ENCLOSURE VI ENCLOSURE VI

Employment and Training Admmistraton
May n. 1964 Reorganization

Office of Stratagte Planning and Policy Development
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ENCLOSURE VI ENCLOSURE VI

Employment and Training Administration
October 23. 1983 Reorganization
Office of Regional Management

Former Reorganiztal

Office of Regional Management

1
I

ETA Regional Offices

-1
Office of Administration and

Management Services

.---1 Office of CETA
Operations

fOofice of CETA Suppon

'---1 Office of Job Service

'''--1 Office of Unemployment Insurance

Office of Regional Management '

1
ETA Regional Offices

10:4ice of Administration and Management
Services

1
Office of Job Training Programs

1 Office of U S Employment Service

1 Office of Unemployment Insurance

SOURCE: Employment and Training Administration.
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ENCLOSURE VI ENCLOSURE VI

Employment and Training Administration
May 25, 1984 Raorrnizatron

Office of Program and Fiscal Integrity

Former
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ENCLOSURE VI ENCLOSURE VI

Employment and Training Administration
May 23. 1E14 Reorganization
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ENCLOSURE VI ENCLOSURE VI
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[The University of Chicago report follows::
Imams Urrnourriscsrr AND Jos TsAIN NG RDSEARCH Psoncr, UNIVERSITY or

CHICAGO

(March 18, 1985)

THE FEDERAL (=GET AN) Stftlf4CING RESOURCES FOR JOB TRAINING

Programs contain promises, but budgets provide resources. There are few better

measures of notional priorities than the analysis of trends in expenditures over time.

This study shows the nature of shifts in funds for employment and training programs from

the enactment of the Comprehensive Employment and Training Act (CETA) in the early

70s to the proposed budget of the Reagan Administration for the next fiscal year. Since

few states and localities provide their own budgets for employment and training, the

federal decisions determine the level of resources available to each state and each city.

Our analysis shows that there was a major growth of public resources for

employment and training programs from the Nixon Administration to the early Carter

Administration, a decline in the late Carter years and a much sharper drop under

President Reagan. The budget trends show the impact of the elimination of one major

strategy, public sie",:ce employment, and a reduction of resources for those training

programs which remain In operation. All of this occurred in times of growing

joblessness. The result, pre,ented in the final section of this report, is on extremely

sharp reduction in resources per jobless worker.

With the advent of the CETA program in federal fiscal year 1975, expenditures in

the area of job training began at a low level, which is largely accounted for by a "start-

up" delay. 1975 marked the peak of a serious recession, but there were positive signs of

recovery by the d of the year.

Program expenditures at all levels of government continued to rise until they

reached a peak in 1978, the first full fiscal year of the Carter Administration. The

economy was fairly strcrg during this period. Appropriations for federal programs in

marry areas of government activity increased significantly. The sudden decline in

manufacturing industries was yet to come.
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The combined effects of inflation and domestic budgetary cuts in the late Carter

yews led employment training programs into what would become a large six -year decline

In expenditures. The Reagan Administration brought more serious cuts tnan hod been

witnessed in the past. Federal spending in employmen. training and vocational education

reached its lowest point in a decode in FY 1984, the year of the Job Training Partnership

Act's (JTPA) advent.

At the state and local levels, recent budgets have dramatized the impact of funding

cuts. For example, actual job training funding reductions have been experienced in

varying degrees within states because of changes in allocation formula. The CETA

legislation hod contained "hold-harmless" provisions which insured that localities would

receive at least 90% of previous year funding each successive year. The JTPA does not

conrain such a provison. Thus many localities hear become subject to dramatic

fluctuations in appropriations from year to year. Large cities with high unemployment

have experienced special problems.

Our analysis of these spending trends will focus on the following major areas: (I)

the overall feeler at budgetary commitments during CETA and the JTPA, and (2) budget

trends in Illinois, a state with one of the nation's highest unemployment rates.

Methodological Summary

The budgetary data in this analysis has been collected from a number of sources.

The federal expenditure data was provided b/ the Office of Management and Budget in

Washington, D.C.. Expenditure data on the State of Illinois was obtained at the federal

level from the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration

(DoL -ETA). Illinois expenditure data does not include administrative costs.

1 24
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Expenditures at all levels of governrnent are presented in federal fiscal years. The

federal fiscal year (FY) runs from October I through September 30. The CETA program

was enacted in 1974 but not Implemented or reflected in the federal budget until FY

1975. Similarly, the JTPA became low in 1982 but is not reflected in the budget until FY

1984.

With the advent of the JTPA, a nine month transition year was fiscally authorized

to run from October t, 1983 through June 30, 1984, followed by the first full operating

year. The data that we have presented for fiscal years 1985 and 1986 are estimates from

She President's budget proposals.

There are several budgetary requirements that hove been written into the Job

Training Partnership Act. The fist is that 90% of funds must be spent to serve the

economically disadvantaged. This leaves a 10% 'window" through which localities can

serve other populations with barriers to employment. Secondly, the JTPA requires that

70% of monies be spent on actual training. In effect, this regulation limits the

percentage of funds which may be used for administration (15%) and supportive services

(15%). Thirdly, the low mandates that 40% of expenditures be made for serving youth.

4 final note should be made for the purpose of exploining the calculation of current

(nominal) dollar and c-onsten1 (real) dollar figures. We refer to nominal totals as the

actual amount of money spent on program activities in current valued dollars in any

given year. This calculation differs from real dollar foals. Real dollar colculations

adjust current monetary figures to account for the changing value of currency. For the

analysis in this chapter, real dollar cuii.ulations were made thrG qh the use of Grass

Notional roduct (GP) deflators as recorded in the Busine - --nditions Digest,

Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, through the second quarter of

1984. GNP deflator figures for late 1984, 1985, and 1986 which have been used in the

analysis ore estimates from the Office of Monagement and Budget in Washington, D.C.
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Federal Spending Trends

The 1973 Comprehensive Employment and Training Act (CETA) became a port of

the federal budget In FY 1975. Federal expenditures for training and employment

programs and related supportive services began with $3.4 billion (in constant dollars)

during this initial year. Spending peaked in FY 1978 with expenditures totalling over $7.3

billion (in constant dollars), an increase of 115% over FY 1975.

FY 1979 marked the turning point of federal spending Patterns On these Wog- 'WM,

initiating a period of continued funding decreases. Expenditures for employment and

training programs continued to decline through FY 1984, with tie most severe drop in

funding taking place in FY 1982 during the most serious recession since the 1930's. FY

1982 was the first full budget year of the Reagan Administration.

FIGURE I
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Figure I represents the pattern federal expenditures in all area of employment

training, including vocational selection programs. It can be noted that in FY 1979,

outlays totalled over $113 billion, while spending In FY 1983 was $5.9 billion and

estimated expenditures Is FY 1986 are projected to be less than $5.8 billion (in curvets'

dollars). In constant value dollars, expenditures dropped 0.3 percent between FY 1978

and FY 1984. Charts I, 2, and 3 on the following pages document all federal

expenditures in the area of employment training (FY 1975 -86) in current dollars (Chart

I), constant dollars (Chart 7), and overage annual figures (Chat 3).

Legislative Authorization The Job Training Partnership Act, which replaced the CETA

program in FY 1983, was authorized a o permanent program yet established no specific

funding level for h activity. Instead, "such sums a necessary" are authorized to be

appropriated le each prowess, with The exception of the Job Corps which was

authorized for a $618 million appropriation In FY 1983 and "such sums" thereafter.

Alloartions among programs authorized under the Job Training
Partnership Act are a tallowy "such aims as necessary" are
authorized far adult and youth training under title 11-A and for
notional programs under title VI except for Job Corps, which has a
separate authorization. Of the °nowt appropriated each year for
titles 11-A and IV (except far Job Corps), 93 percent goes to title II-
A and 7 percent is reserved for notional programs. Of the set-aside
for national programs, 5 percent is reserved for veterans'
employment and $2 million each year for the National Commission
on Employment Policy. An amount equal to 3.3 percent of the
annual title il-A allotment is paid from the notional programs' set-
aside far Native Americans program, and a further amount equal
to 32 percent of the title 11-A allotment is paid from the notional
program' set-aside for migrant and seasonal formworker
programs. Remaining funds In the national prowarns' set-aside will
be used for notional activities administered by the Secretory of
Labor, labor market information, and training pogroms to help
federal contractors meet their altitmotive action
abligations..luct sutra a necessary" also ore authorized for
summer youth programs under title 11.8 and for assistance to
dislocated workers under title Ill.

I. Spar, Karen. "Job Training Partnership Acts Background and Description."

Congressionai . rsearc:s Service, Education and Public Welfare Division, Report No. 83-

76 EPW, April 19, 1983, pp. 10,11.
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The Distribution of Spending

CETA and JTPA expenditures hove represented varying proportion of the total

federal employment and training effort since FY 1975. For the purposes of this analysis,

we hove defined the total federal employment and training effort to include CETA

(JTPA), Job Corps, Employment Services, the Work Incentive Program (WIN), programs

under the Older Americans Act, and Vocational Education. In FY 1375, the CETA

Programs represented 65.216 of total spending In this area. The second largest

expenditure item was vocational education which received 13.8% of the federal

employment and training dollar that yeor.

FIGURE 2 (in constant dollars)
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As Figure 2 illustrates, by FY 1979, the CETA programs had grown to represent

over 71% of total federal employment and training spending. Vocational education

expenditures hod dropped to 6.7% of total outlays, followed by employment services with

6% of total funds.
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Figure 3 demonstrates that in FY 1905, the first full program rear of JTPA,

spending fell and the attribution of federal spending had been altered dramatically.

JTPA represented only 50.1% of employment training expenditures in FY 1985.

Employment services ranked second on the list, accounting for 16.1% of the federal

employment and training dollar. Vocational education spending hod also crown in

proportion to represent 13.3% of all expenditures in this area. It con also be noted the

Job Corps had jumped from 3.3% of wending In FY 1979 to 9.0% in FY 1985.

An Increase in percentage of total funds expended for general employment training

programs, however, does not represent an increase in actual dollar figures. Figures 2 and

3 illuttrate that expendi:res over this period had declined from $7.2 billion in FY 1979

to $2.8 billion in FY 1983, a drop of 61 percent.

Public Service Employment and Employment Training Spending

Mons critics have charged that the reductions in funding to employment training

efforts can be almost completely accounted for by the elimination of the Public Service

Employment Progrcrn (PSE). It is true that this program, providing direct public service

jobs, war a major port of the employment and training budget. PSE programs

represented an overage annual expenditure of $3.1 billion (in real dollars) between 1978

and 1980.
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As Figure 4 Illustrates, however, patterns of CETA/JTPA expenditures over the

eleven year period (197546), in real dollars, document an °chid decline In r:nding

between FY 1980 and FY 1984 even when the PSE program is taken out. The funding

level in FY 1984, less PSE, represents constant dollar expenditures at the lowest level in

o decade and 38.4 percent below the peak year.

Federal Spending by Progrom

Within the CETA and JTPA programs, average annual spending patterns

documented the redirection of efforts over time. During the period between FY 1975

and FY 1977, average annual expenditures (in constant dollars) show that 38.3% of

monies were spent an general employment training programs, 46.5% on public service

employment, and 10.5% an youth training. The first term of the Reagan Adninistration

and the implementation of the PSE phase-out, brought a redistribution of spending at tt e

federal kve!. Between FY 1981 and FY 1983, general employment training expenditures

represented 47% of total CETA/JTPA spending, while youth programs and public service

employment accounted for 27% and 19% respectively. The federal data on youth

program spending used in this analysis, however, does not include youth expenditures

under JTPA's title IIA. General employment training spending is shown in Figure 5.
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Although general employment training spending increased from 18.3% of the whole

between FY 1975-77 to 61.2% (projected) between FY 1984-86, overage annualized

expenditures (in constant dollars) declined from $1.3 billion to $0.8 billion.

Similarly, spending in youth programs has been consistently increasing over the last

ten years as o percentage of the whole, from only 10.5% of CETA spending during the FY

1975-77 period to a projected level near 26% of JTPA spending between FY 1984-86.

However, in constant dollar figures, average annualized expenditures have declined from

$973 million (FY 1978-80) to less than $330 mill on (projected FY 1984-6). The projected

spending level of FY 1984-6 is, in fact, less than youth spenoing a decode earlier. Figure

6 illustrates federal youth program spending trends.

FIGURE 6
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During t e initial years of the CETA program, joblessness among youth accounted

for roughly half of the nation's Ix employment of those under the age of 25. Youth

programs exjxinded throughout the 1970's. Expenditures for these programs hod grown to

over $0.8 million (in constant dollars) by FY 1978, a 94.6% increase over FY 1977.

Moreover, the 1978 amendments to CETA focused great attention on disadvantaged

youth. Spending on youth programs thus continued to rise, peaking in FY 1980 at $1.1

billion (in constant dollars).

Programs authorized outside of CETA and JTPA hoi.f. also witnessed dramatic

flanges in funding levels. For example, the Work Incentive Program (WIN), targeted at

individuals collecting AFDC payments, accounted for $252.5 million (in constant dollars)

in average annual expenditures between FY 1975-77. Through the period of FY 1981-83,

this figure hod declined by 40.7% to $149.7 million. Projected levels of WIN spending for

1984-86 illustrae on additional decrease of 41.5% to $87.6 million (in constant 1972

dollars). President Reagan has requested no funding for this program in the FY 1986

budget.

The P-esidners budget also prom 'es several funding rescissions from the currant

fiscal year in light of the large sums of money not yet spent. JTPA programs tend to

spend money more gradually in par' because of performance standards which pay only on

completion of training or placement. $100 million is proposed for rescission in the

Summer Youtn Employment arid Training Program, and $119.5 million in the Dislocated

Worlwrs program. Post-rescission funding levels will doubtlessly be used as a basis for

future appropriation decisions.
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Each State's allocation goes to the Governor, who allocates 78
percent of it among service delivery areas within the State,
occordiN to the same three factors used to determine the State's
share. The remaining 22 percent of each State's allotment (will be)
divided as follows: 8 percent for State education coordination
grants; 3 percent for programs for older woriers; 6 percent for
incentive awards to service delivery areas exceeding performance
standards (unused portions of this set-aside will be used for
technical resistance); and 5 percent for Governors to use for
auditing, odrninistrotion, coordination, and special services
activities and expenses of the State job training c_ rdinoting
council.

There has been a substantial overall decline in the amount of federal money

Tooted to Illinois for employment training programs. However, the State of Illinois has

conmstent'y been receivinc o higher percentage of total federal funds between FY 1975

and FY 1986. Figure 7 illustrates this trend. In FY 1975, Illinois received roughly 2

percent of the total fede-al employment training dollar. By FY 1984, this figure hod

increased to approximately 4 percent. The trend doubtless reflects the state's position in

recent years near the top of the list of states with the highest jobless rates.

Comparison of Illinois to Total

FIGURE 7
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2. Spar, Koren. "Job Training Partnership Act: Background and Description".

Congressional Research Service, Education and Public Welfare Division, Report No. 83-

76 EPW, April 19, 1983, p.18.
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Employment Training Expenditures in the State of Illinois

Illinois Is among the states most severely hit by unemployment. Since 1980 its

unemployment rate has consistently been above the national as'rage. Hardest hit hove

been workers in the manufacturing sector where the :umber of jobs has decreased by

33% between 1969 and 1983.

Employment training efforts in the State of Illinois involve many agencies and

encompass various program elements. Currently, there are ten different departments

oral boards which administer fob training programs. A list of major age ...les that offer

employment development services to broad segments of the Illinois population includes

the Department of Commerce and Community Affairs (DCCA), the Department of

Employment Security, the Deportment of Public Aid, the State Board of Education, and

the Community College 131ord.

The State's role in the Comprehensive Employment and Training Act (CETA) and

the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) programs has been odrninistered through DCCA

since 1980. These programs represent a major portion of the federal commitment to job

training in Illinois. The federal expenditure trends are generally reflected in State

spending patterns as well. Chart 4 on the following page documents Illinois expenditures

in current and constant dollars between FY 1975 and FY 1986.

Federal allocations under titles It-A and ll-f3 (trnining for disadvantaged adults and

youth, and the summer youth employment program) are granted to States on the basis of

a three-part formula, wit!, equal weight given to the following iJctors: relative number

of unemployed Individuals living in areas with Joblessness rates of at least 6.5 percent for

the previous twelve months, relative number of unemployed individuals in excess of 4.5

percent of the State's civilian labor force; and the relotive number of economically

disadvantaged individuals. JTPA contains o "hold-harmless" provision which requires that

each State is guaranteed at least 90 percent of its allotment percentage for the previous

fiscal year. The States, however, are not required to guarantee such SUMS to individual

localities.
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Though Its percent of federal funds grew, the total anoint of money that the Stole

of 1111 has annually received for employment training activities has octudly

decreased sharply since FY 1979. During the peak year (FY 19/13) of the CETA program,

Illinois documented spending levels of over $215 million (In constant dollors). This figure

hod declined to $60 million during the final year of CETA.

The JTPA program brought Illinois o slight decrease in funding for transition year

1984. c;:-ertcfirc on the new program for this nine month period dropped to $113.3 million

(in current dollars). When one adjusts these figures for inflation and makes real dollar

comparisons, this slight decrease between FY 1983 and transition year 1984 represents a

15.2% reduction in spending levels. Real dollar expenditures in FY 1983 totalled $60.4

million, while In transition year 1984, this total was $51.2 million. The transition year,

however, consisted of only nine months. Estirmied spending levels during the first

program year (FY 1985MY 1984), iilustrote a s , current and constant dollar increase

tram the transition year, rising to $48 million (in constant dollars). Figure 8 shows these

expenditure trends in both real and current dollar totals.
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Average °mud expenditure trends (n constant 1972 doliors) show three distinct

periods. Between FY 1975-77, total CETA spending averaged approximately $94.6

million. Between FY 1938-90, this figure hod risen to $195.5 million. Between 1984-86,

average annual expenditures have been projected at $50.2 million a reduction of 74.3

percent from the previous three years. The only individual program area that has not hoe'

reduced resources over the lost six years is that for dislocated workers, a small new

JTPA program not included under CF.TA.

Illinois Employment and Training Spending by Program

The magnitude of funding changes between CETA and JTPA is most significant

within Individual program areas. For example, expenditures on general employment

training programs in Illinois hove vaned between $49.4 million in overage annual (*wont

dollar expenditures (FY 1978-80) to $35.0 million (FY 1984-86). General employment

training includes the major program are of CETA (titles land II) and of JTPA (tale II-

ABC, title VII and JTPA block grants). Figure 9 illustrates the spencliqg trends of general

employment training activities.
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V7Nle general employment training activities hove serlowly declined, these

programs hove accounted for a growing percentage of total Illinois spending on

employment and training activities. Between FY 1978-80, when public service

employment program -pending accounted for 55.4 percent of total expenditures, general

employment training programs accounted for only 25.3 percent. Following the

elimination of the public service employment program, general employment }raffling

expenditures rose to 69.6 percent of the total employment and training dollar (projected

1984-86).

fhe pattern of spending on public service employment in the State of Illinois

typifies the levels of federal expenditures discussed earlier. Figure 10 illustrates these

expenditure levels between FY 1975 and FY 1986. Averoge annualized expenditures

during the "peak" CETA years (FY 1978-80) reached $108.9 million, declining to $16.5

million between FY 1981-83 and to zero since the implementation of JTPA.
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Between FY 1176 and FY 1978, real public service employment expenditures

Increased by 122.0%. Public service employment programs were in decline, however,

prior to the advent of JTPA. Spending decreased by 62.7 percent between FY 1979 and

FY 1981. After mid-1981 the program vanished.

Overall, youth programs in Illinois have witnessed some of the most drcrnotic

fluctuations in spending levels of all employment and training programs. Real spending

on youth programs reached o peak in FY 1979 with expenditures totalling nearly $38.3

million. In FY 1983, this figure had declined to $18.4 million, a drop of 52 percent.

Figure II illustrates total spending on youth progrcrns in the State of Illinois. It should

be noted, however, that PTA's title 11A (included under generd employment training)

contains youth spending which is not reflected in Figure 11.
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''-e major youth program in the State of Illinois, the Surr.mer Program for

Econorr cdly Disadvantaged Youth (SPEDY), has experienced o modest 13% decline in

expend' Nes in real spending from FY 1978 to FY 1983. During the peak youth

employment program funding years, SPEDY accounted for 56.6% of total youth
employment vending.
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The Youth Employment Program (YETP), which is operated year-round, accounted

for another significant porion of youth spending in the State of Illinois between FY

1978 -80. Approximately 37.1% of the total youth program dollar had been spent on that

Program. 'n FY 1978, nominal dollar spending on YETP reached $10.9 million. In FY

1980, expenditures grew to $24.6 million. By FY 1983, that figure hod been reduced to

$216,000. YETP experienced a real increase in expenditures of 90.2 percent between FY

1978 and FY 1980, compared to a real spending decline between FY 1990 and FY 1983 of

99.3 percent. YET" was discontinued following the advent of JTPA.

Summary of Illinois Employment and Training Expenditures

State spending on employment and training programs reflects the drastically

reduced resources allocated by the federal government. Expenditures had risen to $324

million in FY 1978 (in current dollars). By FY 1984, total spending hod been reduced to

$113.3 million.

Reductions in funding have shown an impact on virtually all employment and

training program areas. General employment training programs in Illinois have been out

by 42.7% (in constant dollars) between FY 1978 and FY 1985, while youth and public

service employment programs lost 87.4% and 100% respectively.

Funding reductions may be continued in FY 1986. The Preside its budget proposes

significant cuts in both the Summer Youth Employment and the r)istocated Workers

programs, while completely eliminating others, including the WIN and Job Corps

progranx. The impact of this dramatic decline in resources on the State of Illinois will

doubtlessly be compounded by its unemployment rate which ranks second in the nation.
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Resources and Needs: Notional Trends

The &dim: of resources in employment and training programs coincided with a

+aro rise of unemployed workers during the two recessions of 1980 -1983. The annual

average number of unemployed workers, which provides a rough estimate of need, rose

from 6.2 million in 1978 to 7.6 million in 1980 ond reached o peak of 10.7 million in

1983.3 During this five year period, this total row by 72 percent. The number dropped

to 8.5 million in 1984 amid a rapid economic recovery. The 1734 number, however, was

stir 37 percent above the number of unemployed in 1978, the year that employment and

training expenditures peaked. Some states and regions experienced even more drastic

Increases in joblessness and less economic growth during the recovery.

To understand the actual impact of budget charges on the ability to provide

employment and training opportunities it is necessary to consider the real resources

available per unemployed person. In 1978, there were total resources of $7.8 billion (in

constant dollors), but this figure dropped to $2.8 billion in 1983 ond to $2.6 billion in

1984. Total resources declined by 64 percent between 1978 and 1983. In 1978 the

federal budget provided almost $1260 per unemployed person for employment and

training. By 1983, this °mount had fallen to $262. The decline in resources per person

was approximately 79 percent. In parts of the nation x.'ere the economic conditions

were worse, the reduction was often more drastic.

'Wile the federal deficit has emerged as a key problem orea for policy makers the

1980's, not all program activities have witnessed funding reductions ov_r the last

decade. Outlays for notional defense, for example, hove increased from less than $100

3. Unemployment figures from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, Employment and

Eorrwi
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aillion (in nominal dollars) in FY 1975, to nearly $250 billion in FY 1985.4 3 tr. rn FY

1980 and FY 1986, average amid defense spending increased by 18.4%. Nondefense

discretionary vending increased an average of 2.9% over this some perlud, while

employment and training programs, a component of nondefense discretionary spending,

witnessed on average decline of 8.7%. Figu-e 12 illustrates total budget authority and

total outlays for notional defense between FY 1975 and FY 1985.

FIGURE 12 National Defense Budget Authority and Outlays,
Fiscal Years 1975.1985
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There is far more, of course, to any program than the number of dollars allocated

to the responsible agencies. Programs can vary widely in efficiency and effectiveness.

Budgets are, however, important statements af national priorities. The very sharp

reduction in real resources for employment and training, much of it In the midst af

serious recessions, shows that these needs have been accorded far less priority than in

the 1970s. Agencies attempting to help retool workers without jobs must try to serve

many more jobless people with far fewer dollars. This reality is a central fact in the

understindiic of the entire system of job training in the 1980s.

4. Congressional Budget Office, Reducing the Deficit: Spending and Reverse Options. A

Report to the Senate and House Committees on the Budget- Part Ili, February, 1985,

p20,41"
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Having said that, this hearing is concluded.
Mr. Moore, again, I thank you for coming such a long way to en-

lighten us.
Mr. MooRE. Thank you.
[Additional material submitted :or the record follows:]
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JOB TRAINING PARTNERSHIP ACT

A Hispanic Analysis of the Grinker -Walker Report: Round II

I. BACKGROUND

In January 1985, Grinker -Walker end Associates and IOC, Inc. released
tne second report of a two-year Independent sector analysis of the :ob Training

Partnership Act (JTPA), which recently replaced the Comprehensive Employment and
Training Act (CETA) as the nation's primary federal employment and training
legislation. This second report, entitled Phase lit Initial implementation
covers JTPA's Initial operating period, the nine-month transit!,In period of
October 1, 1983, hrough June 30, 1984. Information for this report was
collected In June and July of 1984, utilizing field research in 25 service
delivery a.-1-r (SDAs) an 15 states. and telephone surveys In an additional 32
SOAs. This anulysis Is funded by the Ford. Rockefeller, and Charles Stewart
laDtt Foundations. and the National CanmIsslon for Employment Policy.

The report highlights several positive results for JTRA during the first
nine months, such as:

. Attainment of plecament goals;

. Minimal costs;

. High participation of welfare recip'Ints; and

. Strengthened partnership between local elected officials and the
Private Industry Councils (PICO.

The report also 10*ntlfies several problems, which ere a major source of
debate over the efficacy of JTRA:
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. *Crewing" in client selection -- selecting the least -
disadvantaged Individuals because they are easiest to place,
thus resulting in lack of adequate services to those most !n
need;

. The extent to which JTPA Is able lo serve disadvantaged youth,
both In spending and targeting; and

. The extent to which JTPA equitably serves the dropout population.

These are among the issues of greatest significance to the Hispanic

community, which suffers from the highest dropout rates In the nation, high
unemployment and underemployment rates, and the lowest hourly wages.
Hispanics need full access to the benefits of JTPA as a means for overcoming
their marginal status In the labor market. As the youngest subpopuletion
group In the country, Hispanics are expected to constitute 8-9% of the labor
force by 1995. Though national demographics will favor lower unemployment
over the next 12 years as prima-age workers make up a larger share of the work
force, the particular demographic trends of the Hispanic community indicate the
opposite, since its high birth rotes and lower median age mean that Hispanics
will be entering the workforce at a high rate.

One long-range effect of this demographic trend Is that the taxable
salaries of Hispanic workers will be increasingly vital the fiscal viability
of many domestic programs, especially Social Security, which relies on with-
holding allowances of current workers for the support of current retirees. It

Is not unrealistic to envision an aged White population being supported by an
Increasingly non-White workforce. This has serious policy implications and
raises equity concerns. More importantly, however, it implies that the future
of the Social Security system depends partially upon the ability of federal
programs, suLh as JTPA, to assure Improved employment and training opportuni-
ties for Hispanics and Blacks.

With these policy and demographic issues in mind, it becomes crucial
that the Hispanic =enmity, especially Hispanic youth and dropouts, equitably
benefit from 11. services of JTPA. The Grinker -Walkers Round 11 report illus-
trates both some JTPA successes and problems in the effective targeting of
youth and dropouts, a marginal and vulnerable group within the Hispanic oommu-
nity. This issue brief will analyze the survey findings from an Hispanic
perspective.

II. SURVEY FINDINGS

A. Nrikaanie

1. Introduction

In line with the legislative wish for an effective return on investment
end emphasis on training, JTPA Is performance-driven, with built-in mechanisms
which reward successful programs -- those with high placement rates at low
costs. The performance standards drafted by the Department of Labor WM) are
a two-edged sword. On the one hand, they are an effective management tool
which will drive the system toward efficiently serving the client population.
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On the other haul, the., may encourage program operators to "cream" by selecting
the least dIsadvantejed Individuals, who are likely to be job-ready and who
will most easily be placed end retained In unsubsidized employment.

The possibility for "creaming" becomes clear when the JTPA legislation
Is closely scrutinized. This scrutiny reveals dichotomous philosophies -- the
intent of JTPA to serve the economically disadvantaged is undermined by contra -
dietary provisions ,udi as the *minister elimination of public service employ-
ment, reduction of other work experience components, elimination of training
stipends, and res'rictions on support services. These provisions diminish
access to employment and training programs by the economically disadvantaged,
thus making it difficult to serve these Intended beneficiaries of JTPA.

2. Participants

Section 2 of the JTPA legislation Identifies the beneficiaries and
purpose of the act as follows:

"...to establish programs to prapare youth and unskilled adults for
entry into the labor force and to afford Job training to those

economically disadvantaged Individuals facing serious barriers to
employment, who are In special need of such training to obtain
productive employment."

Furthermore, Section 203 of the legislation specifically Identifies
three target groups:

. Youth, by requiring that each Service Delivery Area (SDA) spend 40$
of its funds on youth programs;

. Recipients of Aid to Families With Dependent Children (AFDC), who
shall be served equitably, taking Into account their relative
Incidence In the JTPA - eligible population; and

Dropouts, who shall be served equitably, taking into account their
relative Incidence in the JTPA-sligible population.

With a general mandate for serving those economically disadvantaged In
"special need" of JTPA services and a specific mandate for serving youth. AFDC
recipients, and high school dropouts, administrators of JTPA programs are faced
with some difficult choices In determining the scope of services and choice of
participants under !TPA. For example, those within the eligible group of
economically disadvantaged may differ greatly In terms of the length, type,
and amount of training needed. Groups could range from those who have some
occupational skill and need only minimal essIstnce in an area such as Job
search skills, to those who lack an occupational skill and proficiency In
such basic skills as reading, writing, mathsmatics, or English. The existence
or absence of such skills In a participant has direct impact on the nature,
duration, and cost of the training provided.

Cost constraints also effect the choice of participants. Covered with
CETA, which had a maximum funding level of $10.2 billion In Fiscal Year 1979,
JTPA has been funded at minimal amounts since Its Inception -- $3.6 billion for
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Program Year 1984 and 1985. The Grinker -Walker report states that the modest
resources of JTPA permit It to prolde assistance to only three to five percent
of the eligible population. With these constraints In mind, the targeting
Issue con be phrased In the following manner' I.' will constitute that three to
five percent of the eligible population to receive JTPA services?

The Drinker - Walker report provides some Insight as to the character-
istics of the participants being served by JTPA end the extent of "creaming."
The report states that by June 30, 1984;

...Eighty percent of the field sites (20 of 25 SDAs) agreed
that they were not attempting to define who those "most In
need" of services were, and hod no intention to do sc (p. 52).

...Mast SDAs did not pay any substantial attention to the act's
broad mandate to serve those most In need of and able to benefit
from Its services. They felt that mandate was undercut by the
act's restrictions on support services, stipends, and work
experlunce; Its strong focus on standardized performance stan-
dards; and its major role for the private sector (p. 54).

Minimal expenditures In support services may also lead to "creaming"
of participants In JTPA. Support services are viewed as access mechanisms
for the economically disadvantaged because they are the most likely to
require services such ea child care and transportation In order to attend
training sessions. The JTPA legislation provides for 15% of SDA funds to be
spent on support services. However, the Grinker -Walker report states that:

...the sample SDAs expended a very modest level of funds
on support services like literacy training, day care,
and transpartation [eight percent compared to the fifteen
percent s'andard In the act] (p. v).

...The JTPA legislation requires SDAs to spend 70% of their
funds on treiniNg activities, 15% on support services,
and 15% on administrative oasts. By June 30, 19e4, 21 of the
'5 SDAs In the study sample hod actually expended more than
70% cf their JTPA funds on training, and less than 15% on
support services. The sample sites on average spent 76%
on training, eight percent on support services, and 16%
on administrative oasts (p. 18).

With such minimal amounts being spent on support services, It is not

surprising lo know that 4DAs enthusiastically seek welfare recipients as
clients because they are the one group of eligibles with access to support
services and financial assistance that omploments the training JTPA has to
offer. The Grinker -Walker report indicates that welfare recipients are the
only legislatively targeted croup for which most SDAs worked to establish
effective coordination with public agencies in enuring that there was an
adequate flow of recipients to JTPA (p. 67). The report states that:
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...Rost of the PICs were enthusiastic about providing
services to welfare recipients, In contrast to their
lack of Interest in targeting services toward other
groups. The income support that welfare programs
provide, plus the potential for other welfare-funded

support services, was one source of this enthusiasm.
Another source of interes ,es the potential to redce
welfare rolls and costs by training and placing wel,sre

recipients in Jobs, a major legislative goal of JTPA (p. 67).

Though the high participation of welfare recipients is one of JTPA's
positive aspects, some cautionary comments were expresser +0 the Grinker -Walker
analysts. The GrInker -Walker report states that a welfare official from a
major urban area, who also sits on the local PIC, said:

..."The majority of our AFDC recipients go on and off the
the welfare rolls -- a Job for a few months, then some
welfare. Then repeat the cycle. I'm concerned that JTPA's
short-term program Is just the upswing of the cycle, and
that many of these recipients will be back on the rolls
again In a month or two. I'm afraid that welfare recipients
are being funneled into Job clubs 'Id job search activities --
services which provide no technical skills on which to built e
long-term career." (p. 69).

The choice of ;raining programs offered by SDAs may also lead to
"creaming" of participants In JTPA. The Grinker -Walker report indicates that
the dominant theme of training services throughout the sample SDAs at the end
of the first nine months of Implementation was On-the-Job Training (OJT) and
classroom training (p. 241. These two training services comprised the great
bulk of activities. The Grinker -Walker report states that:

..Seventy-two percent of the sites favored programs of
shorter duration. Thus, the maxima OJT program of the
sample sites was expected to be about 16 weeks long; the
maximum classroom training about 26 weeks long (p. 22).

The Grinker -Walker report indicates that though many JTPA officials at
the SDA end state government levels recognize that pest research shows that
longer training programs produce more enduring Impact on employment and wage
levels of participants, the emphasis on low cost per placement and the desire
to enroll as many participants as :2-,:.ssible within a limited budget has resulted
In short training sessions (p. 2' Thus, longer training programs and work
experience activities that were fwvored under CETA Bed being replaced.
Reformulations of the proven mix are caused i,, a combination of legislatively
mandated restrictions on activities and lack of resuorces. JTPA has eliminated
training stipends and has placed sharp restrictions on support services. At
the same time, JTPA's performance standards stress the Importance of placing
program graduates in private-sector Jobs. These elements In the legislation
have convinced many SDA administrators and PIC officials that longer training
programs with potentially higher rates of failure no longer could be supported.
The Grinker -Walker report states that officials at one SEA said:
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..."he are not concerned about those most In need but rather
with those with modest needs A certain degree of job readi-
ness tends to to presumed when the program emphasis is on
performance stendards, on-the-job training, and short-term
classroom training." (p. 52)

Anu"mi factor resul' lng in "creaming" of participants under JTPA is the
very great discretion exercised by training contractors In screening and
selecting those participants they judge most likely to succeed. The Grinker-Walker report states that:

...training contractors were the locus of decision making
regarding who participated Ii JTPA at 76% of the field sites.
Centralized Intake, screening, assessment, and assIgnmant hadbeen one of the first functions dropped by most SDAs when JTPA's
reduced adrInistratIve funds were allocated (p. 55).

lilts the prev,alent use of performance-based contractinr, whrrn'. ro.ininc
contractors do nor receive full pa,ment until placement in unsubsidized em,;1c,-rient is rearmed, It is not surprising that contractors, like SDA administrators,
are facet with difficult choices in determining the characteristics of JTPAparticipants. SDA administrators, I hilted by a small midget, are motivated by
the chal'enge of making JTPA a credible progra', seeking performance as
measured by high placements as the road to credibility. Training contractors,
saddled with the constraints of a performance-based contract, are financially
Induced to perform and yield high placements in order to receive reimbursementfor their training costs.

The Grinker-irlaiker report does indicate that though some SDAs are
dismissing the Issue of defining and ta-geting the JTPA eligibles "most in
need," they are erving "substantial segments" of the el igible population, sue*
as women and minorities, veterans, the hancicapped as well as other groups,
depending on the make-up of the local population. However, the JTPA legislation
Is general and broad In this respect since Section 141 provides "'It "SDAs
StalllipakeAtiorls to provide equitable services among substantial segments ofthe eligible population." Thls language is far less specific than that under
CE TA, Section 121, which stated that "employment and training opportunities
for participants shall be made &reliable on an equitable basis among signifi-
cant segments of the eligible populatlem giving consideration to the relative
numbers of eligible persons In each suc. segment."

The Grinker- Walker report finds that the "substantial segments" language
has resulted In SDAs establ 'ailing percentage goals for these segments, and
the targeted percentages of women and minorities have been Included In their
contracts with service providers. However, the issue of "creaming within a
targeted group of participants still exists. An SDA of f Iola! told the Gr !she--
Mal ker analysts:

'It's not hard to meet substantial-segment goals so long
as you can select the best people from each group. In
a program the size of JTPA, you can do that." (p. 58)
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The Drinker-Walker report concludes ,hat In view of the foregoing, "it
was not surprising that three-fourths of 1- e f lel 0 sites said that JTPA parti-
cipants during the first operational periol were better off, particularly in
tams of education, pas+ work experience, o'd lack of supportive services
needs, than had been ...ETA participants." (p. 54).

B. asalcantegagiguth

Youth were specifically Identified by drafters of the JTPA legislati n

as a vulnerable group which rewired specific mandates In sery Ices. Sect .on
203 of the JTPA legislation defines and quantifies the level of services that
SDAs must provide to disadvantaged youth -- 40% of an SDA's funds must be spent
on youth progress. Youth Include individuals 16-21 years of age.

Congressional intent was to ensure that adequate resources were spent on
youth. Thus, the youth requirement was stated In terms of expenditures rather
than participants. Drafters of the JTPA legislation were concerned about the
possibility of inexpensive and short-term services being used es a means for
bull ding up an impressive number of youthful participants without achieving
lasting resu ts; requiring a set level of SDA expenditures on youth was seen as
an effective way to prevent that.

Th.- Grinker- Walker report highlights two JTPA implement. problems
ragardinc youth: (1) SDA difficulty In attracting youth; and (7) short-term,
lo -co:( progress for youth. The report states that:

...only eight of the 25 field sites surveyed expended 90Y
or more of the JTPA funds al loted for youth. The other
17 sites fell short, many significantly. fully half of
the field sites expended less than 60% of their youth
allocation (p. 60).

...the averaoe duration of a youth's participation in JTPA
et the field sample SDAs was 12.2 weeks -- almost ten weeks
shorter than had been planned (p. 61).

...the average cost per positive iouth termination was $3,105,
well below the federally established standard of $4,900 (p. 61).

The Drinker-Walker report indicates that those SDAs with large youth
enrol 'monis rel led extensively on In- school youth program components and
services to high school graduates. The report shows that:

...the field study SDAs, on average, had In-school
prooress r h constituted 31% of their 1( tal youth
enrollment fhe youth population, besides its 31%
in-school group, was composed 43% of youth with high
sc000l degrees or higher education, and 26% of youth
who had dropped out of school (p. °.:71.

In surtnary, youth with high school degrees r- ..1'h eduction beyond high
sdiool were the predominant category of yotria ..;.,ved :..y JTPA, ranging frcr 31
to 63% of total youth errolleznt fp. 63).
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C. asaold_s

The JTPA legislation, as noted earlier, requires that dropouts be served
equitably, taking Into account their proportion of the overall eligible popula-
tion. This requirmnent has no age limitation, thus both older and younger
dropouts are served concurrently. The Grinker -Walker report states thal
throughout the field study SDAs, there was a lack of emphasis on enrolling
dropouts In JTPA programs. The report states that at the end of the nine-month
transition period:

...high school graduates and those with education beyond
high school constituted 66.55 of total enrollees at the
field study SDAs; dropouts mad, up 33.55. During 1981 CETA,
dropouts had constituted 425 of enrollees In comparable
training activities (p. 66).

Programmatic efforts and contracting strategies at most of the SDAs In
the study reflect a general lack of emphasis on incorporat'ng dropouts Into
JTPA programs. The Grinker -Walker report states that:

...Forty-six of the 57 total sample SDAs had no separate
training orogrens for non-high school completers and
provided only minor allocations for remedial education.
Eighteen of the 25 field study SDAs did not set soeciflc
goals for enrolling dropouts In their contracts with
service providers (p. 65).

Though JTPA requires that dropouts be served "equitably," it Is unclear
haw SDAs intend to meet this goal. The Grinker -Walker report indicates that
SDAs ere concerned about this shortfall, but few Intend to alter their training
progrens, contractors, or other major program components In order to rectify
the situation. The Grinker -Welker report concludes that as of June 30, 1984:

...fa the most pert SDAs had yet begun to devise
specific strategies for Increasing the enrollment of
dropouts (p. 66).

III. IMPLICATIONS FOR HISPANICS

A. "Crennin"

"Creaming" -- selecting the least-disadvantaged Individuals because they
are easiest to place -- Is a pervasive problem In any performance-driven
system. It Is indirectly encouraged by the high performance standards and the
restrictive financing provisions of JTPA such as lack of training stipends anc
public servic" employment. SDAs are indirectly pressured to serve the most
Job-ready and those with least need of support services because underperform-
once by SDAs will require corrective actions by the State, in the form of
technical assistance or, if necessary, recrgenizatlon. Conversely, ovorper-
formance by SDAs will be rewarded by JTPA funds earmarked for Incentive grants.
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The pressure on SDAs to perform leads to the prevalent use of perform-
ance-based contracting, whereby service providers do not receive full payment
until the client hes been placed In unsubsidized employment. The Gri nker-
Walker report states that performance-based contracting Is In effect in 17 of
the 25 field SDAs tp. 96). Service providers are encouraged to "cream" by
serving clients who are least disadvantaged, are in least need of employability
developnent, and are easiest to place, in order to meet the performance
criteria and get paid for their training costs. Many community groups, who
are service providers, experience severe cash-flow problems because cost
reimbursement Is not provided until after the client has been placed. For this
reason, many community groups have decided not to seek JTPA funds due to their
Inability to function under such financial constraints, and the inability to
meet the placement and retention rates while serving the disadvantaged peoplewho are their traditional clients. In this manner, JTPA also "creams" the
organizations that may participate as service providers only those
organizations with solid financial backl-- from other sources may partIcIpxte
under the financial constraints ieposed a performance-based contract.
Groups with special concern for minoriti and disadvantaged individuals fear
that the exclusion of community groups free the JTPA system will result in the
neglect of the economically disadvantaged.

The preference for low-cost, short-term t'aining programs does not bode
well for the Hispanic cryaunity, with Its high proportion of low-income, under-
educated persons vitt Ilsited job skills. These programs do not address long-
term needs for skills training, education, and language training. Hispanics,
as the least educated group in the nation, are subject to a proportionately
greater loss than the White population because program emphasizing long-term
training which meet their needs are discouraged In favor of programs with
shorter duration, lower cost, and quick placements. With the many employment
barriers that Hispanics face, It Is likely that they wall be underrepresented
from These short-term, quick placement progress, which have a built-in
preference for higher-skilled, better-educated workers.

B. Disadvantaged

The indication by the Grinker-Walker report that SDAs are rot spending
the mandated 40% of funds in youth programs poses serious problems. At a time
when Hispanic youth unemployment rates are above 20% and Black youth unemploy-
ment rates above 40%, efforts by both the private and public sectors should
concentrate on meeting the needs of this !aportant group. C.ongress,"nal
drafters of the JTPA legislation Intended that the act specifically serve this
vulnerable group as a means of stopping the trend toward long-term structural
unemployment among disadvantaged minority youth.

Hispanics, the youngest and fastest - growing subpopulelon in the country
have a sods' need for youth employment programs, and will suffer in the
future from inadequate education and training opportunities today. A special
concern with JTPA Is that even where youth progress are available, a lack of
stipends, support services, and adequate education skill training components,
Including training in English-as-a-Second language, may minimize opportunities
for disadvantaged youth to participate. Untrained youth are likely to follow
the cycle of underemployment, structural unemployment, and increased use of
welfare services. However, a well-trained future labor force, comprised
Increasingly of Hispanics, Blacks, and women, will result in dual societal
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benef Its -- Increased revenues f or prograns such as Social Security and other
dornest I c programs and decreased expend I tures for public assistance programs.

C. Dr-1=AS

The JTPA legislation mandates that dropouts be served equitably, In
proportion to their Incidence in the population. However, the Grinker-Walker
report concludes that dropouts are not being fully incorporated Into JTPA
training prograns. Many SDAs do not have separate prograns fc.- dropouts; thus,
dropouts are "mainstreamed" into either youth progress or adult prograns. Even
in those SDAs with youth programs, only 25% of participants were dropouts.

For Hispanics, the services to dropouts are particularly important since
Hispani:-. hrve the highest dropout rates of any group in the nation. Data fror
a 1979 Census Bureau study showed that 35; of Hispanics 18-21 had dropped out
of high school as compared with 25.5% of Blacks and only 15.5f, of Whites. In
many urban centers, dropout rates _urrently exceed 505. Furthermore, Hispanics
appear to drop out of school earlier than do other groups of students. Nine
percent of Hispanics 14-17 years old have left school withewt graduating, as
compared to 5.3; of White youth end 5.25 of Black youth. Hispanic females, the
lowest paid workers in the labor force, are more likely to drop out of school
than are Hispanic males, and are axe I ikely than other groups of women to be
high school dropouts.

As a result of these conditions, JTPA's Inability to serve dropouts will
have a disproportionate Impact on the Hispanic community. As with underexpen-
ditures in youth programs, the Hispanic community has special reason to be con-
cerned about JTPA's I inited sery ices to dropouts.

IV. CONCLUSION

The Drinker-Walker: Round II report identifies some positive outcomes
for JTPA In Its first year of implementation. Increased involvement of the
private sector Is a particularly Important accomplishment, as is the program's
success In Serving one group of disadvantaged persons -- welfare recipients.
However, the report also highlights three issues of concern to HIspaalcs and
other disadvantaged groups: (1) the extent of "creaming" in the delivery of JTPA
services; (2) the inability of SDAs to spend the mandated 40% of funds In youth
programs; and (3) the lack of equitable services to high school dropouts. The
Hispanic community, like other minority and disadvantaged groups, has a special
interest In ensuring that these ImplemerrtetIon problems of JTPA be addressed
as quickly as possible. Moreover, the Hispanic community has much at stake in
ensuring that yo 1 and dropouts are served according to the Intent of JTPA,
since Hispanics are the youngest subpopulation In the nation, and experience
the highest dropout rates.

The National Council of La Razes most important conclusion fran the
Grinker-Walker report Is that JTPA. In its present form, with current regula-
tions and funding limitations, cannot adequately serve targeted groups such as
youth, dropouts, and other economically disadvantaged Individuals facing
serious bsrriers to employment, who are the stated beneficiaries of JTPA. The
original CITA Isgislation had s. a similar deficiencies, many of which were
corrected through legislative amendments and Increased federal regulations and
oversight. If similar Improvements are to be made in JTPA, careful monitoring
Is an essential first step and one of the greatest challenges that faces the
Hispanic 03einunity.
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[Whereupon, at 12:40 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned, to
reconvene subject to the call of the Chair.]
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